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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

| am pleased to submit to you the annual report of Xpress Group
Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended 31 March 2008.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group achieved historic highs in turnover of HK$1,431 million,
representing an increase of HK$742 million or 108% from the
corresponding period last year. Net profit amounted to HK$12.2
million, compared to HK$40.1 million for 2007. Earnings per share
amounted to HK0.68 cents (2007: HK2.35 cents).

This year, the international crude oil prices have been continuously
climbing. The financial results of the travel and hospitality division
was disappointing because the business was materially and adversely
affected by the high price of jet fuel. On the other hand, as the US
sub-prime crisis spreads, both the World Bank and the International
Monetary Fund have lowered their estimate of the global economy
growth rate for 2008. China’s increasingly tightened monetary policy
and growing inflationary pressure will cause certain cost pressure and
market risks to the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Travel Division

The travel division operates through a number of subsidiaries
including:

* Anglo-French Travel Pte Ltd (“Anglo-French”), a Singapore
company which focuses on corporate travel for small and medium
enterprises, government statutory boards, MNCs and global
companies’ leisure travel. These include land packages and tours,
"MICE” (Meetings — Incentives — Conventions — Exhibitions) and
wholesale agent airline ticketing businesses. Anglo-French ranked
number 11 amongst 209 Billing and Settlement Plan Agents
in Singapore (source: IATA). This ranking includes corporate
ticketing, leisure, “MICE” and wholesale agents. During the
year, Anglo-French contributed HK$627.8 million to the Group’s
turnover.

e Nihon Kotsu Travel Service Co. Ltd. (“Nikko"), a Japan company
100% acquired in June 2006, was established and granted a
first class travel agent license in 1962. Since then, Nikko has
developed and extended its businesses including corporate travel
and both domestic and overseas leisure travel. Nikko's package
tour is operated under the brand name “Try Tour” which is widely
recognized as a wholesale market leader for packages to Hong
Kong, Okinawa and Korea.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

In 2003, Nikko was incorporated as a 100% subsidiary of Nihon Kotsu
Co. Ltd. and started trading as Nikko Travel Service Co. Ltd. It is now
responsible for all travel related businesses formerly undertaken by
Nihon Kotsu Co. Ltd. and has offices in Tokyo and Osaka.

During the year Nikko was merged with Crystal Travel Co., Ltd.
(“Crystal”) and changed its name to “Xpress Travel Limited”.

e Makino Air Travel Service Ltd. (“Makino”), a Japan company
52% acquired in March 2007, is a well established travel agency
in Sapporo City, Hokkaido, Japan founded in 1961. It has over
700 corporate clients from the private sector to official bodies
including government offices in Hokkaido. In addition to corporate
clients service, its major leisure product is FIT golf package under
product brand name ‘M-GOLF’ which is well known at Hokkaido.
Makino holds IATA and 1st category license in Hokkaido.

e (rystal, aJapan company 100% acquired in July 2007, which has
a retail network of 21 travel stores — 16 in Kansai and 5 in the
Greater Kanto area. During the year, the Group re-branded all
the Crystal Travel outlets to Xpress Travel stores, in line with the
Xpress Group’s global branding strategy and merged its business
to Xpress Travel Limited.

Hotels and Hospitality Division

The hotels and hospitality division operates through a number of
subsidiaries including:

*  Sapporo Holdings Co. Ltd. (“Sapporo”), a Japan company 100%
acquired in July 2006, was established on 8 March 2004 for the
purpose of operating investments, inns and hotels. Its principal
asset is a hotel known as Hamilton Hotel located in Chuo Ward,
Sapporo City, Japan.

Hamilton Hotel is an eight-storey building erected over a one-
level basement. It comprises a total of 103 guestrooms of various
types including a Japanese room, a meeting room, a haircut
saloon, a Japanese restaurant and esthetic saloon. The total
gross floor area of Hamilton Hotel is approximately 3,209 square
meters.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

e During the year, the Group further expand its hotel portfolio
by acquiring two hotel holdings companies, Aizuya Co. Ltd.
("Aizuya”) and Hotel Plaza Miyazaki Co. Ltd. (“Hotel Plaza
Miyazaki”).

Hotel Plaza Miyazaki is located at Southern side of Japan Kyushu
Island, Miyazaki City is the second largest city on Kyushu Island. It
is one of the well-known hotels situated at the center of city, 10
minutes from Miyazaki Station along Oyodogawa riverside. The
hotel has 164 rooms provides full service including 15 different
size banquet rooms, 4 meeting rooms, a river view sky restaurant/
lounge, 2 Japanese restaurants, 1 karaoke room, 1 bar and 1
lobby lounge. In addition, the hotel has a natural hot spring spa
facility with in and out door hot spring bath, sauna and massage
service open to staying guest and day use visitor.

Aizuya is a traditional Japanese hot spring inn located at Nasu,
Tochigi prefecture, a famous mountain resort area which is
approximately 2 hours drive from Tokyo downtown. It has total
22 rooms including 2 rooms with hot spring open bath. It can
accommodate total over 60 guests at one time. Facilities include
2 large hot spring baths, 2 private hot spring open baths for
staying guest exclusive use at charter base, 2 massage rooms
serve female clients only, 1 restaurant serving dinner & breakfast
and 1 souvenir shop including Aizuya private label item such as
Sake, Soba (Japanese noodle) etc.

Credit Card Division

The credit card business of the Group is operated through Xpress
Finance Limited (“Xpress Finance”). The economy was robust in
the past one year, coupled with steady employment and consumer
spending propelled the business environment to improve. As a result,
the credit card holders tend to repay the outstanding retail spending
and the credit card business recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$10.0 million, representing an increase of 28% from 2007.

In November 2006, Xpress Finance has launched its i Xpress MasterCard,
the first and the only fully customizable MasterCard in the Asia Pacific
Region. This new innovative i Xpress MasterCard allow customers to
design the whole card face through online design system and to select
their preferred interest/cash rebate combination card features. During
the year, Xpress Finance rolled out various card acquisition programs
to attract target segments for customized card. For parents & baby
segment, the “i Xpress Baby MasterCard” was launched and we have
also converted existing The Baby Club MasterCard cardholders into i
Xpress Baby MasterCard. For pets segment, we have launched the first

TR®E

s R CAKREEZWNEMRABEZERAD
A Aizuya Co. Ltd ([Aizuyal) RHotel
Plaza Miyazaki Co. Ltd. ([Hotel Plaza
Miyazaki ) —ZHEEBIEES °

Hotel Plaza Miyazakifiz ¥ B 7 b/ &
HomEBmAAMNSEZE KW - &%
BIEMLEAR)IE - ATRORNERBE

Z2— BEIREFI10HERE - BERE
164 ER - REE2FLKRYG - BiE15ER
ARNZECE - 4HeHE —BINS

BERAEE/BR 2MBAKIEZE 1
A RAOKE ~ 1RBERIEEEARE - it
O ZEERAARARRKERNE - RHE
EARENRREAD RERKERBT
EEREREE -

Aizuyas—MEH AR RIKE - LR AKR
GHAT ZEAZZLRERRY B
BRAMPALAMNEER - ZIKELE

22AERE BE2EREABRABERRA
ZEE o Aizuyafl IR AMA H£HBBE60%

% HFXEeFE2EXRDLRRAS 2@
EREFAACABRILARRAS 2
ERLZEFACKRES - 1BREHBEERT
BB F&Wﬁ%a@%mzuya%%ﬁhﬁﬂ
Sake * Soba(AZANME)ER R 2442 M

T+ 75

AEEZBERMBFARA A EHS K]
REEEZHARER - BE—FEBEED N L
BREXREEREBNEE  YREZHRSE
ERSME-F ERAFEBABREELS
ZEEHERE SGEAFEEHBEERN
10,000,000 T B_TZ+F LFH28% °

R-ZZERF+—F EFVEHELEREZ
i XpressBEER-—TAMEERANEZEHES
Az BEER - WHMREIFZi XpressBE
EREEFPERALETEERA B RTNERE
THEASENFIE BeOBAS - FR -
ERMEHELZRERARRMEE - KRS E
AMGERRZERRP BREFTEFPEME -
PE 7 T Xpress BabyBEEFR | &
I A& EIRE ZThe Baby ClubBEERZ
BHEEEW A Xpress BabyBEEFR - EY

05

s “REN\EER

Annual Report 2008



2

/)

REEEAR

Xpress Group Limited

06

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Co-Branded MasterCard program with customized card face for pet
lovers, the “iPetChannel.com Xpress Finance Co-Branded MasterCard”
program, in August, 2007. iPetChannel.com (www.ipetchannel.
com) is one of the most popular and active website in Hong Kong
which provides comprehensive information related to pets. For youth
segment, in September, 2007, we have launched the “i Xpress Students
MasterCard” program targeting at students of Universities and the
“Discuss.com.hk Xpress Finance Co-Branded MasterCard” program
aim at attract the younger crowd. Discuss.com.hk (www.discuss.com.
hk) is one of the most popular discussion forum websites in Hong
Kong with over 1 million members and approximately daily visitors of
over 100,000 members to its website.

By using its unique customized card platform, in April 2007, Xpress
Finance also launched another innovative product, i Xpress MasterCard
Gift Card. This is the first customized MasterCard gift card in Hong
Kong. Gift card (especially with our customized card face function)
serves as a gift to friends and family members on special occasions,
such as birthdays, weddings and anniversaries. Examples of i Xpress
Gift Card for special events such as Diocesan School Old Boy's
Association Annual Ball 2007, The Best of Macao 2007 program
by MasterCard Worldwide, Hong Kong Cat Fans Club’s launch
event, and Panorama Stock Bowling Tournament event. Similar to i
Xpress MasterCard, cardholders of i Xpress Gift Card can enjoy the
convenience of shopping throughout the MasterCard networks all
over the world. Unlike for a credit card, the purchase of Gift Card
does not require submission of income/assets proof which broaden our
customer base. i Xpress customization concept has helped to establish
brand differentiation, increase card usage, deepen cardholder loyalty
and boost card acquisition rate. Several awards were received since the
launch of i Xpress MasterCard, namely, 3 awards were received from
MasterCard Worldwide “The most innovative online program launch
in 2006 in Hong Kong” in April, 2007, “The Winner of The Highest
Growth Rate in 2007- Cardholder Spending in Hong Kong” and “The
Winner of The Highest Growth Rate in 2007 — Number of Open Cards
in Hong Kong” in March, 2008. One award was received from Hong
Kong General Chamber of Commerce, “2007 Hong Kong Awards for
Industries — Innovation and Creativity Award” in February 2008.

TR®|E

BEEEMmME  BAR-_ZZLF/\PHEENE
FEMELEREAEARNBEESER-
[iPetChannel.comEFH B BB EEEE R -
iPetChannel.com (www.ipetchannel.com)J3
REAGERITERERNOAU 2 — ZHWA
REBHENMZ2ZEGE MERFTFRPH
mE ' BAR_SEZLFNLAHEE T Xpress
StudentsBEER|EB(ZTEHHAEE) &k
[Discuss.com.hklEFH I B L EEEFRIEE
(EEHHFLEBNMHABE) o Discuss.com.hk
(www.discuss.com.hk) BB B RRIT 2w BBk
Z— MU ¥EABE1,000,0008 8 - HFHHE
EXE100,000 AKX

BELBENEAEARTES  RZZEE
FOA EHMBEAELS B FER— |
XpressBEZELE R WP ERREBETZ
BAALEEERER R -EBRR(LERBEA
tREWE)ATERFERSZE(WER BERE
FER)EREMEETHRARRKENE - B8
i Xpressh B RATR NP 2 HREESHBIFRE
£ bt R R 820078 & % & « AMasterCard
Worldwide# ## 2 The Best of Macao 2007 -
BEMHRE 2 EEEE KPanorama Stock/R i
RZ RIEE) o Bi XpressBEZERIELL i Xpress
LERZBFEENERERESTERARBES
BYEN - BEMERARTR BELEFR
EERRWA EEZB  LEEETRMN
BEERE o XpressZ AALEMLBHNER @
BEEL - ZNMERFAZ  REERAZR
HELRRBEARRMAE - AH#EHI XpressH
EERUR AEEEESZEER  AXAF
MasterCard Worldwide 2 Bl —ZZ+ 40 A
H_TTNE=AHE (20065 EHEBRRE
BIEREEREED R | R2007FEESTERSE
FRREEXRTE |R[2007FEEFEFREF
EEFZRERXEE |ZHEE URKEES
BEENR T N\FE_FBEEZ[2007FEFE
Tz glE4] -



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

On the sales and marketing frontier, Xpress Finance continue to run
proven programs such as product installment and cash installment
plans, personal loans, merchant joint promotions, recurrent transaction
promotions, member-get-member programs and bonus point
promotions, cash rebate incentives and various other initiatives that
stimulate customer spending, improve the active ratio and retain the
loyalty of existing customer base.

SINGXPRESS LTD

As at 31 March 2008, the Group held approximately 31% of SingXpress
Ltd (“SingXpress”), a Singapore listed associate of the Group.

On 14 February 2008, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with SingXpress regarding the proposed disposal of (i) the
entire and paid-up share capital of Singapore Service Residences Pte
Ltd (“SSR") and (i) the entire and paid-up share capital of SingXpress
International Pte Ltd (“SI”), (iii) a 60% equity interest in Anglo-French
Travel Pte Ltd and (iv) the shareholder’s loan advanced to each of SSR
and Sl at a consideration of $$35,936,624 to be satisfied by the issue
and allotment of new ordinary shares in the capital of SingXpress Ltd.
The agreement was cancelled on 22 April 2008.

RSI INTERNATIONAL SYSTEMS INC.

The Group holds approximately 30% in RSI International Systems Inc.
("RSI"), a dynamic public company head-quartered in North Vancouver,
British Columbia. RSI has been providing computerized property
management and reservation systems to the hotel & resort industry
since 1978. Today, satisfied customers across North America and
Europe are using its proven web-based software solutions for virtually
every type of property and accommodation management application
including real-time online reservations capability.

The Group is working with RSI to take advantage of its hotel industry
and information technology expertise to complement our travel and
hotel related businesses.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

NOVENA HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Group holds approximately 13% in Novena Holdings Limited
("Novena”), a Singapore based listed company that is known as a
consumer lifestyle player in furniture and beauty products. Its range
of furniture, marketed under the brands Novena, Modern Living, The
White Collection, Natural Living, Castilla Design, Castilla Modern,
Castilla Premium, Art of Living and Living Lifestyle, caters to the needs
of different consumer lifestyles. Novena's comprehensive range of
beauty products and services, typically beauty and personal care items,
are marketed under the household name of Beaute Spring. Over the
years, Novena has received numerous awards in recognition of their
superior business operations. These include the prestigious Superbrands
Award which recognizes some of the world’s greatest brands and the
Singapore Promising Brand Award which recognizes SMEs which have
shown outstanding performance in brand communication. Novena
strives to continuously upgrade its production and merchandising
values in order to provide the best retail experience, products and
services.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement for the disposal
of a property located in Singapore at a consideration of approximately
$$26.4 million and entered into an agreement with a property
developer in Singapore to purchase a property located in Singapore for
a consideration of approximately $$6.9 million. Property investments
have performed well, with higher rents and increases in fair-valuation
changes of HK$69.7 million.

OUTLOOK

We will continue our business strategy of focusing on the travel, leisure
and hospitality businesses as well as our consumer finance and the
credit card business. The Board and management will continue to
focus on the strategic development of the Group through strategic
partners and alliances, the development of our own brand names to
achieve international recognition and achieving economies of scale for
our existing businesses.

The Group will continue in its direction to diversify its business risk
through the expansion and development of its existing businesses in
corporate finance, consumer finance, credit cards, and travel related
activity outside of Hong Kong with a strong focus in Singapore, the
PRC and Japan. The Group seeks to create synergies in the activities
and businesses it currently has and will undertake in future. The
Group’s cash position remains healthy which, together with the
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

continued growth of our core businesses and prudent investment
strategies, makes us highly competitive. We strive to take advantage of
new opportunities and develop new strengths and strategies to thrive
in a different world.

We have entered into a letter of confirmation with a security house in
Japan to study the feasibility of applying for a secondary listing of and
a quotation for its shares on the Tokyo Stock Exchange, however in
view of the declines in the prevailing securities market worldwide, we
are of the opinion that it is not in the best interests of the Company
and the shareholders to proceed with the secondary listing in the
present circumstances.

Xpress Finance Limited (“Xpress Finance”) will continue to design
tailor made card acquisition programs, spending and retention
programs to increase card base and card usage. The unique features of
i Xpress MasterCard customization have been widely accepted by the
customers, Xpress Finance will continue capture new market segments
and its distribution network by issuing affinity/co-branded credit card
using this customization platform. To satisfy different demands in the
consumer finance market, Xpress Finance will continue to increase its
personal loan sales to attract quality customers by direct marketing
and telemarketing and widen its sales channel. The Group will also
pursue a regional expansion of its credit card and other consumer
lending services.

On corporate social responsibility, the Group through Xpress Finance
has received the “Caring Company” award for 3 years in recognition
of its continuous support to various charity programs.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of all the directors, | would like to express my sincere thanks
to everyone at Xpress Group for their hard work and contribution,
and to our investors, bankers and everyone else for their continuing
support. It is also my pleasure to thank all my fellow Board members
for the wisdom and guidance rendered so unstintingly throughout a
challenging year.

CHAN HENG FAI
Managing Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 July 2008
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$1,431 million
for the year ended 31 March 2008, representing an increase of
approximately 108% as compared to the year ended 31 March 2007.
The increase in turnover was mainly due to the acquisition of Makino
Air Travel Service Co., Ltd., Hotel Plaza Miyazaki Limited and Crystal
Travel Co., Ltd. in March 2007, June 2007 and July 2007 respectively
which contributed approximately HK$394 million to the Group’s
turnover. The profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31
March 2008 was approximately HK$12.2 million as compared to the
HK$40.1 million in 2007.

The earnings per share for the year was HK0.68 cents when compared
with HK2.35 cents in last year.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

During the period under review, the Company raised approximately
HK$6.5 million from the exercise of options and warrants resulting in
the issue of approximately 64.3 million shares. Bank balance and cash
amounted to approximately HK$223 million (31 March 2007: HK$192
million).

As at 31 March 2008, the Group’s current ratio was 1.77 (31 March
2007: 3.47) and had a net cash of approximately HK$51.8 million
when compared with the gearing ratio of 4.1% in 2007, defined as
the ratio of total borrowings less cash balances to total assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

(a) Increase in investment in eBanker

During the year, an indirect 35.03% owned subsidiary of the
Company, eBanker USA.com, Inc. (“eBanker”) offer a rights
issue to its shareholders on a pro-rata basis at a price of US$0.25
per rights share on the basis of ten rights shares for every three
eBanker shares held by the shareholders of eBanker on 26 May
2007. The Group applied excess rights shares and the interest in
eBanker was increased from 35.0% to 81.8% upon completion
of the rights issue.

(b) Increase of investment in RSI International Systems Inc.
(“RSI”)
During the year, the Group increased its equity interest in RSI
from approximately 19% to approximately 30% and RSI was
reclassified as an associate of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

(c)

(d)

(e)

"

Acquisition of hotel holding companies

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement with
an independent third party to acquire the entire interest of
Kabushiki Kaisha Aizuya (“Aizuya”), a company incorporated in
Japan which operates a hotel business and the shareholder’s loan
for a total consideration JPY220 million. The acquired businesses
contributed revenues of approximately HK$1.0 million and net
loss of approximately HK$2.4 million to the Group for the period
from the date of acquisition to 31 March 2008. Due to a lack
of HKFRS - specific data prior to the acquisition of Aizuya, pro
forma profit or loss of the combined entity for the complete 2008
annual reporting period cannot be determined reliably.

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to acquire the entire interest of Hotel
Plaza Miyazaki Co. Ltd. (“HPM"), a company incorporated in Japan
which operates a hotel, for a consideration of JPY300 million.
The acquired businesses contributed revenues of approximately
HK$49.6 million and net loss of approximately HK$7.1 million
to the Group for the period from the date of acquisition to 31
March 2008. Due to a lack of HKFRS - specific data prior to the
acquisition of HPM, pro forma profit or loss of the combined
entity for the complete 2008 annual reporting period cannot be
determined reliably.

Disposal of a property

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement for the
disposal of a property located in Singapore at a consideration of
approximately $$26.4 million.

Acquisition of property

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement with a
property developer in Singapore to purchase a property located
in Singapore for a consideration of approximately $$6.9 million.

Acquisition of a travel service company

During the year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement for the acquisition of the entire equity interest in
Crystal Travel Co., Ltd. (“Crystal”), a travel service company
operating in Japan, at a consideration of approximately JPY52
million. The acquired businesses contributed revenues of
approximately HK$101.2 million and net profit of approximately
HK$4.2 million to the Group for the period from the date of
acquisition to 31 March 2008. Due to a lack of HKFRS - specific
data prior to the acquisition of Crystal, pro forma profit or loss
of the combined entity for the complete 2008 annual reporting
period cannot be determined reliably.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had authorized and contracted
capital commitments of approximately HK$63 million, which was
mainly related to capital expenditure for the acquisition of investment
properties.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Substantially all the revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, U.S. dollars, Japanese yen and
Singapore dollars. Due to the currency peg of the Hong Kong dollars
to the U.S. dollars, the exchange rate between these two currencies
has remained stable and thus no hedging or other alternatives have
been implemented by the Group. The Group expected that there is no
significant exposure on other foreign currency, but it cannot be assured
operating results in future will not be materially affected.

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's credit policy defines the credit extension criteria, the
credit approval and monitoring processes, and the loan provisioning
policy. The Group maintains tight control on loan assessments and
approvals and will continue to exercise a conservative and prudent
policy in granting loans in order to maintain a quality loan portfolio
and manage the credit risk exposure of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Remuneration packages are generally structured by reference to
prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries and
wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on performance
appraisals and other relevant factors. Apart from salary payments, there
are other staff benefits including provident fund, medical insurance
and performance related bonus. At the balance sheet date, there were
approximately 449 employees employed by the Group. Share options
may also be granted to eligible employees and persons of the Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had pledged bank balances of
HK$3.9 million as securities for the credit card business transactions
with MasterCard International Inc. The Group’s borrowings of
HK$124.3 million were mainly secured by the investment properties
and land and buildings of the Group with an aggregate carrying value
of HK$261.6 million, bank balance and securities with carrying value
of HK$8.7 million and accounts receivables of HK$59.9 million and
floating charge over the asset of a subsidiary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the balance sheet date, the Group has guarantees of HK$12.9 million
(31 March 2007: HK$11.4 million) given to a financial institution in
respect of banking facilities granted to a supplier of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
PROFILE

DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Heng Fai, aged 63, is the Managing Chairman of the
Company. He has been a director of the Company since September
1992. Mr. Chan is responsible for the overall business development of
the Group. His experience and expertise are in the finance and banking
sectors. He is the spouse of Ms. Chan Yoke Keow.

Mr. Chan Tong Wan, Tony, aged 33, is the Managing Director of the
Company. Mr. Chan began his career by working in two international
companies as an investment banker specialising in Asian equity
financial products. Subsequently, Mr. Chan worked for a finance and
technology company in the United States as the Chief Operating
Officer with a focus on its investment banking and merchant banking
activities. Mr. Chan joined the Group as a non-executive director in
January 2000, was appointed as an executive director in September
2002 and was appointed as Managing Director in August 2003. Mr.
Chan holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree with honours, with a
Finance specialization, from the University of British Columbia. Mr.
Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan Yoke Keow.

Mr. Chan Tung Moe, aged 29, the Chief Executive Officer and a
Director of the Company, is responsible for the overall management
of the Group’s business. Previously, Mr. Chan was in charge of the
overall management of Xpress Finance Limited (“Xpress Finance”),
the Group’s credit card business, and also has experience in technical
and business development in the finance and technology industries.
He holds a Bachelor's Degree in Applied Science, a Master's Degree
in Electro-Mechanical Engineering and a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms.
Chan Yoke Keow.

Ms. Chan Yoke Keow, aged 59, has been a director of the Company
since January 1992. She is responsible for the general administration
and financial planning of the Group. She has over 25 years’ experience
in financial management and administration. Ms. Chan is a member
of the Hong Kong Securities Institute. She is the spouse of Mr. Chan
Heng Fai.

Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann, aged 37, has been a director of
the Company since 1995. Ms. Chan is involved with the securities
operations. Ms. Chan has previous experience with one of the leading
banks in Hong Kong where she was involved in sales and marketing
as well as relationship management for the Regional Securities office.
Ms. Chan is the daughter of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan Yoke
Keow.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
PROFILE

Mr. Fong Kwok Jen, aged 59, Mr. Fong is a Director of Fong Law
Corporation, a legal practice. Mr. Fong graduated from the University
of Singapore with a LL.B. (Honours). In 1976/77 he was awarded the
Colombo Plan Award to attend the Government Legal Officer's Course
in the United Kingdom. In 1986, he attended the NITA Advocacy
Programme at Harvard Law School. He was appointed to the Board in
1995. He served as Chairman of the Disciplinary Committee of SGX-ST
from 1995 to 2007 and was member of the Securities Industry Council
between 1992 and 2003. He was also a Council Member of the Law
Society of Singapore from 1990 to 1992. He is a director of several
public listed companies.

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter, aged 66, has over 31 years experience
in the fashion industry including distribution, sourcing, overseeing
manufacturing and exporting to international clients in France, the
United Kingdom, Germany and the United States. Mr. Wong was
appointed as an independent non-executive director in September
1998.

Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo, aged 57, has over 20 years' experience
in human resources, China trade and real estates industry. Mr. Da
Roza was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in July 2004.

Ms. Chian Yat Ping, Ivy, aged 43, obtained a Bachelor of Science
degree from the State University of New York at Albany. She is a
certified public accountant admitted to practise in USA and had eight
years working for international CPA firms. She is an international
affiliate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Ms. Chian was appointed as an independent non-executive director in
September 2006.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Shui Yeung, aged 37, is the qualified accountant and
Financial Controller of the Group and responsible for the financial
and management reporting of the Group, including internal control
and policy review, taxation, audit, legal and regulatory affairs. He has
14 years in public accounting, taxation, and financial consultancy and
managementin Hong Kong. He worked with aninternational accounting
firm prior to joining the Group in 2001. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Business Administration and is currently practicing as a certified public
accountant in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Securities Institute.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
PROFILE

Mr. Yuen Ping Man, aged 44, is the joint Company Secretary and
the Senior Manager, Corporate Services of the Group responsible for
the corporate secretarial function of the Group. Mr. Yuen is also the
Chief Operating Officer of Xpress Finance responsible for compliance,
human resource, operations, sales & marketing, customer service and
general administration of Xpress Finance. Mr. Yuen has over 15 years
managerial experience in corporate secretarial, business development,
human resources and general administration. Prior to joining Xpress
Finance in June 1997, Mr. Yuen worked in two listed groups and a
financial institution. Mr. Yuen holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration. He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries, a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute,
the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management, the Hong
Kong Institute of Marketing and the Hong Kong Institute of Purchasing
& Supply and an associate member of Institute of Financial Planners of
Hong Kong and Society of Registered Financial Planners.

Mr. Yamaguchi, Susumu, aged 61, joined Japan Xpress Ltd. (“Japan
Xpress”) as Executive Director since June 2006. He is responsible for
Japan Xpress's travel business development.

He started his career with Nippon Travel Agency, the second largest
travel agent in Japan after graduation. He has vast and broad experience
in travel business, from negotiation with airlines, hotels, to planning of
wholesale product to destination all over the world. During his career
with Nippon Travel Agency, he had 2 major appointments: Deputy
Director for East Japan, which is the major market area in Japan and
Managing Director of Nippon Travel Agency Europe Company based
in London. He had engaged in establishing the European company to
develop inbound tour operations and outbound business by setting up
offices in all over Europe. His last appointment before joining Japan
Xpress was Managing Director of Gullivers Travel Associates in Japan,
a Europe base worldwide tour operator.

Mr. Guok Chin Huat Samuel, aged 52, was the Independent Director
and chairman of Audit committee of SingXpress Ltd (“SingXpress”)
since 19th Nov, 2003. On 18th June 2008, he has relinquished this
post to become Executive Director and CEO of SingXpress. He is now in
charge of SingXpress's strategic planning and general administration.

Mr. Guok has close to 20 years of experience in investment banking,
venture capital and real estates development having worked at a
Japan-based investment bank in Singapore, sat on the board of a
venture capital fund and held the position of CEO and Director of a
SGX-Sesdaq listed company.

He is currently a director of StarHealth Pte Ltd, a Singapore based
company specializing in import and distribution of health and medical
products. He is also the Independent directors of Bukit Sembawang
Estates Ltd and Japan Land Ltd, both of which are listed in the

Singapore Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
PROFILE

Mr. Guok graduated from Boston University, USA, with Bachelor of
Science, double majors in finance and international economics with a
minor in chemistry.

Mr. Albert Hong Heng Chow, aged 46, is the Chief Executive Officer
of Anglo-French Travel Pte Ltd. (“AFT"). He began his career with AFT
since 1983 and has risen from the ranks handling operations and sales
to his present position responsible for AFT's entire business development
and operations. With over 25 years of experience in the travel industry,
Mr. Hong has built an exceptional working relationship with both
local and overseas hoteliers, airlines and suppliers and amassed a vast
wealth of knowledge and experience in corporate business travel,
leisure, M.I.C.E. and inbound business where he has constantly,
successfully orchestrated and executed countless conferences, events
(both local and overseas), travel fairs and off-shore land arrangements
for berthing major cruise liners — a responsibility that requires much
detailing and co-ordination. Mr. Hong serves as a Deputy Chairman
of the G13 Travel Management Alliance, a consortium of 15 Travel
Management companies in Singapore, with a total annual turnover
of $$900 million. He is also an agency representative on the Executive
Council - Singapore International Air Transport Association (IATA)
under NATAS (National Association Travel Agents Singapore) umbrella
and Deputy Chairman — Air Transport Sub Committee of the National
Association Travel Agents Singapore.

Mr. Wong Chiu Hong, Sunny, aged 56, is an Executive Director of
Xpress Travel Services Limited. Mr. Wong is responsible for the strategic
planning and development, sales and marketing of the travel services
for Hong Kong and Macau. Mr. Wong has over 30 years' practical
experience in travel industry. Mr. Wong is a director of Travel Industry
Council of Hong Kong and Chairman of Hong Kong Outbound Tour
Operator’s Association since 2004. Mr. Wong is currently an Instructor
of courses of “Customer Service and Effective Communication Skills for
Travel Agencies” and “Certificate Course for Outbound Tour Escorts”.

Mr. Chong You Hwa, aged 46, is the Senior Manager, Information
Technology of Xpress Finance in charge of the information technology
and electronic data processing functions. He is also coordinating the
Group’s Travel and Hotel systems’ setup and processing. Prior to joining
Xpress Finance in October 1996, Mr. Chong has worked as Technical
Services Section Head for a credit card company in Malaysia. During
that period, he also explored working in Papua New Guinea, Thailand
and Hong Kong on project basis. Mr. Chong has over 13 years system
experience in the credit card industry.

Mr. Lui Wai Leung, Alan, aged 37, is the Senior Accountant of the
Group. He is responsible for the financial reporting of the Group and
focus on the credit card business. He holds a Bachelor's Degree in
Business Administration and he joined the Group in 1997.
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EAEHB B BRAFTZERBEBEER
BE RNRKBITEREEBERE_TLF 2 &R
FLIEE B BN BIE - iz DA R e
BURBNZEEBR  YREERBIKE - KHE
ik~ SRR ((MICED) RASRIRIT A EREE
RHB RS HEILEERE RN BREY
ReF FAEE (AREN )  RERE

ZHBRERFEFR-ZEEIHEFTEFAMA
Ei R a8 o FLSEEAGI3 Travel Management
AllianceBt B 2 BIEfE - ZHBADEE T AHEM
MEZ2REERAR BEZRAHEEENRE
I IT 78 ANational Association Travel
Agents Singapore (NATAS)HT AN Bl 8% i 22 8
BHEIATA) FHTR B & 2 KT AR RAIr
Transport Sub Committee of the National
Association Travel Agents SingaporeZ & %

J& o

ERERE REA TR FEREFERLA
ZHTESR AALRBBRERBRMIZKERH
REREE  SHRMBER - BEERNKET
AR BA=THRCEELR ARAEE —_FTF
mEEHERRIKERRSESR RBBINEIRTT
BRERHECIRE BEERK REMENIRT
HEEREIAERDREIRMIMEEGEE
212 8E -

RAERLE  BEN TR ERVBEEARR
ARRE  REEAMBRETHERESHE o
I BY A R BB AE R R e RE BRI o
R—AANETAMAERS B REEEHE
EEKAE—HAERRARRMREHEE —
B AUHE 0T RSECHIHEND -
BMEEN—LIBE LT - BHEAT=FNUL
ZERRTERRERLR -

ERREE RE=TLH ARAREZERE
athl e KEBRARBEZMBHRERFEERRE
BeUBEE REEIHEBRSLBM RN —
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services to its subsidiaries. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 18 and 19
respectively to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008 are set out
in the consolidated income statement on page 36.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in note 15 and 17 to the financial statements, respectively.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Details of the major properties of the Group at 31 March 2008 are set
out on page 159.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Movements in the share capital and warrants of the Company are set
out in note 34 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements during the year in the reserves of the Group and
the Company are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

EEENREARABRE_ZETNF=A=1—
ALFRZFREEEGHBEERR -

FTEXRHK
ARADRERBAF - L AEMBRRARER

RIBEEMRKE HIEMBARRBENRZ XK
DRI RIS HREME 1819 ¢

£

,,&\%EEQ%%EZZ? L|5Z EEW

NE BERRKBNREWE

AEERARDBZNE  BERREBEMEENE
RERNZEHBERD N ERBBRERMEISK
1vige

FRME

AEER-_ZEENFE=ZRA=T-HAEZEBEZEE
MEFBHNFE159E °

REARARER

ARAZBARBBEEZGBERANEGT K RE
i34 ©
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ARERADRARFAHRHE
AR HIFE36 ©
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Chan Heng Fai

Chan Tong Wan

Chan Yoke Keow

Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann

Chan Tung Moe (appointed on 3 July 2007)

Non-executive director:
Fong Kwok Jen

Independent non-executive directors:
Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Da Roza Joao Paulo

Chian Yat Ping

Alternate directors:
Lau Kwok Fai (alternate to Chan Heng Fai)
Wooldridge Mark Dean (alternate to Fong Kwok Jen)

In accordance with Articles 78 and 79 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Fong Kwok Jen, Wong Dor Luk, Peter and Da Roza
Joao Paulo retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election. The term of office of each non-executive director and
independent non-executive director is the period up to his retirement
by rotation and each one of them can be re-appointed in accordance
with the above articles.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31 March 2008, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), were as follows:

EEEHEE

S

ENRAEAREAMAL  ARAZELES
T :

WITES:

RiEE

RatE

REME

B A
RER(R_ZTLFLA=REZE)

FRTES
B

BUFRITES :
T%i%

Da Roza Joao Paulo
B

BAEEE
IEE(REB s BIES)
Wooldridge Mark Dean(BEE s B¥TEE)

BREBEADBZ AREBERMRAETSRTIE
BPEI4E £ ~ EZ R 4ERDa Roza Joao Paulo
TEARESE  MEERARERER - 53
HTEERBYRTES Z2ABERE L
MAREESEAILE  BHABRE LA HESR
o

EEREBFz2ED

RZZZENE=A=+—H ESRAQAEE
TBRABRARAR S EERNBEEZB(ERRE
HRBEEB([FHRBERG ) EXVER) Z K
7 HERORESY  BEREEARHER
BIEXVEETRE8H HBEME A D T KT
ZHERRAE (BRESEREESRAEGKIZ
ERXHEFIRIERG Z2ERZIAR) » iR
EEE R RGIE352EBE RN ZISAT T
Az ES AR RE ETRAAH ETA
AESENEAFRINEBELETFAAMNEARAR
ERBARSHMBERAB (B 2R RHK
BT :
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEEREE
Long positions HE
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (a) RABBREFEOIBTZERER
Number Percentage of
of issued the issued
ordinary share capital
Name of director Capacity shares held of the Company
EEfE 514 e &I HERAFE
ZEREE BITRAE
Batk
%
Chan Heng Fai Beneficial owner 326,494,647 17.95
[EYED ExnBEEA
Chan Yoke Keow Beneficial owner 34,580,802 1.9
RES ExnfEEA
Held by trust (Note 1) 65,706,960 3.61
PAMEEERE (H1at1)
Held by controlled corporations (Note 2) 592,925,547 32.59
FTiEsl 2 AeliaE (HfiE2)
693,213,309 38.1
Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann Beneficial owner 1,146,832 0.06
R a EnEAA
Held by spouse (Note 3) 3,416,000 0.19
REEEA (Mi23)
4,562,832 0.25
Chan Tung Moe Beneficial owner 15,370,000 0.84
R EnEAA
Fong Kwok Jen Beneficial owner 7,328,000 0.4
EPEIE EnEBA
Chan Tong Wan Beneficial owner 5,423,837 0.3
PR 4 & EnEBA
Wong Dor Luk, Peter Beneficial owner 280,000 0.02
TZi% ExnfEEA
Da Roza Joao Paulo Beneficial owner 4,800 0
EnBEBA
Held by spouse (Note 4) 460,000 0.03
BEEBR A (Mit4)
464,800 0.03
1,053,137,425 57.89




(b) Share options

Name of director

EEns

Chan Heng Fai
RIE1E

Chan Yoke Keow
RELE

Chan Tong Wan
BRiE

Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann
BRI E

Chan Tung Moe
BRER

Fong Kwok Jen

BE

Wong Dor Luk, Peter
TE#

Da Roza Joao Paulo

Chian Yat Ping
5%

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Date granted
RHBAH

11.1.2004
11.15.2004
5.22.2006

11.1.2004
11.15.2004

11.15.2004
5.22.2006

11.15.2004

11.15.2004

5.22.2006

11.15.2004

11.15.2004

5.27.2005

12.21.2006

Exercisable period

AFTREMR

11.1.2004 - 5.8.2013
11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013
5.22.2006 - 5.8.2013

11.1.2004 - 5.8.2013
11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013
5.22.2006 - 5.8.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

5.22.2006 - 5.8.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

5.28.2005 - 5.8.2013

1.30.2007 - 5.8.2013

e
L
g
S
If¥

(b) MEKRE

Exercise
price
per share

BRITEE
HK$

BT

0.1600
0.1616

0.1566

0.1600
0.1616

0.1616
0.1566

0.1616

0.1616

0.1566

0.1616

0.1616

0.1500

0.1566

I

Percentage

Number of of the
share options issued
outstanding as share capital
at the Latest of the
Practicable Date Company
REET{TREY {EHFAFE
e RATHE 2 BITRAE
BREHA BIE

%

15,000,000 0.82
147,000,000 8.08
120,000,000 6.60
15,000,000 0.82
35,000,000 1.92
15,000,000 0.82
5,000,000 0.27
5,000,000 0.27
5,000,000 0.27
5,000,000 0.27
4,500,000 0.25
3,000,000 0.16
2,000,000 0.11
2,000,000 0.11
378,500,000 20.77
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(c) Warrants

Name of director

EEnA

Chan Heng Fai
bR iE1B

Chan Yoke Keow
REB

Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann

BN E

Chan Tung Moe

BR At

Fong Kwok Jen

B EE

Chan Tong Wan
Rt iE

Wong Dor Luk, Peter
T%%

Da Roza Joao Paulo

22

Capacity
287)

Beneficial owner (Note 5)

ERBEAAN (B725)

Beneficial owner

BEamfE A

Held by trust (Note 1)

PAME=ERE (Hrat1)

Held by controlled corporations
(Note 2)

BTzl 2 A 85 A (Ha2)

Beneficial owner
EREAA

Held by spouse (Note 3)
R BEA (Ma23)

Beneficial owner
EREAA
Beneficial owner
Emfa A
Beneficial owner
ExfEEA
Beneficial owner
EREAA
Beneficial owner
ERBEBA

Held by spouse (Note 4)
BEEEA (Mat4)

EEEHEE
() RBREX

Percentage of
Number of Issued share
Number of underlying Capital of the
warrants held shares Company
FERREZHA HERDHE EAEXRE
BITREABEDH
%
172,000,000 172,000,000 9.46
1,133,280 1,133,280 0.06
5,973,360 5,973,360 0.33
34,800,529 34,800,529 1.91
41,907,169 41,907,169 2.30
2,564 2,564 0.00
341,600 341,600 0.02
344,164 344,164 0.02
1,499,000 1,499,000 0.08
382,800 382,800 0.02
525,214 525,214 0.03
28,000 28,000 0.00
480 480 0.00
46,000 46,000 0.00
46,480 46,480 0.00
216,732,827 216,732,827 11.91




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

()

Notes:

1. These shares/warrants are owned by a discretionary trust, HSBC
Trust (Cook Island) Limited. Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow (“Mrs. Chan")
is one of the discretionary objects. Mrs. Chan is the spouse of Mr.
Chan Heng Fai.

2. These shares/warrants are owned by First Pacific International

Limited and Prime Star Group Co. Ltd., in which Mrs. Chan has
100% equity interests.

3. These shares/warrants are owned by Mr. Wooldridge Mark Dean,
the spouse of Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann.

4. These shares/warrants are owned by Ms. Josephina B. Ozorio, the
spouse of Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo.
Options

Particulars of the Company's and subsidiary’s share option
schemes are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share
options in issue during the year:

EEEHEE

1. ZERH/ RBREEH—IERERFTHSBC
Trust (Cook Island) Limited# & - MK
FERT((RZT D) ZEEEXRALZ
— o BRutARERBLEZES-

2. ZERG/ABREFHRLIEERY
B A& # 2% ZFirst Pacific International
Limited &Prime Star Group Co. Ltd.#
A o

3. RERNM/RREFHRAELZTZER
Wooldridge Mark Dean%t £ A -

4. ZERMH /RRHEEADa Roza Joao
Paulost 4 2 Bt fBJosephina B. OzorioZ
A -

BB AR

ARBEMERR 2 BRESEFFHR
B MRIMFL3S ©

TREBEARRANFANCHT I BRER

15 :
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEEREE
Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercise  Cancelled Outstanding
price at during during during at
Name of director Date granted Exercisable period per share 4.1.2007 the year the year theyear  3.31.2008
£ RIHEH EEiir:d:E BR M-2BLE  FARY  FATE  FhdE RoSENE
fit® BA-A ZA=t-A
HATE HATE
HKS
A
Category 1: Directors
-5 82
Chan Heng Fai 11.1.2004 11.1.2004 -5.8.2013 0.16 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
RiEE 11.15.2004 11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013 0.1616 147,000,000 - - - 147,000,000
5.22.2006 5.22.2006 - 5.8.2013 0.1566 120,000,000 - - - 120,000,000
Chan Yoke Keow 11.1.2004 11.1.2004 - 5.8.2013 0.16 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
REE 11.15.2004 11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013 0.1676 35,000,000 - - - 35,000,000
Chan Tong Wan 11.15.2004 11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013 0.1676 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
FoE 5.22.2006 5.22.2006- 5.8.2013 0.1566 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
Chan Tung Moe 11.15.2004 11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013 0.1616 5,000,000 = = - 5,000,000
RaR 5.22.2006 5.22.2006 - 5.8.2013 0.1566 5,000,000 = = - 5,000,000
Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann 11.15.2004 11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013 0.1616 5,000,000 = = - 5,000,000
R
Fong Kwok Jen 11.15.2004 11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013 0.1616 8,000,000 - (3,500,000) - 4,500,000
BExH
Wong Dor Luk, Peter 11.15.2004 11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013 0.1676 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
5%
Da Roza Joao Paulo 5.27.2005 5.28.2005-5.8.2013 0.15 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Chian Yat Ping 12.21.2006 1.30.2007 - 5.8.2013 0.1566 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
5¥
Total for directors 382,000,000 - (3,500,000) - 378,500,000
£248Y
Category 2: Others
SR REAL
11.15.2004 11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013 0.1616 26,200,000 - (6,360,000 (6,000,000) 13,840,000
5.22.2006 5.22.2006 - 5.8.2013 0.1566 11,000,000 - - - 11,000,000
4.18.2007 4.18.2007 - 5.8.2013 029 - 9,000,000 - (1,500,000) 7,500,000
Total for employees 37,200,000 9,000,000  (6,360,000) (7,500,000) 32,340,000
Total for all categories 419,200,000 9,000,000  (9,860,000)  (7,500,000) 410,840,000




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before 18
April 2007, the date on which the share options were granted,
were HK$0.29.

At 31 March 2008, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme was 410,840,000, representing 22.59% of
the share of the Company in issue at that date.

In addition, the following outstanding options to subscribe for
shares in the capital of a subsidiary of the Company, granted to
certain directors of the Company under the share option schemes
of this subsidiary were as follows:

eBanker USA.Com, Inc. (“eBanker”)

The following table presents details of share options in issue
during the year.

Category 1: Directors E—H: ESH
Chan Heng Fai BRiEE

Fong Kwok Jen REI1E

Total held by directors EEMFEH
Category 2: Others FTHHtbAT
Total held by others Hith A LFTHREL
Total st

There was no movement in the share options granted by eBanker
during the year.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

EEEHEE

ARARGREE-FTLEMATNR
OB AR M 2 38 1 P30 A 2 W5 1B 80,2938

7TE [

R-ZEZNEF=ZA=+—H BEEKRE
SFEEREERNRITECBRES R 2R
8 E 5410,840,0000% * 15K A AR ZHE
ZBETR{1N22.59% °

o AT AR AR R — B AR
RARRGZ W RITEERETRIEZNB
NAZBREAEARTARBAETES
HBMT

eBanker USA.Com, Inc. ([eBanker])

TERNDFACRITRREZFE -

Number of
Exercise share options
price per share at 3.31.2008
BRTHEE RZBBN\EF
=ZA=+-H
BREZE

us$

e
3.00 500,000
3.00 100,000
600,000
3.00 20,000
620,000

eBankerfX i Z BERHE N F AW EAT (T EE) o

B EXEBEEN  AAAREEAHERTRE
NEMEEERSREARE  REAATES
BEE EONCERE R IN. | PRI e
5T -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

(i)

(if)

(iif)

On 25 February 2005, a service contract was entered into
between the Company and Mr. Chan Heng Fai (“Mr. Chan"), for
a term of three years expiring on 31 January 2008. The service
contract provide for the payment of a salary of HK$2,100,000
per month. In addition, Mr. Chan was also entitled to receive an
accommodation allowance of HK$30,000 per month.

On 3 July 2007, a service contract was entered into between the
Company and Mr. Chan for a term of two years commencing from
1 February 2008. The service contract provides for the payment
of a salary of HK$185 per month. In addition, Mr. Chan is also
entitled to receive an accommodation allowance of HK$160,000
per month.

On 22 April 2002, a service contract was entered into between
the Company and Mrs. Chan for a term of 5 years expiring on
1 February 2007. This service contract provides for the payment
of a salary of the greater of (a) an annual salary equal to 1% of
the net asset value of the Company as shown in its consolidated
audited accounts at each financial year end, or (b) 110% of the
basic salary as mentioned in the service contract with Mrs. Chan. In
addition, Mrs. Chan is also entitled to receive an accommodation
allowance of HK$30,000 per month. After 1 February 2007, the
Service Contract is continued on a month to month basis.

On 3 July 2007, a service contract was entered into between the
Company and Mr. Chan Tong Wan (“Tony Chan”) for a term of
three years and taken effect on 1 April 2007. The service contract
provides for the payment of annual salary of HK$2 million,
HK$2.1 million and HK$2.2 million for the first, second and third
years of services and Tony Chan shall be entitled to an incentive
bonus equivalent to 2.5% of the audited consolidated profit of
the Group before tax at the end of every financial year or at such
other rates or on such other terms as may be determined and
approved by the Board. In the event that either party terminate
the service contract, the terminated party shall be entitled to
receive, and the terminating party shall pay and transfer to the
terminated party, as liquidated damages, a lump sum equal to
the sum which would have been payable by the Company to
Tony Chan as gross salary (excluding bonus, if applicable), not to
exceed 12 months of salary, in respect of the unexpired term of
the service contract on the date notice of termination is given.

ESZRBEN

(i)

(iii)

ARREREBLE(TREE] RN _FF
FFE-_A-TRBIY—HAR=F 2K
el BR-_ZETZNF—A=1+—HE
WMo WBRBANBEELIIZHSSEA
§A2,100,000 7T © thHh » BRAECETA
WEE A30,0008 T2 EE2E -

ARRHEREER _SELFL A=A
VB ZEENFE_A-BEAHRE
ZIRBED - WRBAENATAI T 2%
SEEATAISSETT o N BRAENE
RS B 160,0008 T2 BEEE -

RAAREBRZTN _EE_FMA-_+=
BRIV —HOABAFEZREEH K%
Z+E-_F—BER ZRBEENETE
IRHZHELEBATIRSE  (QBEER
AARBEMREEFEA ZGRAKLER
REMAARRBEEFBEI%ZEE : %
(b)ER PR 2z L FTRT S AR 75 A 49 B il &= A %
£110% ° o REZ LA #WEE A
30,0008 L2 FEEREM - RZTZELF =
A—B#% ZREE0IRAERS-

R-ZEZLtEL+A=H ARRHERHRE
TE(HEREDITYREEH AH=
FOEBER-_ZSELFHA—HEK - ZR
BENTHRE—F FERF=F
R HE 2 & F % £ &2,000,0005 T
2,100,000 7t }%2,200,000% 7t - H &
REARNSEAMBRTEFEBERBESER
REERTBAIEBEZER G EN2.5% 2 2ZE)
4 R EE e EE RLEZE M
SR EMGETH o WER —FRIERBES
o WRIE— B RER - B BRI —
FASNRERFHELE—FHEEREA
AR EHRIEBNAHEZREAHZ X
EmBRRES N THEABIELAT A
(TEEEL WER)ZBBEARTERE
B EFSRBRET-BAFH: -
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(iv)  On 3 July 2007, a service contract was entered into between the
Company and Mr. Chan Tung Moe (“Moe Chan”) for a term of
three years expiring on 2 July 2010. The service contract provides
for the payment of annual salary of HK$1 million, HK$1.1 million
and HK$1.2 million for the first, second and third years of services
and Moe Chan shall be entitled to an incentive bonus equivalent
to 2.5% of the audited consolidated profit of the Group before
tax at the end of every financial year or at such other rates or
on such other terms as may be determined and approved by
the Board. In addition, Moe Chan is also entitled to receive an
accommodation allowance of HK$20,000 per month. In the event
that either party terminate the service contract, the terminated
party shall be entitled to receive, and the terminating party shall
pay and transfer to the terminated party, as liquidated damages,
a lump sum equal to the sum which would have been payable
by the Company to Moe Chan as gross salary (excluding bonus,
if applicable), not to exceed 12 months of salary, in respect of
the unexpired term of the service contract on the date notice of
termination is given.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2008, according to the register of interest in shares and
underlying shares and short positions kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO and so far as is known to or can be ascertained
after reasonable enquiries by the directors, the persons (other than
the Directors of the Company or their respective associate) who were
interested in 5% or more in the issued share capital of the Company
are as follows:

EEEHEE

(ivy RZET+EFELA=ZH " ARFERER
FE(THRER DITURBEEH BB =
F R_BE-ZFFL+A-_HREm %R
BENTHERE—F F_FRE=
R HIRM 2 & FFH £ &1,000,000% 7T
1,100,000/ Jt } 1,200,000 7T * B K&
FRANTEMBREEFRENBERAR
SERBAICEZGABT2.5% RETE
R EESNHETRMMEZEME
B EMET e o BRARMATERS
A20,0008 T2 EEER - fEF—FK
IEREAH  WIRIE—FBEER M
HEE—FAITREX FHKIE—TH
ERADAIRABERR BB BZRS
EHZAERBRREESZN TRERER
e RBE(TEERD mEA) z BHTE
ABEBEE  EFASRBET-BAEHS -

BREXEEEN  HEERNESEADFTUE
AARAR AR - FABRELBRECEERE
BROM MR L2 RIEA A -

ESRGNzER

ARAHEEAHBERRARETLENARAE
FERIMBRBREANERS ANFRIFALR
BRNAEMZEMEZSA

FERR

RZZFFNF=ZA=1—0  REAAEERE
F R BEGPIF336GFE 2 Bin KA KRN E
HsRARBEMRBEEEBAMALNELGE
BREREE TIAL(RRAEEHARERA
ZHMBALRINBEEADFCHEITRAS% A
b
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Name

%18

Prime Star Group Co., Ltd.

Kingsway Lion Spur Technology Limited (Note 1)
Kingsway Lion Spur Technology Limited (ffz1)
Festival Developments Limited

SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited

World Developments Limited

Innovation Assets Limited

Kingsway International Holdings Limited

Jonathan Choi Koon Shum

First Pacific International Limited

Note:

Nature of interest

BEME

Beneficial owner
BEREAA
Beneficial owner
ERBEAA
Corporate interest
NAER
Corporate interest
NEER
Corporate interest
NEHER
Corporate interest
NAER
Corporate interest
DA
Corporate interest
NEER
Corporate interest
NEER

(1) Kingsway Lion Spur Technology Limited is a company 100% controlled
by Festival Developments Limited which in turn is 100% controlled by
SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited. SW Kingsway Capital Holdings
Limited in turn is 74% controlled by World Developments Limited which

in turn is 100% controlled by Innovation Assets Limited which in turn is
100% controlled by Kingsway International Holdings Limited. Kingsway
International Holdings Limited is 46% controlled by Jonathan Choi Koon

Shum. Thus, the aforesaid interests in the Company duplicate each

other.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, no person other than
the directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the
section headed “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in shares and
underlying shares” above, had registered an interest of 5% or more
in the issued share capital of the Company, and short positions in the
shares and underlying shares that was required to be recorded in the

register of interest pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

EETS

=

HwEE

Number of shares/

underlying shares held %
FrEsikm /HEERH & E BOL
522,966,736 28.75
206,800,000 11.37
206,800,000 11.37
206,800,000 11.37
206,800,000 11.37
206,800,000 11.37
206,800,000 11.37
206,800,000 11.37
104,759,340 5.76
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(1)

BREXHEESN K=
BREXEZERIZTHAERK

Kingsway Lion Spur Technology Limited&—
i B Festival Developments Limited5t 24|~
A & ffiFestival Developments Limited8
SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited5E &4
%l o SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited £l
MWorld Developments Limited#2#174% - i
World Developments LimitedfllfInnovation
Assets Limited5e 2% » Mfilnnovation Assets
LimitedBJfKingsway International Holdings
Limited52 & # &l o Kingsway International
Holdings LimitedfaJonathan Choi Koon Shum
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the aggregate amount of turnover
and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers respectively accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
turnover and purchases.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

OF THE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied throughout
the year ended 31 March 2008 with the Code of Best Practice as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”). Detailed
information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set
out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in pages 30 to 33
of the Annual Report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Grant Thornton as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHAN TONG WAN
MANAGING DIRECTOR

28 July 2008
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and strives to continually improve on its governance
processes as articulated in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
as set out by the Stock Exchange.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is presently composed of nine
members, comprising five executive Directors, one non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors. The Directors
are, collectively and individually, aware of their responsibilities to the
shareholders. The Directors’ profile are set out on page 14 and 15 of
this Annual Report. The relationship among members of the Board are
also disclosed.

The Board members as at 31 March, 2008 were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Heng Fai (Managing Chairman)
Mr. Chan Tong Wan (Managing Director)
Mr. Chan Tung Moe (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan Yoke Keow

Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann

Non-executive Director
Mr. Fong Kwaok Jen

Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs")
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Mr. Joao Paulo Da Roza

Ms. Chian Yat Ping

The Board is responsible for directing the Group to success and
enhancing shareholders’ value by formulating the Group's overall
strategy, key objectives and policies. The Board monitors and oversees
the operating and financial performance of the Group pursuant to
these objectives.

To assist the Board in its functions, the Board established and delegated
specific responsibilities to two Board Committees, namely the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. The respective roles
and responsibilities of each Board committee, their work and activities
are included in this Report.

The Board has also delegated the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group’s business to the management team.

ERERER
ARRBERFRECEER  WERB AR
2 EERERTAEN T A2 - FEIH
NBELERREF -

Exg

EX([EZ DHANEKE  BERAREA%E
HITEF  —LHFRTEFTR=RBUFRTE
Z-EFCHARLBARNABERERHBRETLZ
B -EEHENHANAFRFI4REISAH - E
EERKEBREZBAERMEELRE -

R-ZBENF=-A=+—HB EFeREEHE:

BITES
REBLEHITLE)
BRRELE(EFRLEE)
BRAETE X £ (7T B ARE)
REFLL
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BEEEE
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IEHEE

Joao Paulo Da Roza%t 4%
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CHAIRMAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
are segregated and their positions held by different individuals to
ensure their respective independence, accountability and responsibility.
The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to and overseeing
the function of the Board while the Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer are responsible for implementing the Board's strategy
and managing the Group’s business and operations.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are currently four non-executive Directors on the Board, three
of whom are independent. They have been appointed for a specific
term and subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association and thus submit themselves, on a
rotation basis, for re-election by shareholders.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 27 February, 1995 and
comprises the three INEDs:

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter
Mr. Joao Paulo Da Roza
Ms. Chian Yat Ping

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee was formulated in
accordance with the requirements of the new Code on Corporate
Governance Practices. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
include the review of financial information, overseeing the financial
reporting system and internal control procedures as well as maintaining
a working relationship with the external auditors.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Audit Committee met 2
times to review, consider and discuss: the appointment, scope, plan
and fee of the external auditors; the external auditors” audit findings;
the interim and annual financial results and statements and other
financial reporting matters.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Directors have conducted an annual review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries,
which has covered major and material controls in areas of financial,
operations, compliance and risk management of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 30 September, 2005
and currently comprises of the one executive Director and two INEDs:

Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter
Ms. Chan Yoke Keow

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee was formulated
in accordance with the requirements of the new Code on Corporate
Governance Practices. The Remuneration Committee is responsible
for developing the remuneration policies of Directors and senior
management.

During the year ended 31 March, 2008, one Remuneration Committee
meeting was held.

ATTENDANCE RECORD ATBOARD AND COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

The Directors’ attendance at Board meetings, Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee meetings during the year are set out
below:

Directors =

Mr. Chan Heng Fai BRiEME T &

Mr. Chan Tong Wan BRI A

Ms. Chan Yoke Keow REBLZ L

Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann BRm & 2+

Mr. Chan Tung Moe BRAE ST
Non-Executive Director FHTES

Mr. Fong Kwok Jen BBk &
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUNFUTES
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter FEERE

Mr. Joao Paulo Da Roza Joao Paulo Da Roza’t 4

Ms. Chian Yat Ping iz it e

Number of meeting held during the year FRETEHRH

FHEES
FMESEEN_TERENA=HART
BER—ARTEERBEBL #mﬂ§$m&-

Da Roza Joao Paulo%t 4
TEEE
REBERL

FHERECREAECRENILEEAER
SFRZREH] - FHREGARFITEZTLS
BEBBZHMBR -

RBE_FENF=A=+—RHLFE FMZ
BERBT—Rg: -

FRN ZEZSNEZSSE  BRZESRFTMH
ZEESRLHREBEREINMT
Number of meeting attended/
Number of meetlrg held
HESBRE BTEERY
Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee
E=zg ERZESg YHEES
5/5 N/A N/A
5/5 TNEH TNEH
5/5 N/A N/A
5/5 TNEH TNEHR
5/5 N/A 11
5/5 TNEH 11
4/5 N/A N/A
4/5 TNEH TNEH
4/4 N/A N/A
4/4 TEMA TNEHR
4/5 N/A N/A
4/5 TNE M TNEHR
5/5 2/2 11
55 2/2 11
5/5 2/2 11
55 2/2 11
5/5 2/2 N/A
5/5 2/2 TNEHR

5 2 1
5 2 1



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
directors (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed compliance
with the Code of Conduct throughout the year ended 31 March,
2008.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
accounts of the Group and that the accounts are issued in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March, 2008, the external auditors provided the
following services to the Group:

2R

Audit services

ESCREERS
ARREREFETZEFRHHEM— AT
(TBspsrll]) - EARFR B £ 7 45 BB 81057
BEMBETAESETESF RSP ZBETA(E
BRI RELRER

SERARENE 2REFHOER  RER
BE-TT/\F=A=T-ALEER-BEET
BFFA -

ESRNKRECHER

ESRRAUNEFEAKERBZRT  XERE
BERTE R ARG ERITIHER -

BB &

BE_TZ\F-A=1t—"HILFE IEZK
BME a4 BR 4t T 51 IR 7%

HK$'000
TET

3,294,000
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

c' Grant Thornton
- HE

To the members of Xpress Group Limited 4R &EEER 2 7
(formerly known as China Credit Holdings Limited FEIfEE&E
BRAR)

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Xpress
Group Limited (formerly known as China Credit Holdings Limited)
(the "Company”) set out on pages 36 to 157, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2008, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

BYZ RS

Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
13th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

28 July 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2008

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other operating income
Fair value gain on financial
assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Fair value gain on investment
properties
Bad debt recovered
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Gain on disposal of
available-for-sale
financial assets
Discount on acquisition of
additional interest
in a subsidiary
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Gain on disposal of associates

Profit from operations

Finance costs
Share of results of associates

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Profit for the year

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to the equity
holders of the Company
during the year
- Basic

-Diluted

i
HERK

£
LS T ON
BATEFARRZ
EMEEZ
DNFEWRE
BEMEZAYE
Wz
Bl m 5k
TRHEX
A&
HEA & S R
BEZWa

WE-RRBARZ
BIMER 2 VTR

=)= NG A 6
HEBE QA2 KE

RERH

A AR
NEBERRRE
B FR 8 Bt A A
B X i

FEEN

A
KAFBREREA
DPEBRER

FEEN

FAFDT
REFEA
A5 A 2
BREN
—&K

—#%

w e W R

BE-FP\FSAST-ALEE

2007
“TELF
HK$'000
TET

689,184
(631,820)

Notes

MisE

57,364
21,205
55,476
78,351

943

(142,692)
(11,390)

59,257

(17,453)
(1,249)

40,555

(24,474)

16,081

10 40,112

(24,031)

16,081

11
HK2.35 centsia il

HK2.24 centsia il




BALANCE SHEETS EEBEBX

as at 31 March 2008 R-ZEENE=A=1+—H

Group Company
AN

2007 2007
ZET+F ZET+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BiEE THET FAET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment %% - BEN&E 15 22,397 1,048
Prepaid land leases BAAELHASE 16 20,221 =
Investment properties REME 17 275,705 900
Interests in subsidiaries REB AR ZH#Ex 18 = 14,218
Interests in associates REEERB 2R 19 16,010 =
Long term deposits REgRe 20 7,664 =
Available-for-sale At E
financial assets TREE 21 45,815 = [
Goodwill G 22 18,955 - k@
Loans receivable eI E K 23 450 = =
Pledged bank deposits BHEBRITER 24 4,385 = ﬁ:
|'|
411,602 16,166 °
3
Current assets RBEE 5
Inventories FE 25 486 = £
Trade and other receivables, EHREMEYR 5]
deposits and prepayments HEEER Q‘—C\,
BNHE 26 131,525 803 2
Financial assets at fair BRFENABR <
value through profit or loss LEMEE 27 178,812 140,220
Loans receivable FEUE TR 23 3,008 =
Amount due from subsidiaries B ARIX & 18 = 256,805
Amounts due from associates  Bt& QTR &K 19 6,577 - 7 1
Pledged bank deposits BHEBRITER 24 - b e
Cash and cash equivalents Re k& EHEEE 24 191,573 55,764
511,981 455,113
.
Current liabilities REAE X
Trade and other payables ZHREMEMNZE 28 100,288 7,587
Borrowings fEE 29 43,333 =
Finance lease payables ENRMERERE 30 605 =
Convertible debentures ARRESR 31 - -
Taxes payable eI 3,526 =
Amount due to subsidiaries NGV 18 = 56,075
147,752 63,662
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BALANCE SHEETS

as at 31 March 2008

Net current assets

Total assets less
current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Finance lease payables
Convertible debentures
Amounts due to associates
Deferred taxation

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Minority interests

Total equity

38

Notes
BisE
REEEFE
EEAER
rEaE
FrRBEE
&8 29
ENRERSHE 30
AR ES 31
YNNG E ] 19
EIERITE 32
EEFE
Ex
K ARAE
BB ARELES
AR 34
s 36
DERRER
e

Chan Heng Fai
RiEE

Managing Chairman

Group Company
NG
2007 2007
—TT+F IS o3
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR
364,229 391,451
775,831 407,617
134,623 -
972 -
50,234 -
236 -
22,159 196
208,224 196
567,607 407,421
17,548 17,548
511,035 389,873
528,583 407,421
39,024 -
567,607 407,421
Chan Tong Wan
REE
Managing Director
BEREE

HITLRE



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 March 2008

RERE

Vi

BE-TT/\F=A=+—AILEE

2007
—TELF
Notes HK$'000
B s FET
Cash flows from REERHERE
operating activities
Profit before income tax BRETSBLAD R F 40,555
Adjustments for: KETYISIBAE
Depreciation e 8 3,590
Amortisation of prepaid land leases TBNTAE TS B 8 530
Impairment losses on NP R EEE
— loan receivables —ERER 8 =
— property, plant and equipment W% - BE RS 8 =
— trade and other receivables, —E 5 R HMEKFIE
deposits and prepayments Ze RIEMNFHIE 8 26
Loss on disposals of property, HEME  BEX
plant and equipment BPd i 8 416
Discount on acquisition of U B — R P B 2 A1 EB A
additional interest in a subsidiary i =
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HERB ARz K -
Gain on disposal of associates HEBE QR Z ks =
Gain on disposal of an investment HEBEE 2 REMS
property with deposit paid Wiz (3,884)
Fair value gain on BEME 2 ATE
investment properties Wz (78,351)
Equity settled share based AR 8 8 2 IR 2
payment expenses 2R 1,049
Interest income FEA (15,719)
Interest expenses on borrowings B8 R AR ES
and convertible debentures BRI 17,411
Finance lease interest expenses MEREN X 42
Share of results of associates VN (sl A=W 1,249
Write off goodwill M 652
Write off bad debts AR S S
Excess of the Group’s interests in SEREWER 2
the net fair value of acquiree’s ARAEE BER
identifiable assets, liabilities and SABENATFE
contingent liabilities over cost A 8 - (360)
Operating loss before working LEESEEA]
capital changes ISR ER (32,794)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 March 2008

Operating loss before

working capital changes

Increase in loans receivable

Decrease in inventories

Increase in amounts due from
an associate

(Increase)/Decrease in trade and
other receivables, deposits
and prepayments

Decrease/(Increase) in financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Decrease in trade
and other payables

Increase in amounts
due to an associate

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations
Tax refund/(paid)

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from
investing activities
(Increase)/Decrease in pledged
bank deposits

Acquisition of an associate

Subscription of shares in
an associate

Proceeds from disposal of an associate

Proceeds from disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Purchases of property,
plant and equipment

Purchases of investment properties

Proceeds from disposal of
investment properties

Proceeds from disposal of an
investment property with
deposit paid only

Payments for prepaid land
lease paymetns

Acquisition of subsidiaries

LEASRDNZER
B

ke

TR

B AR R D

85 REMERE - B
REAZE (2m) /Ed

BAFEFARGZZ
SREERD/ (BM)
B9 KA IR

AR B X ISR IE

wems/ () Re
BB/ (BENBE)

mezBms/ (RA)
R 3

REFBZRERE
BHEMRITER OB HD

Wi — AR
RE N B R RN
HE—EBE QA
HENE - BER&RE
IS 5A
BADE - BELRE

BARBME
HEREYRAEFR

HEENREZREBME
RS 5A

IEMGTEERES
Y BB F B X )

Proceeds from disposals of a subsidiary & i B2 RIFT1S 508

Interest received
Payment of long term deposits

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

BYH 8
XNERHRE

REZEHE " (FTH)
B FE

FEHERER

BE-FP\FSAST-ALEE

2007
—TTLF
HK$'000
FHET

Notes
i

(32,794)
(880)
77

(3,354)

448

(135,528)

(2,672)

236

(174,467)
(18,972)

(193,439)

4,605

67

(3,647)
(93,366)

10,561

41 (15,393)

15,719
(7,664)

(89,118)




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 March 2008

Cash flows from
financing activities

(Repayment)/Drawdown
of borrowings

Proceeds from issuance of
share capital

Issuance of warrants

Capital injection from minority
shareholders of subsidiaries

Interest paid

Repurchase of the convertible
debentures by the Group

Increase in finance lease
payables

Finance lease interest expenses

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 March

Analysis of the balance of cash
and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash

Bank overdraft

REEBHRERE
(B8) /EAEE
BITBAFAE A

BATRBHER
MEARLBRRHE

ENHE
AEERBO AR ES

BIENRE

MEFE
BEHEEFNEFAX

BETEHE S (FH)
B FE

RERREEEER
#m/ (Hd) 28

RENZRERAEEEER

SNESBHAFRE 2R

R=A=t—-RZRER
RE%EER

RekBRESEERSRIN

RoERRE
RITEX

RERE

Vi

BE-FP/\F=AST-ALEE

Notes
B s

2007
—TTLF
HK$'000
FET

100,763

20,170
5,160

1,316
(15,754)

112,277

(170,280)
363,083

(4,620)

188,183

(3,390)

188,183

191,573
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 March 2008

GERBE2ER

BE_ZT/\F=A=+T—HILEE

Minority Total
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company interests equity
RO RREREARLEER DURRER BHAE
Employee
Assets  Investment share-hased
Share Share Warrant  revaluation  revaluation  Translation compensation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
WS
AREE BEEf REEf ZfFEEZ
s RiEE e e e RERE HRRE ZithR Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn T T Fhn Fhn Fhn Fhn FhL Fhn
At 1 April 2006 RZZENEMA-A 16,265 704,561 - 8,038 (1,806) 18,133 2133 (318,207) 49117 60,732 489,849
Fair value gain on available-forsales AIEHESRHARE L
financial assets NFEKE - - - - 25918 - - - 25918 = 25,918
Exchange differences on translation E&ESHEHMES
of overseas operations EREE - - = - - 7,267 = = 7,267 = 7,267
Share of reserve of an associate  AEEEAARR - - - - - (192) - - (192) = (192)
Net income recognised
directly in equity = = = = 25,918 7,075 = = 32,993 - 32,993
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - - 40,112 40,112 (24,031) 16,081
Total recongised income and EFERAZENA
expenses for the year Rt - - - - 25918 7,075 - 40,112 73,105 (24,031) 49,074
Exercise of 2009 and 2006 fife=
Warrants subscription rights
(note 34(a) & (b))
340) k(b)) 1223 17977 = = = = = = 19,200 - 19,200
Exercise of share options (note 35)  {1{eiEMRiE (Hiz35) 60 910 - - - - - L 970 - 970
Issue of warrants KAk - - 5,160 - - - - - 5,160 - 5,160
Transfer to reserves upon BirfeBREEAZER
exercise of share option - il - - - - @1 - - - -
Transfer 1o reserves upon RREEREEAZEE
cancellation of share option - - - - - - 22 2 - - -
Share of reserve of an assocate  AREEAEEE - = = = = = (18) = (18) = (18)
Arising from acquisition RUEHBARMES
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 1,007 1,007
Capital contribution from WEAFAZ S BRRLE
minority shareholder of
a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 1316 1316
Employee share-based ERBLARARAF
compensation [BEZRERX
expenses recognised - - - - - - 1,049 - 1,049 - 1,049
As 31 March 2007
17,548 723,469 5,160 8,038 24,112 25,08 312 (278,073) 528,583 39,024 567,607




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 March 2008

GERBE2ER

BE_ZTZT/\F=A=1T—HILEE

Minority Total
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company interests equity
ARIREREARLES LURREE  RREE
Employee
Assets  Investment share-hased
Share Share Warrant  revaluation revaluation  Translation compensation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
Nl
AREE  EEEf  REEf i FEEZ
& RBEE e e i BERE  RERE  ZHER Eh
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn T T Thn Fin Fhn Fhn FhL Fhn
At 1 April 2007 RZSELEMA-A 17,548 723,469 5,160 8,038 24112 25,208 3121 (278,073) 528,583 39,024 567,607
Fair value gain on available-forsales AIHHESHEARE L
financial assets REL e - - - - 2,012 - - - 207 = 2,012
Exchange differences on translation  EAEEIERAESE
of overseas operations LEREE - - - - - 16,895 - - 16,895 o 16,895
Net income recognised BERERED
directly n equiy BhA 5 = ! - 201 168% - - 1% - 1%
Profit for the year EEEF - - - - - - - 12,229 12,229 (2.914) 9,315
Total recongised income and EEERAZENA
expenses for the year R = - - - 2,072 16,895 - 12,229 31,196 (2914) 28,282
Release of fair value gain on WETHLESEE
disposal of available-for-sales ZATHEREER
financial assets - - - - (8,386) - - = (8,386) - (8,386)
Reversal of fair value gain on YEREARATE
acquisition of an associate
(note 19) - - - - (2,794) - - = (2,794) = (2,794)
Exercise of 2009 Warrants
subscription rights (note 34(a))
(Hizt34) 504 4,35 - - - - - - 4,899 - 4899
Exercise of share options (note 35)  {T{EEERIE (Hf:35) 9 1,494 - - - - b - 1593 = 1,503
Transfer 1o reserves upon AfTfrRRESATRE
exercise of share option - 81 - - - - (81) - - - -
Transfer to reserves upon RORERESAZRE
cancellation of share option - - - - - - (62) 62 - - -
Share of reserve of an associate ~ HEEEATERE - - - - - 1,950 (100) - 1,850 — 1,850
Reduction in minority interests on ~ EMEEIBA A 5N
acquistion of additional interest XML VERR
in a subsidiary E&ED - - - - - - - - - (34,325) (34,325)
Capital contribution from a mnority HEARZ VSRR LE
shareholder of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 547 547
Employee share-based compensation B2 ZHRHZ [ F
expenses recognised BEZRERR - - - - - - 397 - 397 - 397
As 31 March 2008
18,191 729,399 5,160 8,038 15,004 44,053 3,275 (265,782) 557,338 2332 559,670
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

GENERAL INFORMATION

Xpress Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong. The name
of the Company was changed from “China Credit Holdings
Limited FE{EEEEARAE" to "Xpress Group Limited 45 &
EBER A" with effect from 28 May 2007. The address of
the Company’s registered office and principal place of business is
5th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King’s Road, North Point, Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) include investment holding,
property investment, travel related services, hotel operations,
securities investments, treasury investment and credit card
business.

The financial statements on pages 36 to 157 have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations (“Ints”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The financial statements also include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2008 were
approved for issue by the board of directors on 28 July 2008.

MBEHRNE

BE_ZTT/\F=A=+—HILEFE

-REH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

From 1 April 2007, the Group has adopted, for the first time, the
following new standards, amendment and interpretations, issued
by the HKICPA, which are relevant and effective for the Group’s
financial statements beginning on or after 1 April 2007:

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKFRS 7

HK(IFRIC) - Int 8

HK(IFRIC) = Int 9

HK(IFRIC) - Int 10

HK(IFRIC) - Int 11

Presentation of Financial
Statements — Capital Disclosures
Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Scope of HKFRS 2
Reassessment of
Embedded Derivatives

Interim Financial Reporting
and Impairment

HKFRS 2: Group and treasury
share transaction

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how
the results and financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period
adjustment is required.

2.1

2.2

HKAS 1 (Amendment) — Capital Disclosures

In accordance with the HKAS 1 (Amendment) — Capital
Disclosures, the Group now reports on its capital
management objectives, policies and procedures in each
annual financial report. The new disclosures that become
necessary due to this change in HKAS 1 are set out in note
45 to the financial statements.

HKFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures is mandatory
for reporting periods beginning on 1 January 2007 or later.
The new standard replaces and amends the disclosure
requirements previously set out in HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and Disclosures and has been
adopted by the Group in its consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008. All disclosures relating to
financial instruments including all comparative information
have been updated to reflect the new requirements. In
particular, the Group’s financial statements now feature:

MBEHRNE

BE_ZTT/\F=A=+T—HILFE

2.

RAFTREBET2EEHBH
&%

A-TTLFMNA-HE AKECER
RATIEEEGAMASEMLN_—F
TLFENA-AAZRABZASENR
FEEBZHATREA - BAIARERE

BE e BHRRZEN —
ENEHACCH YN EAWE
BEMBHRE SRIA:HE
ZRIZE TR

B8 (M HBHRE ERRBRE
REZEg)- ERE 25 2 B E
ZEFESH

A (M HBHmE BEREHRARTETAR
BREZEg)-

2EZR

BB (B HmE BT SR RORE
2EZET)-

REF105%

B (M BHERER BEERBRE
BLEg)- #ER|FE 2%
REF11% SERETRHRS

RN AT BB 15 R BT & A
38 B 2 45 R B TSR 2 BB 2
SIARABALE Bl BAHBEH
BIfEL B -

2.1 BEETERFEIS (1577F)
EAHE
RRBEBEHENFIR(EIIAR) -&
AT AEEREREFE %R
SHhHEHHEEAEEAE HERRE
Fre AR BB ST ERE1R 288 M
BEEZHBEEFEHN IS HRRN
45 -

22BN BHEEAEIR -2 @
TE KE
BEMBHREERFTR -—SBIA
RERN-_FTLF-A-HRBLZK
2 85 I e I B i o L TR & R A
RREFT RN EE ST ERIFE3250R
SRTA: 2 RBETAE 2K
BAE AKRBEERBE-_ZTTNF
ZHAZT-RLFEZRAUBRER
RmLEFER - BESB TR ZA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

(continued)

2.2 HKFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures

(continued)

e 3 sensitivity analysis, to explain the Group’s market
risk exposure in regards to its financial instruments,
and

e a maturity analysis that shows the remaining
contractual maturities of financial liabilities,

each as at the balance sheet date. The first-time application
of HKFRS 7, however, has not resulted in any prior-period
adjustments of cash-flows, net income or balance sheet line
items.

2.3 HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective

The Group has not early adopted the following HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2
(Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) = Int 12
HK(IFRIC) - Int 13
HK(IFRIC) - Int 14

Presentation of Financial Statement !
Borrowing Costs '

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements 2

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation'

Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations '
Business Combinations 2

Operating Segments '

Service Concession Arrangements 3

Customer Loyalty Programmes *

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a
Defined Benefit Asset Minimum
Funding Requirements and
their Interaction 3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

MBEHRNE

BE_ZTT/\F=A=+T—HILFE

RPHTIRBCEBITI2EBHBR
HEER (&)

23 EBMEHRERZEENBR

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs 2.

(continued)

2.3 HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective (continued)

Notes:

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2008

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2008

Among these new standards and interpretations, HKAS
1 (Revised) is expected to be relevant to the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendment to HKAS 1 - Presentation of Financial
Statements

This amendment affects the presentation of owner changes
in equity and introduces a statement of comprehensive
income. Preparers will have the option of presenting
items of income and expenses and components of other
comprehensive income either in a single statement of
comprehensive income with subtotals, or in two separate
statements (a separate income statement followed by a
statement of other comprehensive income). Thisamendment
does not affect the financial position or results of the
Precious Group but will give rise to additional disclosures.
The directors of the Company are currently assessing the
detailed impact of this amendment on the consolidated
financial statements.

The directors of the Company is currently assessing the
impact of the other new standards and interpretations
but are not yet in a position to state whether they would
have material financial impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

3.2

3.3

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for the investment properties and certain
financial assets and liabilities, which are stated at their fair
value. The measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management'’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 March each year.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the
power to control the financial and operating policies so as
to obtain benefits from their activities. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are excluded from consolidation from
the date that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Subsidiaries (continued)

3.3 B LA (E)

Business combinations (other than for combining entities
under common control) are accounted for by applying the
purchase method. This involves the revaluation at fair value
of all identifiable assets and liabilities, including contingent
liabilities of the subsidiary, at the acquisition date, regardless
of whether or not they were recorded in the financial
statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On initial
recognition, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are
included in the consolidated balance sheet at their fair
values, which are also used as the bases for subsequent
measurement in accordance with the Group's accounting
policies.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet, subsidiaries are carried at
cost less any impairment loss. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable at the balance sheet date.

Minority interest represents the portion of the profit or loss
and net assets of a subsidiary attributable to equity interests
that are not owned by the Group and are not the Group’s
financial liabilities.

Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from the equity
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. Profit
or loss attributable to the minority interests are presented
separately in the consolidated income statement as an
allocation of the Group’s results. Where losses applicable
to the minority exceeds the minority interests in the
subsidiary’s equity, the excess and further losses applicable
to the minority are allocated against the minority interest to
the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is
able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.
Otherwise, the losses are charged against the Group's
interests. If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, such
profits are allocated to the minority interests only after the
minority's share of losses previously absorbed by the Group
has been recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group is able
to exert significant influence, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of voting rights
but which are neither subsidiaries nor investment in a joint
venture. In consolidated financial statements, investment in
associates is initially recognised at cost and subsequently
accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity
method, the Group’s interest in the associate is carried
at cost and adjusted for the post-acquisition changes in
the Group’s share of the associate’s net assets less any
identified impairment loss, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). The consolidated income statement includes
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the associate for the year, including any impairment loss on
goodwill relating to the investment in associate recognised
for the year.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s interest in the
associate is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the
date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The cost of
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values,
at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed and equity instruments issued by the Group,
plus any costs directly attributable to the investment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.4

3.5

Associates (continued)

The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of
the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of
the investment. After the application of equity method,
the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise
an additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment
in its associates. At each balance sheet date, the Group
determines whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in associate is impaired. If such indications are
identified, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as being the difference between the recoverable amount
(see note 3.11) of the associate and its carrying amount.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in the income statement in the determination
of the Group’s share of the associate’s profit or loss in which
the investment is acquired.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Where the associate
uses accounting policies other than those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
adjustments are made, where necessary, to conform the
associate’s accounting policies to those of the Group when
the associate’s financial statements are used by the Group
in applying the equity method.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investment in an associate
is stated at cost less any impairment losses. The results of
associates are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable.

Foreign currencies translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Foreign currencies translation (continued)

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the balance sheet
date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HKS. Assets
and liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the closing
rates at the balance sheet date. Income and expenses have
been converted into the HK$ at the exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates, or at the average rates over the
reporting period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this
procedure have been dealt with separately in the translation
reserve in equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 April 2005
have been treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing rates. Goodwill arising on the acquisitions of foreign
operation before 1 April 2005 is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of the
foreign operation.

Other exchange differences arising from the translation of
the net investment in foreign entities and of borrowings
are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods,
rendering of services, the use by other of the Group’s assets
yielding interest, royalties and dividends, net of rebates and
discounts. Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(a)

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to customer.
This is usually taken as the time when the goods are
delivered and the customer has accepted the goods.

Sales of air tickets are recognised upon issuance of
the air tickets.

Sales of tours are recognised upon departure of the
tour group.

Sale of hotel accommodation is recognised upon
issuance of the hotel vouchers.

Credit card service income are recognised when
services are provided.

License fees are recognised over the license period.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance
from properties under operating leases, is recognised
on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

Revenue from hotel operation is recognised upon
provision of services.

Interest income from credit card receivables is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
on an accrual basis, except where a debt becomes
doubtful, in which case recognition of interest income
is suspended until it is realised on a cash basis.

Other interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

347

3.8

3.9

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed as incurred during the
year.

Goodwill

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill arising
on acquisition of a subsidiary. Accounting for goodwill
arising on acquisition of investment in an associate is set
out in note 3.4.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment over the Group's interest
in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities. The cost of the business
combination is measured at the aggregate of the fair
values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the
Group, plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination or investment.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 3.11).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination is
recognised immediately in income statement.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.

Prepaid land leases and property, plant and
equipment

Prepaid land leases represents up-front payments to acquire
long term interest in the usage of land. They are stated at
cost and charged to income statement over the remaining
period of the lease on a straight-line basis net of any
impairment losses.

Freehold lands are stated at cost and related carrying
amounts are not depreciated as no definite useful life for
freehold land.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Prepaid land leases and property, plant and BOAMNHELHHELURYXE K

equipment (continued)

Buildings held for own use which are situated on prepaid
land leases, where the fair value of the building could be
measured separately from the fair value of the prepaid land
leases at the inception of the lease, and other items of
plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives or the term of the relevant lease, if
shorter.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost over their
estimated useful lives, on the following bases and at the
following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the lease
term or 2%

on straight line method

Over the term of the

lease or 6.67% —20% on
straight-line method,
whichever is the shorter
20%-25% on reducing motor
balance method

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and
vehicles

The assets’ estimated useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposals is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
the income statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.10Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
on freehold land/owned or held under a leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use.

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as an investment property on a property-by-property basis.
Any such property interest which has been classified as
an investment property is accounted for as if it were held
under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is
stated at fair value. The carrying amounts recognised in the
balance sheet reflect the prevailing market conditions at the
balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair value
or the sale of an investment property is included in the
income statement for the period in which they arise.

Property which is held by the Group for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes is classified as owner-occupied property. The
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated in note 3.9 for buildings and prepaid land
lease elements of the owner-occupied property respectively.
When the owner-occupied property subsequently becomes
an investment property that will be carried at fair value,
any decrease in the carrying amount of the property is
recognised in the income statement. However, to the extent
that an amount is previously included in revaluation surplus
for the owner-occupied property, the decrease is charged
against that revaluation surplus. Any increase in the carrying
amount is recognised in income statement to the extent
that such increase reverses a previous impairment loss and
any remaining part of increase is credited directly to assets
revaluation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEHBE(4)
POLICIES (continued)
3.10Investment properties (continued) BI0REYE (&)

On subsequent disposal of the investment property which
was previously an owner-occupied property, the revaluation
surplus included in assets revaluation reserve is transferred
to retained earnings.

For properties held for sale which subsequently become
investment properties that will be carried at fair value, any
difference between the fair value of the property at the
date of change in use and its previous carrying amount will
be recognised in income statement.

3.11Impairment of assets

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiary, property,
plant and equipment, and interests in subsidiaries and
associates are subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they
are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset's carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount, unless the relevant asset
is carried at revalued amount under the Group’s accounting
policy. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment
and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill
in particular is allocated to those cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from synergies of the related
business combination and represent the lowest level within
the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purpose.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.11Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units, to
which goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially to
the carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment
loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-
generating unit, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value less cost
to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Animpairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
and only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

3.12 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

—  property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under
a finance lease (see note 3.10); and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

31284 (8&)

3.12 Leases (continued)

Classification of assets leased to the Group (Continued)

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon, at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is also
clearly held under an operating lease (see note 3.9).
For these purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by the Group,
or taken over from the previous lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, of such assets are included in fixed assets
and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are
recorded as finance lease payables.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under finance lease
agreements corresponds to those applied to comparable
acquired assets. The corresponding finance lease liability is
reduced by lease payments less finance charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged
to income statement over the period of the leases so as
to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
income statement on a straight line basis over the lease terms
except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised in the income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Leases (continued)

Assets leased out under operating leases as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are measured and
presented according to the nature of the assets. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the
same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is recognised
in income statement on a straight-line basis over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in income statement as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.

3.13Financial assets

The Group's accounting policies for financial assets other
than investments in subsidiaries and associates are set out
below.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories:
- financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

- loans and receivables

- available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition depending on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired and where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every
reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Regular way purchases of financial assets
are recognised on trade date. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in
the case of investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

3.13EWEE (&)

3. 13Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred. At each balance sheet
date, financial assets are reviewed to assess whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, impairment loss is determined and recognised based
on the classification of the financial asset.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments or financial guarantee
contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated as
a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not significantly
modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria
are met:

-  the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise
from measuring the assets or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis; or

-  the assets are part of a group of financial assets which
are managed and their performance evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy and information about the
group of financial assets is provided internally on that
basis to the key management personnel; or

- the financial asset contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3. 13Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in income
statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. These are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated to this category
or do not qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories
of financial assets. These are subsequently measured at fair
value. Gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value is
recognised directly in equity, except for impairment losses
(see the policy below) and foreign exchange gains and
losses, until the financial asset is derecognised, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in equity would be recognised in the income statement.
Interest calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the income statement. Upon disposal, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
transferred to the income statement.

For available-for-sale investments in equity securities that
do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, financial assets other than at
fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to determine
whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. If
any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured
and recognised as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

3.13LWEE (&)

3. 13Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and the default
of delinquency in payments are considered indicators that
the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The carrying amount of the assets is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the loss is recognised in income statement of the period
in which the impairment occurs. When a trade receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account
for trade receivables.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying amount of the
financial asset exceeding what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised at the
date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal
is recognised in the income statement in the period in which
the reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets in impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3. 13Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale
financial asset has been recognised directly in equity and
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, an
amount is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement as impairment loss. That amount is
measured as the difference between the asset’s acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in the income statement.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are not recognised in the
income statement. The subsequent increase in fair value is
recognised directly in equity. Impairment losses in respect
of debt securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in
fair value can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversal of
impairment losses in such circumstances are recognised in
the income statement.

Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed in
subsequent periods.

3. 14 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of
completion and applicable selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EEREEEHR (&)
POLICIES (continued)
3.15 Accounting for income taxes 3. 15% ’ﬁi £
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. BRAEHARELERER
Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those AHAEHEER,/RABECESR
EOPIE SRBME - p R HI Sk DA 5

obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
balance sheet date. They are calculated according to the
tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to
which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.
All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised
as a component of income tax expense in the income
statement.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to be
carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable
nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability is
settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised
in the income statement, or in equity if they relate to items
that are charged or credited directly to equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.16Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. For cash flow statement presentation, cash & cash
equivalents include bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

3.17Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on the
issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated with
the issuing of shares are deducted from share premium
(net of any related income tax benefit) to the extent they
are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

3. 18Retirement benefit costs and short term employee
benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
several defined contribution plans.

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for all of its Hong Kong employees. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EEREFRRME 4

POLICIES (continued)
3. I8BNEFEEREHESEF (&)

3. 18Retirement benefit costs and short term employee

benefits (continued)

Retirement benefits scheme (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries operate in
Singapore and Japan are required to participate in the
defined contribution plans regulated and managed by
the local government. The contributions to the defined
contribution plans are charged to the income statement in
the period to which the contributions relate.

Short term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

3.19Share-based employee compensation

All share-based payment arrangements granted after
7 November 2002 and not vested on 1 April 2005 are
recognised in the financial statements. The Group operates
equity-settled  share-based compensation plans for
remuneration of its employees.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of
any share-based compensation are measured at their fair
values. These are indirectly determined by reference to the
share options awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant
date and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.19Share-based employee compensation (continued)

All share-based compensation is ultimately recognised as
an expense in the income statement with a corresponding
increase in equity (employee share-based compensation
reserve). If vesting periods or other vesting conditions
apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number of share
options expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. Estimates are
subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the
number of share options expected to vest differs from
previous estimates. No adjustment to expense recognised
in prior periods is made if fewer share options ultimately are
exercised than originally vested.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in employee share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

3.20Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, borrowings, finance leases payables, amount due
to associates and convertible debentures. The Company’s
financial liabilities include trade and other payables amounts
due to subsidiaries.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual agreements of the instrument.
All interest related charges are recognised as an expense in
finance costs in the income statement.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& ] & M &%

For the year ended 31 March 2008 BE-_ETN\E=-A=+-AIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEHBE(4)
POLICIES (continued)

3.20Financial liabilities (continued) 32086 E (&)

Finance lease payables

Finance lease payables are measured at initial value less the
capital element of lease repayments (see note 3.12).

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

Convertible debentures

Convertible debentures issued by the subsidiary of the
Company that contain both financial liability and equity
components are classified separately into respective liability
and equity components on initial recognition. On initial
recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible debts. The difference between the
proceeds of the issue of the convertible debentures and the
fair value assigned to the liability component, representing
the call option for conversion of the debenture into equity, is
included in equity as convertible debenture equity reserve.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
equity component will remain in equity until conversion or
redemption of the debenture.

When the debenture is converted, the convertible
debenture equity reserve and the carrying value of the
liability component at the time of conversion, is transferred
to share capital and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. If the debenture is redeemed, the convertible
debenture equity reserve is released directly to retained
earnings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.20Financial liabilities (continued)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

3.21 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future uncertain events not wholly within the control
of the group are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the
allocation of purchase price to the assets and liabilities
acquired in a business combination. They are initially
measured at fair value at the date of acquisition and
subsequently measured at the higher of the amount
that would be recognised in a comparable provision as
described above and the amount initially recognised less
any accumulated amortisation, if appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2008
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESFIBRHME#)
POLICIES (continued)
3.22 Financial guarantee contracts 322HBEREN

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value
of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group's policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in income statement on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in income statement over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised if and when it
becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will call
upon the Group under the guarantee and the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the current
carrying amount i.e. the amount initially recognised less
accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

3.23Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
the Group has determined that business segments be
presented as the primary reporting format and geographical
segments as the secondary reporting format.

In respect of business segment reporting, unallocated
costs represent corporate expenses. Segment assets consist
primarily of investment properties, property, plant and
equipment, available-for-sale investments, financial assets
at fair value through profit and loss and, trade and other
receivables, and mainly exclude corporate assets. Segment
liabilities comprise operating liabilities and exclude items
such as corporate borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property,
plant and equipment, including additions resulting from
acquisitions through purchases of subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.23Segment reporting (continued)

In respect of geographical segment reporting, revenue is
based on the country in which the customer is located and
total assets and capital expenditure are where the assets
are located.

3.24 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)  directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the Company/
Group; (i) has an interest in the Company that gives it
significant influence over the Company/Group; or (iii)
has joint control over the Company/Group;

(i) the party is an associate;
(iii) the part is an jointly-controlled entity;

(iv) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company;

(v) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv)
or (v); or

(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Company/Group, or of
any entity that is a related party of the Company/
Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experiences and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 3.11. The recoverable amounts of the relevant cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates.

Estimate fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value of the Group’s investment
properties is current prices in an active market for similar
properties. In the absence of such information, the Group
determines the amount within a range of reasonable
fair value estimates. In making its judgement, the Group
considers information from a variety of sources including:

(i) current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature, condition or location (or subject to
different lease or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences.

(i) recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the transactions
that occurred at those prices; and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(iii) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts, and
(where possible) from external evidence such as
current market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that
reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is required
when determining whether a decline in fair value has been
significant and/or prolonged. In making this judgement, the
historical data on market volatility as well as the price of
the specific investment are taken into account. The Group
also takes into account other factors, such as industry and
sector performance and financial information regarding the
issuer/investee.

Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
investment property. In making its judgement, the Group
considers whether the property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets. Owner-occupied
properties generate cash flows that are attributable not
only to property but also to other assets used in production
or supply of goods or services.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. EEGH MG RAE (&)

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s 1.2 RAZERZETBREZEAH

accounting policies (continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use for administrative purposes. If these
portions can be sold separately (or leased out separately
under finance lease), the Group accounts for these portions
separately. If the portions cannot be sold separately, the
property is accounted for as an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use for administrative
purposes. Judgement is applied in determining whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as investment property. The Group considers each
property separately in making its judgement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8

% | & KA

For the year ended 31 March 2008 BE-_ETN\E-A=+-AIEE
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. MEREXEE
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents total Wa(MEAEELSER)NMERED &
invoiced value of goods supplied and income from provision of SERREERB2BANEE FAER
services. Revenue recognised during the year is as follows: WART
2008 2007
283 —ZELF
TER TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Sale of air tickets, tours and HERE IROTBRBAEFEBHRA
hotel accommodation 1,347,979 664,344
Credit card interest income ERRFMEWRA 4,661 5,254
Dividend income RS BA 7,022 1,241
Other interest income H At F 2 WA 6,072 10,465
Rental income HEBA 10,809 5,505
Credit card service income = A RIREE WA 5,332 2,375
Income from hotel operations B EEBRA 48,838 -
Total revenue el 1,430,713 689,184
6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 6. 2HWEH

Primary reporting format — business segments

The Group is organised on a worldwide basis into six (2007:
five) main business segments: travel related operations, credit
card operations, securities trading and investments, treasury
investment, property investment and hotel operations.

Travel related - provide travel related services in Hong
operation Kong and outside Hong Kong

Credit card - provide credit card services to individuals
operations and acquiring services for members

Securities trading
and investments

trading of securities

Treasury investment asset management and cash operations

Property investment letting properties

Hotel operations hotel operations in Japan

FEZHEA -RBETH

AREZE2REBIRANE(ZTTLEF:
AEDEREHAM  RERBEXY =8
REB BHFEBERRE HMERE Y
EREREEET

gl - RBERBENIME

% R4t R AR B AR5

ERFE®L — RENALRHEERR
AR5 R i Bk B 12 H1 Bk 75
BERS

BHEE - BEREH

R E

BERE - BEBERREEH

MERE - HEmE

BIE R - REAEEBEERD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices.

2008
It 2 )%
Securities
Travel Credit trading
related card and  Treasury  Property Hotel
operations  operations investment investment investment operations Elimination Group
KE  ERF R5EE \ A B
RBER £ ERE HERE NERE  EEEH b 158
HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL ThT Thn Thr T Thn T T
Revenue k&g
- External sales ~HiEE 1,347,979 9,993 1,022 6,072 10,809 48,838 - 1,430,713
- Inter-seqment sales -HHHEE 137 - - 33,806 1,208 - (35151) =
1,348,116 9,993 1,022 39,878 12,017 48,838 (35,151) 1,430,713
Segment results A5G (48569)  (13,162) 24,366 6,072 57,32 (1.611) 5,239 23,567
Unallocated revenue AT ENE 95,788
Unallocated expenses AFDERX (78,191)
Finance costs BERA (16,089)
Share of results of associates  JEGRIE A% (5,671) - - - - - - (5,671)
Profit before income tax WRErEBAT A 19,404
Income tax expense FEmx L (10,089)
Profit for the year EEaH 9,315
Segment assets PHEE 57838 12506 82603 614 309,648 156 - 463455
Associates Bend 24,460 - - - - - - 24,460
Unallocated assets ATAREE 451,906
Total assets EELE 939,821
Seqment liabilties 2¥aE (49,237) (2,569) = (822) (5,723) - - (58351)
Unallocated liahilities ATARER (321,800)
Total liabilities BELE (380,151)
Capital expenditure BRR 6,129 2 - - 4121 454 - 11,328
Unallocated capital ATARBRFR
expenditure 2,902
Total capital expenditure BREY A% 14,230
Depreciation il 2,299 976 - 684 715 2,468 - ALY)
Amortisation of prepaid RS THES
land lease LEH - - - - 661 - - 661
Other non-cash expenses MBS 1,19 - - 1,359 - - - 2,555
Unallocated non-cash expenses AT AR Z 3R £ % 1431
Total other non-cash expenses  EIFEE % 4% 3,986

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Revenue
- External sales
- Inter-segment sales

Segment results

Unallocated revenue
Unallocated expenses
Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year
Segment assets
Associates
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Capital expenditure

Unallocated capital
expenditure

Total capital expenditure

Depreciation
Unallocated depreciations

Total depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid

land lease
Other non-cash expenses

gt
—HoMEE
-DBRHE

BEES
PR

KPR
*FARES
RARA
EEBEATLE

B A S B AR A
FEHx it

BARX
AT AEERAX

CENEEE L

RFHRNE
FESE
EARELHES

A 2
EpFREX

MBEHRNE
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6. ?WER (&)
2007
“TTLE
Continuing operations
BREEEK
Travel Securities

related Credit card trading and ~ Treasury Property
operations  operations investments investment  investment Eliminations Group

IR B AF BHEE o o
BEXH #% kRE HERE MERE b3 r%E
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAL TAL TEL TER TR ThER TAL
664,344 7,629 1,241 10,465 5,505 - 689,184
162 152 - 28,348 1,413 (30,075) -
664,506 7,781 1,241 38,813 6,918 (30,075) 689,184
(10,529)  (12,829) 46,550 10,466 82,946 - 116,604
21,205
(78,552)
(17,453)
(1,249) - - - - - (1,249)
40,555
(24,474)
16,081
43,078 16,128 224,627 4,453 306,509 = 594,795
16,010 - - - - - 16,010
312,778
923,583
34,692 3,202 - 645 15,316 - 53,855
302,121
355,976
4,739 518 = 45 129,214 = 134,516
612
135,128
690 868 38 363 874 - 2,833
757
3,590
- - - - 530 - 530
- 26 - - - - 26




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

6.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Secondary reporting format — geographical segments

The Group's operations are located in four main geographical
areas. The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue by geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the
goods and services.

MBEHRNE

BE-FT/\FSA=t-BILEE
6. DHWER (&)
REZHTA-HERD

ARBEBETERREEME - TREH
ARBZEWEMSEIBZ RSN MA
At R Em R R RE o

2008 2007

—EENF ZEELF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT FAT

Hong Kong BB 26,450 13,102
North America* JEZE M * 6,200 8,205
Singapore N 682,204 509,671
Japan H & 715,859 158,206
1,430,713 689,184

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment
assets and capital expenditure, analysed by the geographical area
in which the assets are located.

ATRNHMEECEHEREARAREEME
MR o

Segment assets Capital expenditure
DEHEE BEARMX

2008 2007 2008 2007
“E2BNE _—ITTLHE  ZBENFE "—ITTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET TR
Hong Kong B8 499,964 375,131 2,608 1,647
North America =M 51,624 177,094 - 6
Singapore g 187,210 200,993 4,820 101,441
Japan HA 201,023 170,365 6,802 32,034
939,821 923,583 14,230 135,128

* North America — USA and Canada

*EEM-EERMER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

7. FINANCE COSTS

Finance charges on finance leases

Interest charges on financial
liabilities at amortised cost:

-Bank loans and overdrafts wholly
repayable within five years

-Bank loans not wholly repayable
within five years

—Convertible debentures (note 31)

—-Other loans

MEREMY
BE AR 2
CBMEEZFE
- EARAFRE2HEE
ZHRABERRBEY
—-BERAFERAZH
EBZBTER
—IRES (f17731)
—HiER

MBEHRNE
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7. WMERAR

2008 2007
—EENF e
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
20 42

2,748 1,468
6,219 4,772
7,101 8,737

1 2,434

16,089 17,453




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& 3R & M =%

For the year ended 31 March 2008 HE-— ST N\E=A=+—BItFE
8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. BRFTEBAIRF
2007
—ETs
HK$'000
FHET
Profit before income tax is arrived BRETSRIATA I EE MR
at after charging/(crediting): (GFAAT&EIE
Operating lease charges T RIEFLE
on land and buildings HAFZ 5,620
Depreciation weE
- Owned assets -BBEE 3,136
- Leased assets -HEEE 454
3,590
Amortisation of prepaid land FATTHASZ 2 BNHEE
leases (included in TS 2 B
administrative expenses) 530
Impairment losses on g5 RAMEYK
trade and other receivables FIBREEE 26
Impairment losses on EWER 2 BEEE
loan receivables -
Impairment losses on property, M - BERBEREER
plant and equipment -
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE  BER
plant and equipment FE BB 416
Auditors’ remuneration ZER B & 2,421
Staff costs including directors’ BEEXRA(BRESMHE)
emoluments (note 12) (Kiati12) 82,870
Exchange gain, net BE 5 Moo 7 BE (2,505)
Gain on disposal of an investment  HEDfHEE 2 b
property with deposit paid BEWE 2 W= (3,884)
Excess of the Group’s interest in SERWUETT 2 AT # Al N
the net fair value of acquiree’s BE BERIAEE
identifiable assets, liabilities and B A TR E R = K AN
contingent liabilities over cost (360)__
Write off of goodwill EEilcs 652
Write off of bad debts ERMG 4,691
Rental income from investment BEMERSKAR T H
properties less outgoings of 1,621,000 T (=TT L F :
HK$1,621,000 1,255,000/ L)
(2007: HK$1,255,000) (4,250)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5%

MBEHRNE

BE_FT/\F=ZA=1+—-HLFE

9. BB X

(2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in

the countries in which the Group operates.

Current tax

- Hong Kong

— Overseas

Deferred tax (note 32)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit
at applicable tax rates is as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax at Hong Kong profits
income tax rate of 17.5%
(2007: 17.5%)

Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of unused tax
losses not recognised

Tax effect of prior year's
unrecognised tax losses
utilised this year

Other temporary differences
not recognised

Tax effect of share of losses
of associates

Effect of different tax rates
of subsidiaries in other
jurisdictions

Income tax expense

BENE
17.5% (ZEE+LF :
BiE o BINEAMBEREANARAERRS

B8 T Bh AN 4R [ (b 5T FE AR B s FHR
17.5%) 2 B EEH

ENBERFATRTE -
2008 2007
= LUt —BRLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
REARIIE
-&% 23 2,256
— 85k 8,702 9,404
EIEHE (HiE32) 1,364 12,814
10,089 24,474
ISR mEeNafEROT
2008 2007
—EENE —TELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
B BT1S 5% A s A 19,404 40,555
BRITEHANER - BEE
FMERHE17 5%
—EELEFE 175%)5E 3,396 7,097
PAMBST H BB &
20,073 24,175
BERRBAZRIETE (14,852) (11,808)
RAERADARBEER
ISR 2 3,946 3,888
PHBEFERER
MIEBEZHE T2
(193) (183)
Eﬁﬂ*ﬁb uu Zﬁﬁﬁj‘%g
6 (30)
DIEBERBBEZH BT E
992 219
Hib el = ERK B
METRz &
(3,279) 1,116
FTie i m 10,089 24,474




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

10. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLETO THE EQUITY HOLDERS

11.

OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the equity holders of
the Company of HK$12,229,000 (2007: HK$40,112,000), a
profit of HK$5,912,000 (2007: loss of HK$3,183,000) has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$12,229,000
(2007: HK$40,112,000) and on the weighted average number of
1,807,472,000 (2007: 1,705,756,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company HK$12,229,000
(2007: HK$40,112,000) and on the weighted average number
of 2,128,370,000 (2007: 1,793,450,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based
on the following data:

Earnings

Profit attributable to equity RREIRERE A
holders of the Company, FEREH - ANGE
used in the basic and BRERKREERF

diluted earnings per
share calculation

MBEHRNE

BE_ZTT/\F=A=+T—HILFE

10. RDRAIRESEAELER

11.

AR BRERBEBAERGFERA G
F 512,229,000 T( Z T T + F:
40,112,000/ 7T ) * M 4 $(5,912,000/%
T(ZZTZF : F5183,183,0008 )2
BABERRB I BREPERE -

BRAEA

BRERBANIERNRGIREFE AR
16 % 712,229,000 T( Z BT £ F :
40,112,000 L) R FABEETEBRZ
0 15 801,807,472,0000( — T Z +
% :1,705,756,000/% )5t &Z -

SEEBREERFNDIBEBEARD A RER
BARHEEF12,229,0008 (25t
F :40,112,0008 L) R FAE BITL B
B hn#E F 5 2 B 2,128,370,0008 (= &
T4 1 1,793,450,0000% )5t & -

BREAREERNYZATHRENE

27

2008 2007
—EE)\F —2TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FH&T
12,229 40,112
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

11.

12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Number of shares

AAEEREREN
TR T2

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purposes
of the basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares:

Share options
Warrants

B

27 A0 A S
u%l * RS

Weighted average number of AEEREERN
ordinary shares for the purposes TR I 9 &
of diluted earnings per share

As the convertible debentures and share options of the
Company’ s subsidiaries outstanding during the two
years ended 31 March 2008 were anti-dilutive to the
Group ' s earnings per share, diluted earnings per share
were not adjusted in this respect for both years.

RBE#EIE 2 EE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

Short term employment benefits & Hi{E @EE A

- Basic salaries —EXEe

- Housing allowance —FEEER

Share options granted to RTEEREER
directors and employees pd g

Pension costs — defined R ARAE I B 7R
contribution plans — ERERE 2

MBEHRNE

BE_ZTT/\F=A=+—HILEFE

11.BREAN &)

K& ®E
2008 2007
—220\F —FELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR
1,807,472 1,705,756
179,900 69,781
140,998 17,913
2,128,370 1,793,450
RN PN AL SE e D At S0 Ll
BRABRERAEENGRAENTER
BANE AUARARERAEHE-T

ZENF=ZA=1T-BHIREFEzGKE

EAF

12.EBERANHAX(EREEMNSE)

2008 2007
—$ENE | —TTLE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
126,982 75,518
8,868 3,643

397 1,049

2,981 2,660
139,228 82,870




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 13. ESHM
Salaries, Contribution
allowances to defined
and benefits contribution
Fees in kind * plans Total
e R HEBMX
e REVEFN FEZHX #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET TET TET
2008 —EBN\F
Executive directors HITES
Chan Heng Fai fRiE 2 - 21,103 112 21,215
Chan Tong Wan bR 4ciE - 2,396 98 2,494
Chan Yoke Keow R ELE - 9,529 132 9,661
Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann BRI E - 896 67 963
Chan Tung Moe (note a) BR&GR (HfFa) - 1,133 28 1,161
Non-executive director FHITES
Fong Kwok Jen BBl 18 120 - - 120
Independent non- BYFHITES
executive directors
Wong Dor Luk, Peter T%% 120 - - 120
Da Roza Joao Paulo Da Roza Joao Paulo 120 - - 120
Chian Yat Ping, lvy #—F 210 - - 210
570 35,057 437 36,064
2007 —TTLEF
Executive directors HITES
Chan Heng Fai Ly - 25,910 132 26,042
Chan Tong Wan bR 408 - 1,944 78 2,022
Chan Yoke Keow bR EIE - 8,999 132 9,131
Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann =] = 830 62 892
Non-executive director FHITES
Fong Kwok Jen BBt 120 = - 120
Independent non- BYFHITES
executive directors
Lee Ka Leung Daniel
(note c) TRB(Hatc) 95 = = 95
Wong Dor Luk, Peter TE& 120 — = 120
Da Roza Joao Paulo Da Roza Joao Paulo 60 - - 60
Chian Yat Ping, lvy
(note b) #— T (Hiztb) 92 16 - 108
487 37,699 404 38,590
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

* This includes the amount calculated under HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment transaction” that is attributable to the directors.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration in respect of the years ended
31 March 2008 and 2007.

During the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007, no emolument
was paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

Notes:
(@)  Mr. Chan Tung Moe was appointed on 3 July 2007.

(b)  Ms. Chian Yat Ping, Ivy, was appointed on 25 September 2006.

() Mr. Lee Ka Leung Daniel retired on 23 August 2006.

14. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year included four (2007: four) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in note 13.
The emoluments payable to the remaining one (2007: one)
individual during the year are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and e
benefits in kind*
Contributions to defined

contribution plans

¥ E B RGET 8 2 R

AR R B R A

MBEHRNE

BE_FT/\F=ZA=1+—-HLFE

13.

14.

EEEMw)

* BEREE
B 50 B

BEEMBREERSE
FEESHA -

EARN

Hﬁi&Wﬁ%ﬁﬁJiEﬁﬁ%Mﬂ%
LRABHETAME -

BE_TZEN\FR_FTLF=ZA=1—
ALEFEE  AEEKRARE S AN E 0B
T ERARENBIRMBEAREER ZF
& RIFRREBME

i -

@ BERALR-FTLELA=AEEZ
£

(b) B-FLLR-FTTAENA-THAE

EF

() ZFRREER-ZZRFNA-T=H#
ffo

EREBEAEMS

EERBHAL

REERERREESFALRERA(Z
TTLE: ) EE AMSHBERBA
EXHEI3ZAMA - EREN T —

B(ZFTLF: —B)ALZMENT :

2008 2007

—EENF —TTLF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER TAT

1,290 1,105

12 12

1,302 1,117




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

14. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

Five highest paid individuals (continued)

The emoluments of the remaining one highest paid individual fell
within the following band:

Emolument band B < & &
HK$1,000,001 to 1,000,001/8L 2
HK$1,500,000 1,500,000/ 7

*  This includes the amount calculated under HKFRS 2 “Share-
based payment transaction”.

During the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007, no emolument
was paid to the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office.

MBEHRNE

BE_ZTT/\F=A=+T—HILFE

14 EREBAEME (&)

AEREHAL (M)
BT —BREHFALZMENTFTIRE :

Number of individuals

A
2008 2007
—EENF —ERLF

* BREBEBEEMBREENFE2HRMN
Befn 3% | 2 5KR

BE T )\EN_TT+E=ZA=+—
BEFEE  A5EHERNTAESHAL
TRHERNMSEARBEL - MAXEE
sk BB AR B B 2 22 ) - SkEEBRA(E o

87

s “REN\EER

Annual Report 2008



2

/)

REEEAR

Xpress Group Limited

88

Group

At 1 April 2006

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31
March 2007
Opening net book amount
Additions
Arising on acquisitions of
subsidiaries (note 41)
Disposals
Exchange realignment
Depreciation

Closing net book amount
At 31 March 2007

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 March 2008

Opening net book amount

Additions

Arising on acquisitions of
subsidiaries (note 41)

Disposal of a subsidiary
(note 42)

Disposals

Exchange realignment

Impairment

Depreciation

Closing net book amount
At 31 March 2008
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net book amount

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

8.3, 5%
23]
<5 o
W
%Ol
%
B

Jn

|

m

REFE

HE-_ZZ+F=A
=+ HILEE

HYIERE R E

NE

B U BE B /B A )
mE £ (fiF41)
HE

P 5 3 28

e

M RmEFE

R=BRLE=A
={-n

A

2B RAME

% E

BE-ZEZEN\F=8
S = [E| e 42 =

R FE

NE

B U BE B /2 A A
mEEE (fiF41)
HE— B AR
(Kiit42)

HE

b 5 %

B

e

MR FE

R=-ZBEENF=A
=

AR
RErERRE

SRR E

MBEHRNE
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1I5.9% BERRKE

AEE

Furniture,

fixtures

Land and Leasehold and motor
buildings improvements vehicles Total

AEY  HA - ZE )

T REF R kA& #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
11,348 3,742 27,257 42,347
(495) (1,250) (20,465) (22,210)
10,853 2,492 6,792 20,137
10,853 2,492 6,792 20,137
- 996 2,651 3,647
247 62 1,076 2,380
& (399) (84) (483)
4 14 288 306
(270) (935) (2,385) (3,590)
11,829 %, 2130 8,338 22,397
12895 4,110 30,411 47,116
(766) (1,880) (22,073) (24,719)
11,829 2,230 8,338 22,397
11,829 2,230 8,338 22,397
2,629 6,482 5,119 14,230
28,103 4,214 1,487 33,804
= = (66) (66)
- (1,377) (464) (1,841)
5,207 1,223 656 7,086
(1,196) - - (1,196)
(1,124) (1,106) (4,912) (7,142)
45,448 11,666 10,158 67,272
49,148 14,621 34,271 98,040
(3,700) (2,955) (24,113) (30,768)
45,448 11,666 10,158 67,272




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& ] & M &%

For the year ended 31 March 2008

BE_ZT/\F=ZA=1—HLFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) ~ 15. W% - BER R % (41

The carrying amount of land and buildings held by the Group are A % BRI RETZREESD M
analysed as follows:— Lim
Land and buildings
T REF
The Group The Company
rEE NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—BENFE _TTtEE ZBENF _ITTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET TR FHET
In Hong Kong, held under REBFRA 2 AL
medium term leases 10,312 10,582 - -
In Singapore, held under RETINERAE 2 REAA
long term leases 2,815 - - -
In Japan, freehold R BZRZ KA SR 32,321 1,247
45,448 11,829 = -
As at 31 March 2008, certain of the Group’s land and buildings R-ZZEENF=ZA=+—H ' K&EBE
with a net book amount of approximately HK$47,783,000 (2007: % (E 447,783,000 T(Z 2T + & :
HK$10,853,000) has been pledged to secure the Group's bank 10, 853 %ﬁ)Z%?iﬁﬂ&@%Eﬁ?ﬁi
borrowings (note 29). BABR{E B (fE29) -
The net book amount of furniture, fixtures and motor vehicles G - HERRENERIERE S5
included an amount of HK$2,313,000 (2007: HK$2,198,000) in BEHRETHELE2313,0008T(—2Z
respect of assets held under finance leases. +4 :2,198,000/87T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Company

At 1 April 2006
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 March 2007
Opening net book amount
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At 31 March 2007
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 March 2008
Opening net book amount
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At 31 March 2008
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

MBEHRRNE

BE_ZTT/\F=A=T—HILEFE

ZNN|

BE_TTLF=-A=1t—HULFE
HA 1) AR T B

NE

&

nE

B &R EFE

R=ZFLF=HET5H
#r

38 2 53
2B |

i

AR F A
BE_22/\5£=A=+t-ALEE
MY AREFE

AE

HE
e

AR R E

R=2FENF=A=1+—8H
FX AR
2FE

R R E

1I5.9% BERSKEF)

Furniture,
fixtures and
motor vehicles

Bt KE
RA=
HK$’000
TER

4,007
(2,683)

1,324

4,075
(3,027)

1,048

1,048

1,949
(210)
(685)

2,102

4,237
(2,135)

2,102



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

16. PREPAID LAND LEASES
Group

Bz

16.

The Group’s prepaid land leases and their net book value are

analysed as follows:

Medium term leases held
in Hong Kong

Long term leases held
outside Hong Kong

Opening net carrying amount

Additions

Annual charges of prepaid
operating lease payment

Exchange realignment

Closing net carrying amount

Prepaid land leases
- Non-current portion
- Current portion (note)

RERRA  PHBD

REBRINGE 2 RBHEL

AR EFE
NE
BNEEHERAZFEXH

B 3 3%
HREEFE
ENEE+ES

—JEREE M
— R WM (M)

Note: The current portion of prepaid land included in trade and other
receivables, deposits and prepayments (note 26).

As at 31 March 2008, the Group’s prepaid land leases of
HK$20,221,000 (2007: HK$20,751,000) have been pledged to
secure the Group’s bank borrowings (note 29).

MBEHRNE

“FE\FSA=-ALER

ENHEELHES

AEH
AEEHELERKENEERER
E - HEEEATMT

2008 2007
—2ENE e
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TER THET
20,221 20,751
8,478 -
28,699 20,751
20,751 21,281
7,935 -
(661) (530)
674 -
28,699 20,751
28,031 20,221
668 530
28,699 20,751

Wit ANEERERRZRBDHIEFTA

BHREMEYTE  ReREMK

B (KisE26) /A -
R-ZEZNE=ZA=+—HB KNEFHEH
HE LA £20,221,0008 L( T+
% :20,751,000/8 L) E T AEAEAR
KB ZRITEE(HFE29) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as

investment properties.

Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the balance sheet

can be summarised as follows:

Fair value

Carrying amount at
the beginning of
the year

Acquisitions of
subsidiaries (note 41)

Additions

Disposals

Net gain from fair
value adjustments

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at
the end of the year

AFE
RERZ BEE

W BB B R R (Krat41)
NE
HE
AHERR W FHE

B 3 8 B

RERZIREE

The Group's interests in investment properties are held under the

following lease terms:

Medium-term leases

in Hong Kong
Long-term leases

outside Hong Kong
Freehold outside Hong Kong

BEZTHBOME

BRI RPBOME

BIBIAINZ KA KT F

MBEHRRNE

BE_ZTT/\F=A=T—HILEFE

17. REME

AEEMBNEEEERA#HE ARRE
TRASEEARARERE I REMEE N

AFEMANE LA

B o

REREMEA

EEERBRTRIZEEBESAHL

mE

Group

AEHE
2008 2007
—BENE —TELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERT
275,705 55,769
9,316 35,735
27,284 93,366
(125,661) -
69,690 78,351
12,156 12,484
268,490 275,705

AEBERBETIBNFRRAIRENE

s
2008 2007

—BBNE ZTETLE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FiEn FiEn

36,052 31,158

145,098 175,100

87,340 69,447

268,490 275,705




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Company

Fair value NFE

Carrying amount at the REF Z BREE
beginning of the year

Net gain/(loss) from fair NEEARZF
value adjustments Yz, (B18)

Carrying amount at RERZREE

MBEHRNE

BE_ZTT/\F=A=T—HILFE

17. REME (&)
EAYNG

the end of the year

The Company s investment properties are held under the
following lease term:

EREZTFHBONE

Medium-term leases
in Hong Kong

The investment properties in Hong Kong of the Group and
the Company were revalued as at 31 March 2008 by Messrs.
Jones Lang LaSalle Sallmanus Limited, an independent firm of
professional valuer who hold recognised and relevant professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of the investment property being valued, on an open
market basis based on recent market transactions.

2008 2007
—BBNE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET
900 1,200

300 (300)

1,200 900

ARARARETNIHROEHFAEIRENSE

2008
=S
HK$°000
TER

1,200

2007
—EELF
HK$'000
FET

900

ARERAAARBEZRENER -F
ZNF=ZA=+-—HABYLEXREETMH
ERTAMARRFIRARMSEEL K
BOLHTEXETEMR - REETHSA
HMBELAREXERER  LERTHA%E
BHSGEDEMELIRAENEZGE

w5 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group's investment properties situated in Canada, were
revalued as at 31 March 2008 by Messrs. Johnston, Ross & Cheng
Ltd. and Messrs Colliers International Realty Advisors Inc., an
independent firm of professional valuers who hold recognised and
relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the
location and category of the investment property being valued,
on an open market basis based on recent market transactions.
Investment properties situated in the Singapore were revalued as
at 31 March 2008 by Messrs. GSK Global Pte Ltd., an independent
firm of professional valuers who hold recognised and relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the
location and category of the investment property being valued,
on an open market basis based on recent market transactions.
Investment properties situated in USA were revalued as at 31
March 2008 by Babcock & Macksoud Real Estate Appraisers and
Consultants, an independent firm of professional valuers who
hold recognised and relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the location and category of the investment
property being valued, on an open market basis based on recent
market transactions. Investment properties situated in Japan
were revalued as at 31 March 2008 by Hokkaido Kantei Co. Ltd.,
an independent professional valuers who hold recognised and
relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the
location and category of the investment property being valued,
on an open market basis based on recent market transactions.

The valuation is the valuers' opinion of the current open market
value, itimplies “the best price” at which an interest in a property
might reasonably be expected to be sold at the date of valuation,
assuming:

a. awilling seller, willing buyer;

b. noaccountis to be taken of an additional bid by a purchaser
with a “special interest”;

c¢. that prior to the date of valuation, there had been a
reasonable period (having regard to the nature of the
property and the state of the market) for the proper
marketing of the interest, for the negotiation and agreement
of price and terms for the completion of the sale; and

d. that the price reflects the state of the market and other
circumstances at the date of valuation.

MBEHRRNE

BE_ZTT/\F=A=T—HILEFE

17. REME (#)

FEBURMERZBINEENER-Z
ENFZA=Z+—HABUEERAET
Messrs. Johnston, Ross & Cheng Ltd.
NMMessrs Colliers International Realty
Advisors Inc & 2 F T 45 2 E W K 530 BB
BRHETEMR - ZEHETHEAERER
REXEREFR VERNTHAREBHT
HEDEREHREEDE 2 HELR -
MRHFME L BREMER_STTNEFE=A
St-HAhBILEEMEETGSK Global
Pte Ltd EEARMIHEEL KEAATIHR
SETEM ZABETHRARBLAREE
ERER WYENTHAEREXEED
EREMERRBMECHELR URE
BzRENMENR_TETZNF=A=+—H
8 37 E ¥ f E17Babcock & Macksoud
Real Estate Appraisers and Consultants
BARMZEENKBAAT ISR 5 HET
B ZEETHAEBLAREEERE
B WERNTHAEREXGENERE
WwREEEMFE 2 HELER URBRZE
EMER_ZENF=ZA=+—HHBI
=¥ (5 {E1THokkaido Kantei Co. Ltd.1&
RAMBEETKBOHMERHETE
e ZEETHAEBAREEERE
B WERNTHAEREEXMENERE
R FEDE ELR

o

EXHEDNEEARNRAE RN SERE
ZRA HERRNETHEER  ZMWFE
AABREMNREERLE LR :

)
iy

BETREREED
b. BEFZBHNEHTEFELEA
« WNEEBZA BEAAEER(EFEE

BEMEUERMIGER)ETEN K
ER R B R R

d. ZERRREEERAZMEELLE
A%



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

17.

18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Rentalincome earned by the Group from its investment properties,
which are leased out under operating leases, amounted to
HK$10,809,000 (2007: HK$5,505,000).

No income or direct operating expenses were recognised during
the year for investment property that was unlet during the year
(2007: Nil).

As at 31 March 2008, certain of the Group's investment
properties with carrying amount of HK$193,618,000 (2007:
HK$262,100,000) have been pledged to secure the Group’s bank
borrowings (note 29).

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE

MBEHRNE

B=

17.

—TE\E=A=t-AILEE

RENME (&)

AEBRARRREREMEMRIR A
LU A 510,809,000 T( —ZTE+ F :
5,505,000 ) F MAEBREWEEE
EHEOEL -

FABERZINARBLEZREMERR
FARASEELERI(ZZESTLF -
&) o

R-ZEZENF=ZA=+—H ' A&EEBET
BRM{EA193,618,0008 L( —TZF+F
262,100,000 L) 2 EMELD THEAF -
BAER 2 RITEE (K:E29) -

FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

Company

Investments at cost
Unlisted shares
Less: Provision for impairment

Amounts due from subsidiaries
within one year
Interest bearing at
10% per annum
Non-interest bearing

Less: Provision for impairment

Amounts due to subsidiaries
within one year

RE - BHRA
LMD
OB E R

—FERKEBA R RRK
REFER10%:TE

)

R ERE

—FRERIERRRE

18 RWEAR R HELARARX

ROABRHBAERE)
EAYNG

2008 2007

—BE2NE —TTLF

HK$000 HK$'000

TER TET

81,212 94,032

(76,565) (79,814)

4,647 14,218

351,329 300,095

324,520 265,215

675,849 565,310

(308,500) (308,505)

367,349 256,805

139,077 56,075
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2008 are as

follows:
Place/country of
incorporation/ Particulars of
operation and issued share capital/
Name kind of legal entity  registered capital
ifEL EEE/ BRTRA/
£ BxREEEREH EMELEH
A.F.T Travel Management  Singapore, limited $$500,000

Services Pte. Ltd liability company 500,00037 1% 7T

HMBEERAF
593,700,000

Anglo-French Travel Singapore, limited

Pte. Ltd* liability company 3,700,00057 0% T
MR ERAR

China Credit Card Limited* British Virgin Islands, Us$100

limited liability company 1005 7T

RERXEERRAA

5§13,417,282
13,417,282 K 7T

China Credit Singapore
Pte Ltd

Singapore, limited
liability company
MIEAERAR
China Xpress Pte. Ltd* $$5,670,002
5,670,0023T 1K T

Singapore, limited
liability company

MR ERAR
eBanker USA. Com. Inc. United States of America, ~ Common stock
limited liability company US$115,487
FNREFEAERAR One Series A
preferred stock
(note a)
LBiR115,487% T
—RAZFI B %R
(Hiita)
Global Growth Management, Canada, limited US$1,000
Inc. liability company 1,000% 7T
MEARERAT]

MBEHRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-ALEE

1I8.RHBAR 2% HWEATAX
ROERHBLARDRE) (&)

RZBZENF=ZA=+—HZITEWMBR

AERMT :

Percentage of
issued capital/
registered capital
held by the Company

RRAAMRERTRE/
aMEXFIL

Directly Indirectly

B 54

% %

- 100

- 60

- 91

100 -

- 98.8

- 82

- 100

Principal activities

TERE

Travel and tourist agent

KERE

Travel and tourist agent
R

Investment holding
REHER

Investment holding
REHER

Investment holding
REHER

Financial investment

Property investment

NERE



FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

&R

Heng Fung Capital
Company Limited
BEREERAT

Global Med
International Limited

Heng Fung Capital
(Canada) Inc.

Heng Fung Underwriter
Limited

Heng Li Card Consultancy
& Services (Shenzhen)
Co. Ltd.

BRR & AR
(RINBRARA

Hotel Room Xpress Ltd

Ichi Ni San Enterprises
Company Limited

Japan Xpress Hong
Kong Limited
(formerly known as
Hong Kong Express
Holidays Limited)
(IRATERES
ARAR)

Place/country of
incorporation/
operation and

kind of legal entity
HMAL/ E$n%/
BXREEEREN

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

ERARAT

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

RERXEERRAA

Canada, limited
liability company

JIEYNI:ING

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

ERARAT

The People’s Republic of
China, wholly-owned
foreign enterprise

REARLNE
NEBALE

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

ERARAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

ERARAT

Hong Kong,
limited liability
company

ERARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008
18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
Particulars of

issued share capital/
registered capital

BRIRE/
EMERER

HK$2

AT

US$1,000
1,000% 7T

91
1MEART

HK$2
2T

HK$ 1,000,000

1,000,0007% 7T

HK$500,000

500,000% 7

HK$10,000
10,0008 7T

HK$ 1,260,240
1,260,2407% 7T

MBEHRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-AILEE

1. RHMBAR 2% HWEATAX
ROBERHBLARRE) (&)

Percentage of
issued capital/
registered capital

held by the Company  Principal activities

RDNFFMRERTRE/
dMEREI TERH
Directly Indirectly
B G
% %
100 - Securities investment
BARE
- 100 Investment holding
REER
100 - Property investment
NERE
100 - Securities trading
EHEE
- 100 Card processing
ERATEE
- 100  Hotel room agent
BERRERE
100 - Property holding
NERE
- 100 Travel and tourist agent

KERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

MBEHRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-AILEE

1. RMB AR 2% HWEATAX
ROERHBLARRE) (&)

Name

2R

Japan Xpress
Hospitality Limited

Kabushiki Kaisha Aizuya

Keng Fong America
Enterprises Limited
BEXACRERAF

Keng Fong Foreign
Investment Co. Ltd

Makino Air Travel
Service Co. Ltd.

Sapporo Holdings Inc.

Singapore Service
Residence Pte Ltd*

SingXpress Investment
Pte Ltd*

SingXpress International
Pte Ltd

Suntec 23 Floor Pte Ltd

Place/country of
incorporation/
operation and

kind of legal entity
HMRIL/ EXLH/
BRREERERR

Japan, limited
liability company
AZARAH

Japan, limited
liability company
RARRAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
EEARAH

United States of
America, limited
liability company

ZNZRREERAT

Japan, limited
liability company

AABRAF

Japan, limited
liability company

AABRAH

Singapore, limited
liability company

FMEERRA

Singapore, limited
liability company

FMEERRA

Singapore, limited
liability company

FMEAERRA

Singapore, limited
liability company

FMEERRA

Particulars of

issued share capital/

registered capital
BRARE/
EMEXEH

JPY495,000,000

495,000,000 A

JPY30,000,000
30,000,000E

HK$ 1,500,000
1,500,000 7T

US$250,000
250,000/ T

JPY77,564,000
77,564,000H

JPY3,000,000
3,000,0008

$$1,250,000
1,250,000% 3% T

$$800,000
800,000 1% T

5§2
WK T

$$2,600,001
2,600,001 KT

Percentage of
issued capital/
registered capital
held by the Company

Principal activities

RDNAMBERTRE/
EREXEALL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
=83 3
% %
- 100 Investment holding
RERR
- 100 Hotel holding company
BERRAA
100 - Investment holding
REER
- 100  Property investment
and development
NERERER
- 56  Travel and tourist agent
i Aag:
- 100  Hotel holding company
BERERAR
- 100 Property holding
MEER
- 100 Investment holding
REER
- 100 Property holding
MEER
- 100 Property holding

VESED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

1S RMBAR 2 HEATAKX
ROERWBDERE) (4)
Percentage of

issued capital/
registered capital

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place/country of
incorporation/
operation and

Particulars of
issued share capital/

s “RENEER

Annual Report 2008

Name kind of legal entity  registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
AR/ ERLH/ BRTRE/ EDAAMRERITRE/
2R BRREERRER EMEXEH dMEREDL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# 3
% %
Sure World Capital British Virgin Islands, US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
Limited limited liability 50,000% 7T REAR
company
AERAEBERAA
Wai Kin Investment Hong Kong, limited HK$600,000 100 - Investment holding
Company Limited liability company 600,000%7T REER
BREXARLA BRERLA
Xpress Credit Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$1,260,000 - 100 Investment holding
liability company 1,260,000/ 7T REER
ERERLNA
Xpress Finance Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary = 72 Credit card services
liability company HK$133,866,230 ERTRS
ERARAT L18R133,866,230 T
Xpress Travel Limited Japan, limited JPY80,000,000 - 100 Travel and tourist agent
(formerly known as liability company 80,000,0000E IR RE
Nihon Kotsu Travel AARRAR
Services Co. Ltd.)
(B178 ANihon Kotsu Travel
Services Co. Ltd.)
Notes: Hiat -

As at 31 March 2007, the Group held a 35% interest in eBanker
USA.com, Inc. (“eBanker”) and control equivalent proportion of
voting right. In addition, the Group held one share of eBanker
series A preferred stock, which entitles the Group to 50% of the
vote for the Board of Director of eBanker. Therefore, eBanker
was accounted for as a subsidiary as at 31 March 2007. On 11
May 2007, eBanker offered a right issue to its shareholders on a
pro-rata basis at a price of US$0.25 per rights share on the basis
of ten rights shares for every three eBanker shares held by the
shareholders of eBanker as at May 26, 2007. The Group applied
excess rights shares and the interest in eBanker was increased from
35.03% to 81.84% upon completion of the rights issue on 19 June
2007.

R-_ZTE+HE=R=1+—H A£EEH
eBanker USA.com, Inc.([eBanker])35%
B WIEGIRSFLH 2R ERE - SN
REFEH —Rebanker ARSI E LR
ZRDIR T AEES0% eBankerEE €&
ZEfE o F eBankerR—ZTEZTELE=H
=t+—BIENBRAR - R-_ZTZTLFH
B+ —H ' eBanker#Z i il 1 LA & B% 4 A%
BRP0.25FE TR ERRBEEHR  HER
eBankerBER_ZTLFRA-FTHE
%8 = ReBankerlE R+ RERK KRG - A
SERBRBEUERRD - MreBankerZ
mH35.03%EME_SSLF A A+NA
HRR TR % 281.84% ©
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BE—

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 18.
FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

& These subsidiaries are not audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong

or other Grant Thornton International member firms and the net

assets of which amounted to approximately 5% (2007: 10%) of

the Group’s net assets.

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Unlisted shares, at cost

Share of net assets
Goodwill on acquisition

Less: Impairment losses

Amounts due from
associates within
one year

Amounts due to associates
over one year

As at 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2007, amounts due from
interest free and repayable on

associates are unsecured,
demand.

As at 31 March 2008 and 2007, amounts due to associates are
unsecured, interest free and not repayable within one year.

100

LMD - RAAE

NEEEFE
WEELZHE

B OREEE

BEATRHK
(—#REI5)

— 4 L L R
ARRE

EH%#E%%W?I

ENFZA=t—HLEE

RHMBARZERZ HEAEARX
lTA/ IIHKWE;\ ZI'}\IE) /g)

TRIHEERRIEVELAEBMFEXELRE
RABDFEEZARBMBAR - BEERA
WA BRARENBEHREBARTE

O GEWBARYEHEREYE ST
FEMOERERELRER  EFEE
EAEEFEE A% (T F:

10%) °
19. RBELR 2R
Group Company
AEE NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—2ENE _—TTHHF | ZBENF CZBBLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TERT FERT T
- - 5,385 5,385
18,962 14,965 - -
5,498 1,045 = -
24,460 16,010 5,385 5,385
- = (5,385) (5,385)
24,460 16,010 = -
7,775 6,577 1,924 1,521
1,570 236 587 =
R-EENF=A=t—"HERZ-ZELF=RA=
T—H BERRARFLERR  2ERARE
HEE -

pE SR
° Dﬂkll

ZENFR_BELF=A=T—H &R
ERRRA T EE ﬁ%&ﬂ%m FAE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the principal associate at 31 March 2008 are as

ﬁH%#IH%Bﬁ?I

BE_ZT\F=-A=1—HLFE

19. RE QT 2 & (4)
R-BENEZASf A2 XEHE

follows: AREEMT :

Particulars of Country of Percentage of
Name issued shares held incorporation interest held
£ FEERTROZEN HERAVER FEESZESL
SingXpress Ltd. ("SingXpress”) Ordinary share of Singapore 30.9%

no par value

EEEZEAK g

RSI International System Inc. (“RSI") Ordinary share of Canada 30%

no par value

BEEZEBR mEX

SingXpress is listed in Singapore, the market value of the listed
shares held by the Group as at 31 March 2008 is approximately
HK$14,298,000 (2007: HK$22,202,000).

RSl is listed in Canada, the market value of the listed shares held
by the Group as at 31 March 2008 is approximately HK$6,610,000
(2007: Nil).

During the year, SingXpress offer a rights issue to its shareholders
on a pro-rata basis at a price of $$0.05 per rights share on the
basis of one rights share for every one SingXpress shares. The
Group’s interest in SingXpress was remained unchange upon
completion of the rights issue. During the year ended 31 March
2008, the Group disposed of its 14.71% interest in SingXpress.
A profit on partial disposal of the associate of HK$1,217,000 was
recognised in the consolidated income statement during the year
ended 31 March 2008.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group increased its
equity interest in RSI from approximately 19% to approximately
30% and RSI was reclassified from available-for-sales financial
assets to interest in associates, and the respective fair value gain
of HK$2,794,000 included in the investment revaluation reserve
was reversed during the year.

The summarised financial information of the Group’s associates
extracted from their annual reports are as follows:

Assets BE
Liabilities BE
Revenues WA
(Loss)/Profit (&), &7

SingXpressTIR TN £ - AEBMFEE™M
BN _—_ZEENF=A=+T—HRZTEER
14,298,000 ;L( = ZF T + F : 22,202,000/
JT) °

RSIVAMEALEM AEEMBHHEEWMR
WR-ZBEENFE=A=+T—-BB2HEELEA
6,610,000 7TC(—FZF£F : &) o

FA - SingXpressi& it 30 bA 5 B # A% 3% 5 0.05
MMETRAERREEHRR  EXEREGRA—
B&SingXpressfE MR — R LA AR (D o M EAR TEAX
% REBPSIingXpressZ R EIFTE - PE
E-EENF=A=tALFERN  AKEY
= /\EASIngXpressZM 71%%5?% o Fin & #Z
NG /ﬁnT'JE’\%Z?t ZETNEF=R=+
—BIEFEHE KRER®ERR1,217,0007T °

REE_SENF-A=+—HILFER &%
BARSIZBR A HAI19%EE4I30% @ HRSI
EE‘MﬁWE MEERENBREAREE AL
Lo vHE.:Jr)\&éfEfa1n%1%22,794,000/%7‘c
ZAFEKEENEANERE -

RBRAAREBE A FIFRZMBENE RN
T

2008 2007
—EENFE —ERTAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FET
85,436 47,287
23,970 11,402
294,059 42,986
(22,772) 5,952
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19.

20.

102

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

During the year, the Group increased its equity interest in RSI
from approximately 19% to approximately 30% and RSI was
reclassified from available for sale financial assets to interests
in associates. On acquisition of an additional interests in RSI,
goodwill of approximately HK$5,498,000 was recognised at the
date of acquisition.

The associates of the Group listed above, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

SingXpress and RSI have a financial year end of 31 December which
is not conterminous with the Group. For the purpose of applying
the equity method of accounting, the financial statements of
SingXpress and RS for the year ended 31 December 2007 have
been used, and appropriate adjustments have been made for
the effects of significant transactions between that date and 31
March 2008.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

On 28 August 2006 and 8 January 2007, the Group entered into
sale and purchase agreements with a vendor to acquire investment
properties in Singapore at a cash consideration of Singapore
dollars (“S$") 13,282,000 (equivalent to HK$65,748,000) and
(“S$") 270,000 (equivalent to HK$1,389,000) respectively. As at
31 March 2008, HK$15,671,000 (2007: HK$7,664,000) was paid
by the Group as a deposit for this acquisition. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the transaction will be completed
on or before 30 November 2013.

E!H%#IH%IW*I

BE—

19.

20.

ENEFZAZ+-ALFE
RBEXT 2 (4)
RN Y FES.SNPAIEN £:3:E

19%IEE4)30% * HRSIAAEEESHE
ESHOBABE N ER - NUERSIZE
SMEZE TR - FAUNEE B RER A E 45,498,000
/%E"

TRIBEZRRIEFEAKALRFRE
REIAKEBANDEEFEZASKHE
TERERT  -EEZRA MANEME
ERAERBEREBENTTE -

SingXpressERSIZHBREEMAET A=
+—8 " BRIRAEE - SingXpress &RSI
EREBE_ET+F+_A=+—HIL
FEZHBHRREAERGE YER
ZHEZZENF=A=1+—HHHM#E
TEARGZZEBEHEL AR

REES

RZBEERFNA-TNBR-_ZEZ+t
F—ANR AEBER-—FEFHITUE
EREARETNFEZ2LEDE Re
KRED A A13,282,000% % T (& RN
65,748,0007% 7T ) %270,000%7 10 3% 7T (48
B 141,389,000 L) c RZEENF=A
=+—H AEBEE15,671,0008w(=
TELF 7,664, ooo;‘%ﬁ)fﬁ%uﬁzﬁ%}ﬁé o
ARRESZERE BERZHR=
F+—B=1+HEARZK °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Group

Non-current
Equity securities
Listed outside Hong Kong,
at fair value
Unlisted, at cost

Debt securities, at cost (note)
Unlisted in Hong Kong
Unlisted outside Hong Kong

Total

Market value of listed
equity securities

Note:

B RR M

BE-FP/\F=AST-ALEE

FERE
REBUINLED
BRFE
FLEm  ERAE

ERES  WRAE (M)
REBF LD
REBAIMNELT

The debt securities represent club membership which is stated at

cost less accumulated impairment losses as they do not have a

quoted market price in an active market and fair value cannot be

reliably measured.

AEE

Mt -

2. HHESHEE

2007
2T LF
HK$'000
FHET

42,417
21

42,438

1,425
1,952

3,377

45,815

42,417

ERBFEERRNS ELEMZRE
SER  ERAVEREAREHAE X
P AR R TR (E S R B
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 BE-ZZ\F=ZRA=T—HILFE
22. GOODWILL 22. B8
Group rEE
The main changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill result from Z % B8 Y #Kabushiki Kaisha Aizuyaf
the acquisition of Kabushiki Kaisha Aizuya and Crystal Travel Co., Crystal Travel Co., Ltd. 2 P& 2 KEER
Ltd. as well as the impairment of previously recognised goodwill. PHICRABBZRECETEZY - BB
The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as follows: ZHREFERAFTET
2008 2007
—EEN\F e e 3
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
At beginning of the year F 1]
Gross amount R 19,607 7,037
Accumulated amortisation Rt KR A
and impairment (652) -
Carrying amount AREE 18,955 7,037
Net carrying amount at REA 2 REFE
beginning of the year 18,955 7,037
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 41) WK B A7) (ffiF41) 9,665 12,570
Provision for impairment R - (652)
Carrying amount at 31 March R=R=+—HZKHEE 28,620 18,955
At 31 March R=A=+—H
Gross carrying amount RHEERE 28,620 19,607
Accumulated impairment ZERE - (652)
Net carrying amount REFE 28,620 18,955
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For the year ended 31 March 2008

22. GOODWILL (continued)

Group (continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to the following
cash generating units in the annual impairment test:

Travel related operations ik 352 18 B 55 7%
— in Singapore — N

- in Japan —BR

Hotel operations — in Japan BEERK - BAR
Carrying amount REE

The recoverable amounts for the cash generating units given
above were determined based on value-in-use calculations,
covering a detailed three-year budget plan, followed by an
extrapolation of expected cash flows at the growth rates stated
below. The growth rates reflect the long-term average growth
rates for the respective business operations:

The key assumptions used for value in use calculations

Travel related operations

MBEHRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-AILEE

22. B8 (&)
AEW(KF)

EFRAREAAT BEZEAEESE
ENTHEELEN

2008 2007
—SENE  -TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T
6,385 6,385
11,663 5,582
10,572 6,988
28,620 18,955

TR ELBU RO ERZEAE
BifE BEFMAON=-FRE;E TR
MTREXEHBEARER - BRERR
HMERXBHREFHER

AEREEFEMBZEERR

Hotel business

R EER BIE K
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\E —TT+F ZEETNFE C"ZBEtH
Growth rates #RER 4.70% 6.30% 0% 0%
Discount rates B3R = 11.17% 11.60% 5% 5%

The Group’s management’s key assumptions for the Group have
been determined based on past performance and its expectations
for the market development. The weighted average growth
rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in industry
reports. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the relevant segments.

AGRBZEIZBRRAEEEERRBERAR
ARBHzmEERBEMNEE - AL
TR RRERRBEREH AR —
e MAZBBRTIARNMN KRR EE R
KB o AR 2 FERR o
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For the year ended 31 March 2008

22. GOODWILL (continued)

Group (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the related goodwill
impairment loss of HK$652,000 was included under “other
operating expenses” in the income statement and attributed to
the Group's travel related operations. There was no such goodwill
impairment loss for the current year.

Apart from the considerations described in determining the
value in use of the cash generating units above, the Group’s
management is not currently aware of any other probable
changes that would necessitate changes in its key estimates.

23. LOANS RECEIVABLE 23.
Group
Term loans — secured EHER—-AHER
Mortgage loans — secured BERER-FER
Installment loans — unsecured DHEER - BEAF
Net carrying amount FHFE
Less: provisions o B
Less: amounts due within o SIARBEEZ
one year included under — N EHIFIE
current assets
Amounts due after one year included SIAFERENEE 2
under non-current assets —F B HFE

In prior year, the Group granted a term loan to a minority
shareholder of two subsidiaries of the Company, namely Japan
Xpress Limited and Japan Xpress Travel Limited. The balance is
secured by the equity interests in these two subsidiaries held
by this minority shareholder, interest-free and repayable within
twelve months. The balance has been fully provided in current
year.

106
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BE-FTT/\FSA=+-ALEE

22.

EEE)
AEE(HF)

REE-ZTTE+E=A=1+—-BILEE
W AR EEIE652,0008 TE R
EREPHATETEEAY] YREBAS
BIREEBAER AFEVEFERES

B

R RS A A A Y 5 PR A
EREEN  AREAERERB Y FAE
BRMTHELNHS  NHAEEL X
BB LB -

JE W & X
AEH
2008 2007
—BBNE —TTLF
HK$"000 HK$'000
TR TET
6,561 7,249
4,791 4,791
3,580 1,857
14,932 13,897
(11,798) (10,439)
3,134 3,458
(2,233) (3,008)
901 450

RBEFE AEBRNARAMERE A
al o 7l Alapan Xpress Limited&Japan
Xpress Travel Limitedz —% 2SR EE
—EHEHER  REIUZPERRERZ
MEMBRRMFE CREEER . 28
RERTZHARNER - SfERAFALD
EHEE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

23. LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Group (continued)

The mortgage loans bear interest at 0.5% over prime interest
rates in Hong Kong (2007: 0.5% over prime interest rates in
Hong Kong) per annum and are repayable by instalments up to
year 2011. The loans are secured by mortgages over properties
placed by the borrowers. The mortgage loans are repayable on
demand due to the default on repayment by the borrowers.

The installment loans bear interest ranging from 11.76% to
20.04% per annum. The repayment terms of the loans are
negotiated on an individual basis.

The maturity profile of the loans receivable at the balance
sheet date, which is analysed by the remaining periods to their
contractual maturity dates, is as follows:

Notes:

(@)  The ageing analysis of loans receivable that are not impaired is as
follows:

On demand A
Three months or less =EAKAT
Over three months but HBR=EABIR—F
less than one year

One to four years —ENF

(b)  The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of loans receivable approximate their fair values.

() The Group has provided fully for all loans receivable that are
determined not recoverable. Based on past experience, the
management believed that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of the remaining balances as there had not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances were
considered fully recoverable. The movement in the provision of
loan receivables is as follows

MBEHRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-AILEE

23. ERER (&)
KEE(F)

RBEERNREERESMEMOSE(=
ERLF: BRREBINEMOSE)E
FHE YEAR-_T——FRHHEER-
ZEERTIAERAMEL 2 MERBIER
e ANERABRER  WIRBEFAR

PHERTIRNF11.76EE20.04E 2 &
FIEFTE - ZEERZERRRERNEE
BA] °
BREFREERZHBRIZESDE
HB 2 THEED MO T :

Wi -

) HABREERKRERZERIFTIT :

—
QD

2008 2007

=t 2 1% —ETLF
HK$000 HK$'000
TERT TERT
809 2,569

603 82

821 357

901 450

3,134 3,458

(b) ARAAEZRAEUEFREEEELRF
B -

() AEERIATAKEZEKE K2 H(E
HEE -  EEERBAERRAR AR
FEETEZLERNBEREYMERZHA
Wm - ESERERELRERE - &
WERBRFESIMT
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

23. LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Group (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(c)  (continued)

At 1 April RMA—A
Impairment loss and allowances

charged to the income statement

At 31 March R=A=+—8H

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components:

Cash at bank and in hand BATReRFEAS
Short-term bank deposits BHIRITER

Less: Pledged bank fixed A ERBEET

deposits shown under BHERRT
non-current assets EHFR
Less: Pledged bank fixed o RBEET
deposits shown under B HRT
current assets EHER
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEHEER

108

PR R FNBR 2 RE 1R R B

M B®RME

BE-—TT/\F-A-+-RALtEE
23.EWER (&)
AEE(HF)
#i3E - (4)

() (#&)
2007
—ETtF
HK$'000
T

10,439

10,439

2. BERBEEEEENCHEAR

TER
RERASSEARBEUTEE

Group
AEE

Company
QT

2007 2007
—FRLF —2%LHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEL
41,497 1,832
154,461 53,932
195,958 55,764
(4,385) =
191,573 55,764



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

24.

25.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposits rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and one month depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest
at the respective short term time deposits at fixed rates ranging
from 0.29% to 7.31% (2007: 3.81% to 6.03%) per annum.
The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and the
pledged deposits approximate their fair values.

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group is
HK$16,628,000 (2007: HK$6,531,000) of bank balances
denominated in US dollars ("USD") placed with banks in US and
Singapore, HK$102,880,000 (2007: HK$7,716,000) of bank
balances denominated in Singapore dollars (“S$”) placed with
banks in Singapore, HK$12,263,000 (2007: HK$30,628,000) of
bank balances denominated in Japanese yen (“Yen") placed with
banks in Japan and Hong Kong.

The non-current portion of pledged deposits represented the
time deposits placed as securities for the credit card business
transactions. The current portion of pledged deposits represented
the time deposits placed as securities for certain bank guarantees.
The pledged deposits are classified as current assets when the
liabilities being secured will mature within twelve months after
the balance sheet date.

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components:

usD e

S$ AN TT
Yen H
INVENTORIES

Group

The amounts represent premium items for credit card holders and
food and beverage and other consumables for hotel operation.

MBEHRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-AILEE

2. BERBAEEFEEENCSHAR
THER (&)

FHRRTZESRES B RITFHIFE
BREZHANE - REAEEHBRSFE K2
S BHTHETFE-—BAR—EAH
BAE  UoRIBDSEESEHERER
NT029EE731E(ZFZT +F :3.81
EZ6.03E)2ETFEMEHEZFE - B
ek EEEBECRAERE N TER

4+

% o

FARSERTEACEFTARTES
16,628,000 T (—TZ 4 : 6,531,000
BL) BETL(ET]EY  FHNRER
K Ehanig 8847 - R1745737102,880,000%
(=TT +4F 7,716,000 7T ) » I M
B (TF ML) 25 - 7 B 0K iR
7 RITHEF12,263,0008 (Tt
% 130,628,000 L) AE((BE])
25 FHRAARFBRT

EEAERZERBBORRAGFARE
BRAEBEFERZERER - CER
FRIRBHBARKAE T RITAEER
BHERIERER - HEEFREHN
BEART AR RAIBERAEFR
NRERDEE -

RekReFEHEBRREATHS :

2008 2007

—EEN\E —EELF

‘000 ‘000

FHET FHET

1,184 47

17,142 16,705

2,825 -
25. &
REE

ZHRBEERRAHAEAZER BEXH
B EEREMESE® °
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

MBEHRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-ALEE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 26 . ESREMEWNE - RER A
AND PREPAYMENTS E
Group Company
rEH PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTtHF | ZBENF —TTtHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TR FET
Trade receivables E 5 EW A 108,669 119,046 = =
Less: allowance for o RRE A
doubtful debts (23,377) (39,548) - =
85,292 79,498 -
Deposits paid, BfZE - B
prepayment and I8 2 H fth e
other receivables (note) W (Brat) 94,884 51,497 6,313 803
Prepaid operating lease BN ERENE
payment (note 16) (Hiet16) 668 530 = =
180,844 131,525 6,313 803

110

The directors of the Group considered that the fair values of
trade and other receivables are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these amounts have short maturity
period on their inception.

The average credit terms granted by the Group to its trade
customers are as follows:

Hotel operations

B JE T

Travel related operations

i 2 48 R 5 7

Credit Card holders for retail sales

ERTRBAZERE

Note: Include in other receivables, there was an amount due from a
minority shareholder of a subsidiary of HK$3,900,000 (2007:
HK$787,000). The balance is unsecured, interest free and repayable
on demand. The maximum amount outstanding during the year is
HK$3,900,000.

AEEEZERREIREMLEBERELZR
FERARAEYBEAER  A%EE
BRELRANELIHA -

AEERTHESEFZTHEERNT

60 days

60H

30 days

30H

up to 56 days interest free repayment period

R%56H % B8N

Kiat - STARMEBRFIER —SREMBARZ

DM R K IE3,900,0008 T( =T E

% : 787,000 0) © AR R EER

RERBRERER - FAREEKKE
£3,900,000% 7T °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& 3] & [t &

For the year ended 31 March 2008 BE-ZZ)\G=ZRA=1T—HILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 26. BESZRHEMEWNRE - Z2 K&

AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables is as follows:

0 - 60 days 0£60H
61 - 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H A E

The Group has recognised a loss of HK$1,431,000 (2007:
HK$26,000) for the impairment of its trade receivables during
the year ended 31 March 2008.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are past due but are
not considered impaired as at 31 March 2008 is as follows:

61 - 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H A E

Trade receivables that are not yet past due nor impaired relate to
a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group and the Company. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group and the Company do not
hold any collateral over these balances.

A &)
REER - BHRKGREREKERINOT :

Group

rEE
2008 2007
—2EN\E —TELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TiERT
77,988 70,462
4,122 3,306
3,182 5,730
85,292 79,498

AEBEHRABE_ZTNFEF=A=1+
—BLFEZESRERUREREESRE
1,431,008 j0( — T £ £ F : 26,0008
JL) °

RZZBEZNF=ZA=+—HBHERER
BZEZERBFALZRESTNOT

Group

TEE
2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER T8I
913 1,807
898 7,229
1,811 9,036

MABHLREZBEZRUFEARBRNE
#AMRBEHRCHLEP  CBHETTE
BECESREARAEEN —LEXKE
EADAARFEECHEIBUEF - R
BAGKR EEERGEITALTER
BIERERE AEEERREENESR
ERRERIDAZERE  REBRAR
AT EFAZEHRENERTD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

112

AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The Group has provided fully for all receivables that are determined
not recoverable. Based on past experience, the management
believed that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of the remaining balances as there had not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances were considered fully
recoverable.

At 1 April REA—H

Bad debt written off 22 AR 85

Impairment loss and allowances B RNk 2
charged to the income statement  JE{EEE K A&

At 31 March R=AR=+—H

At each of the balance sheet date, the Group’s trade receivables
were individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficulties. Consequently, specific impairment provision was
recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

26 EZRHMEWRE

MBEHRRNE

BE-FTT/\FSAS+-AILEE

BERR
5K E (&)

ARERI ST ARE 2 BERE K2 B
HEE EEERBBELRIS BN
FEYTEZLEMNBEALIMAREZHA
Wem - EOERERELREREE -

2008 2007
—EENE “ETAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
39,548 39,784
(17,602) (262)
1,431 26
23,377 39,548

REEEER  AEEZE 5 REFAY
S @R ETRENRARERTRE
BRAE P 2 856 B Y50 IR 3R B R
HoFilt ARBERNCHR A5HE
RERBAZBE L TMERR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS
Group

Listed securities held for trading
Equity securities - Hong Kong
Equity securities -

outside Hong Kong

Market value of listed securities
Financial assets designated
at fair value through

profit or loss
- Equity link notes

Total

Company

Listed securities held for trading
Equity securities — Hong Kong

Market value of listed securities

Financial assets designated at
fair value through
profit or loss
- Equity link notes

Total

FERBEZ EMES
BAESZ-FA
BAREE 75 — BB AN

EmEHzME

BRAVFEFABSZ
TREE

—RAHBRIE

st

FERBE LHEH
BAEZ-FA

LhmEHFZME

BRAVFEFABSZ
TREE

—RAHBRE

BT

% RR M

BE-FP/\FSAST-ALEE
27. BAFEFARBZEMEE

ES- 3

2007
—ETLF
HK$'000
FHET

141,453

37,359

178,812

178,812

2007
—ETF
HK$'000
T T

140,220

140,220

113

140,220 |

“EEN\FFH

Annual Report 2008 e



2

/)

REEEAR

Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

14

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The list securities are held for trading purpose. Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are presented within the section
on operating activities as part of changes in working capital in
the cash flow statement.

Equity link notes are designated as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition as it contains
embedded derivatives that are not closely related to the host
contract, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract to
be designed as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Major terms of the equity link notes are as follows:

Principal amount

N

HK$7,881,600
7,881,600 7T

The equity link notes are subject to mandatory redemption
clauses at maturity dates depending on the market prices of a
Hong Kong listed securities underlying the equity link notes.
The equity linked notes will be redeemed based on the original
principal amounts. The equity link notes are interest bearing.

At maturity date, if the equity link notes, depending on the
market prices of the underlying equity securities and certain
predetermined price levels, are still outstanding, the equity link
notes will be redeemed by the issuer at the principal amounts in
cash or shares which may be lower than the principal amounts.

The equity link notes are measured at fair value at the balance
sheet date. Their fair values are determined based on the valuation
provided by the counterparty financial institutions at the balance
sheet date. Accordingly, a fair value change on equity link notes
of HK$80,000 (2007: Nil) is recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 March 2008.

E!H%#IH%W?I

BE—

27.

ENF=ZA=t—HLFE

BEAFESFAEBEREZEREE
(&)

ETESENE
W2 SMEEN
ERAHEES

ER
e @@%ﬂU@ﬁém
25 -

HRRAHAZEREEFGANTERY
BERERZBRANTETIRE  BEE B %E]|
EIVRAETEE2BAHGNBEERRATF
Bt ABRze®mEE " Hk$ﬁﬁmﬁ
ROTHERRREEREATEF AR
JERMEE BRABHERZ FTEHRIWM
8 5

Maturity

FHA

14 April 2008

—ZEEN\FEOA+EA

IR A TR 88 7 B B3 B Al 2 s& ol MR
B - HEARTERABRBEEZ

BERLMESZME BRAHBRERR
BREASRED - RAHBREREIAG

B o
IS

REMA - WRAHBRE(RFHEBRA
BrmBERE TEEZEBKFE)ERT
£ BRAHBRERBBTARREEN
ReIBPHEED BOZRASARNAE
ERAEHE -

BAHBEZEALEEARATLESE - &
SZRATFETIRERBYEHRERERESE
SR HEMERE - Bt - 80,000/ T
(fyqti ﬂ)2k$%ﬁmﬁzﬂ$

JJ:EEZ%T\E Hﬁlmﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁ%a{% :



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL

For the year ended 31 March 2008

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

STATEMENTS Bt #& ¥ R Mf &F
BE-ZT/\FZA=+-BUIFE

28. B R HMENRE

Group Company
FEME ART
2008 2007 2008 2007

—SRNE “—TTLF | ZRTNE _—TTLH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TER TET TERT TET
Trade payables 2 5 3RIE 89,031 60,655 = =
Other payables and accrued HEMNFHER

expenses (note) FEsT &R (H7) 76,974 39,633 4,536 7,587

166,005 100,288 4,536 7,587

The Group was granted by its suppliers credit periods ranging AEBE 7 HEARTASBEREH30E60

from 30-60 days. Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis BEREZREH  BFEMNFIBRERD T
of the trade payables were as follows: R

Group
rEE

2008 2007

—EEN\F ZTELF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT TET

0 - 60 days 0£60H 88,084 59,535

61 - 90 days 61290H 352 310

Over 90 days 90H M £ 595 810

89,031 60,655

Note: As at 31 March 2007, there was an amount due to a subsidiary Wit - RZEZLF=A=+—H  ENBEAR

of an associate of the Group of HK$358,000 included in other 72 Ki/B A )358,000/8 7L 2 5K * Baf

payables. The balance is unsecured, interest free and repayable AHMERNRIE - ZAERBRER 28

on demand.

RAREREE -
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

29. BORROWINGS

Non-current
Bank borrowings
Mortgage loans

Current

Bank borrowings
Mortgage loans
Bank overdrafts

Total borrowings

kR
RITEE
RIBER

i)

RITEE
RIBE R
RITEX

BEE

At 31 March 2008 and 2007, the above borrowings were

repayable as follows:

On demand or within one year

More than one year, but not
exceeding two years

More than two years, but not
exceeding five years

More than five years

Less: Amount due within one year
shown under
current liabilities

Amount due after one year shown
under non-current liabilities

116

RERF—FRA
i —FETERMF

HAMFETBRLF
BBhF

B RBARET—FA
B8 2 5B

FRBEBET —FREMZHE

M B®RME

BE-FP\FSAST-ALEE

29. 8 &

Group

2007
-
HK$'000
FHET

30,007
104,616

134,623

33,515
6,428
3,390

43,333

177,956

BRLF=f=t—

B LA AR T

Group
r&EE

2007
—TTF
HK$'000
FHT
43,333
23,1158

47,021
64,449

177,956

(43,333)

134,623



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& 3R & M =%

For the year ended 31 March 2008 BHE_ZTN\F-A=Z+—HLFE
29. BORROWINGS (continued) 29.fBE (@)
As at the balance sheet date, the Group's borrowings are secured REER  AEEZEBENAREEET
by certain of the Group’s assets (note 33). BE(MFE33) KA -
The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to EECERFRGE(FESRE L2 F
contracted interest rates) on the borrowings are as follows: E)INTE ¢
Group rEH
2007
—ETLF
Fixed Rate Floating Rate
EE ERSY

Bank borrowings 4.13% t0 5.29% -

PITIEE 413855298 - i
Mortgage loans 1% to 3.87% Prime rates in rJ:H/-
RIBEX 1EZE3.878 Singapore + B
0.5% or HIBOR iy
(1 month)+ 1% '
3
o
N
=
o
)
s & & -
. ©
FI% 0.5 5 E
E&(—M@A) <
RITRAIZE
- REME
Bank overdraft  6.50% y B -
RITEX

6.50

117
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

29. BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars BT
Canadian dollars N
Singapore dollars T
Japanese yen HE

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair
value.

118

MBEHRRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-ALEE

29. 168 (#)

EEZREABNA ISR BB

Group

AEE
2008 2007
—EBN\F —TTEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
21,964 24,926
8,480 7,985
29,752 87,919
64,106 57,126
124,302 177,956

EEZRAERAAFERES -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

% RR M

BE_ZTT\F=A=

T—HIEFE

30. ENMERERE (&)

30. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES
Group

The analysis of the obligations under finance leases is as follows:

AEME

MEMRETZREZHNWT -

Present value of

Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

Total minimum RERERELE
lease payments

Due within one year —F N5

In the second year FZE

Future finance charges on MEMERR
finance leases BHREX

Present value of finance REMEEFHME

lease liabilities

Less: Portion due within WoORBBEET—F
one year shown NEE 2 &5
under current liabilities

Non-current portion SIAFEREBEE
included under ERBHD
non-current liabilities

The Group entered into finance leasing arrangements for certain
of its office equipment and motor vehicles. The leases are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Japanese Yen and Singapore
dollars. The average lease term is 3 (2007:3) years. During the
year, the average effective interest rate was 2.8% (2007: 6.1%)
per annum. Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases
are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been
entered into for contingent rental payments. The leases do not
have options to renew.

REHERE

REEERERE

2007 2007
—2BLR =
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
661 605
1,066 972
727 1,577
(150) =
1,577 1,577
(605)

972

ARRREEFHASRBERAETUR
ERERE - XEHOUBT  BERT
Mg AL - FHROHAIFE(FE
tE3E)ER BETHENES2S
B(ZET+%:618) ABARIR
AMBHER FEANYREETER
5 BLETURAMEMRTE - AR
A 2 R -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

31. CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES
Group

The convertible debentures were issued at discount by a subsidiary
of the Company, eBanker USA.com, Inc. on 26 May 1998,
bearing interest at a rate of 10% per annum, which is payable
half-yearly on each 1 February and 1 August, with a nominal
value of US$6,690,000 (HK$52,091,000) and will mature on 1
August 2008. The debentures are not callable prior to maturity.
These debentures are convertible into shares of common stock of
the subsidiary at a conversion price of US$5 per ordinary share of
the subsidiary. There was no movement in the number of these
convertible bonds as at the balance sheet date.

The convertible debentures recognised in the balance sheet are
calculated as follows:

MBEHRRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-ALEE

31.TARES

*%E

A E S B AR A KB D FeBanker
USA.com, Inc R—AANFEREA=-+XH
BIEET EFBEXRRBI0E  B¥FER
ZA-HBRNA—BRE—X EEEA
6,690,000 7t (52,091,000 7t ) I %
RZZEZNENA-BIH - Z5EHT
BEREBBAER  TRZMNBEATDER
TRERSEL EBREEBRATZNBARZ
TEk - NEER  ZSTRRESF
B EEMES o

Fair value of convertible debentures 4 %8 # % (& %

at beginning of the year
Equity component (note)

Liability component

Acquisition of convertible AEBWREATRRES
debentures by the Group
Interest expense (note 7) BT W (HZ7)
Interest paid B E
Liability component at 31 March R=A=+—HZ&EHH
Less: Amount due within one wWnBABET—FA
year shown under 282 /3B
current liabilities
Amount due after one year shown JEREIEE T —F1%
under non-current liabilities 28 2 3R

120

ZRVE
ez (Kat)

BESMR

REEBBRERZUBRKRESDFEN
T

2008 2007

= A L% “TTLF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

50,234 48,577

50,234 48,577

(6,149) _

7,101 8,737

(5,828) (7,080)

45,358 50,234

(45,358) _

- 50,234




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MBEHRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2008 BE_ZT)\F=ZRA=T—HILFE
31. CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (continued) 31. AR ES
Group (continued) rEE
Note: Mt -
In accordance with HKAS 32, convertible debentures are required to split REBEBB G ERNE325 - TRRESFBREY
between liability and equity components, on a retrospective basis. EEMSEDHEENERID -
As the interest rate of 10% per annum of the convertible debentures BB A A AR %%‘Zfi %‘ngggﬁifﬁjﬁﬁﬂ}@
approximated the market interest rate at inception of the convertible REREZBUSBRIART L TRREREZ
debentures for a similar financial instrument without the conversion M5 A KBS - SO EAERB A RRES 2 B
option, no equity component of convertible debentures was recognised i
accordingly.
Interest expense on the convertible debentures is calculated using the EH%H&%\%’Z%\J,%&ﬁ?}?ﬁj@\%%ﬁ@}ﬁgﬁ%ﬁlj%
effective interest method by applying the effective interest rate of 14% ERMB14% 2 BRI EGE -
to the liability component.
32. DEFERRED TAXATION 32 . EERKIE
Group rEE
The movements on the major deferred tax liabilities recognised ATHASE#RA FEELERBEREL
by the Group are as follows: =
Fair value Other
gain on Revaluation taxable
investment of  temporary
properties  properties differences Total
REMEZ Hitt ER B
DR ERE EfU= TREH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBIT TET TAET T8 T
At 1 April 2006 RZZTZERFHHA—H 609 1,705 496 2,810
Acquisition of subsidiaries BAKBAG 6,138 = = 6,138
Exchange realignment BE 3, o B 397 - - 397
Charged to income nE YR (f29)
statement (note 9) 12,814 - - 12,814
At 31 March 2007 RZZEZ+F=A=+—H 19,958 1,705 496 22,159
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 38 B 966 - - 966
Charged to income nE W e=iR(f29)
statement (note 9) 1,364 - - 1,364
At 31 March 2008 R-BENF
=B=+—H 22,288 1,705 496 24,489
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32. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

122

Group (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Group has estimated unused
tax losses and other deductible temporary differences of
HK$85,494,000 (2007: HK$72,820,000) and HK$154,364,000
(2007: HK$133,651,000) respectively. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of these tax losses and other
deductible temporary differences due to the unpredictability of
future profit stream. The whole amount of estimated unused tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Company

The movements on the deferred tax liabilities recognised by the
Company are as follows:

At 1 April 2006, 31 March RZZZERFMHA—H
2007 and 1 April 2007 ZEE+F=A=+
“ET+FNA—H

Charged to income statement 8 Wik

At 31 March 2008

R-ZBEENF=ZA=+—H

MBEHRRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-ALEE

32 BRI (4)

REE ()

REER  AREDRBHARDATIE
B 18 & H fh 7] 0 % & B & $E85,494,000
BI(ZZE T+ 472,820,000 1) &
154,364,000 n( = T T t &
133,651,000 7C) - AR KREESTE B &R
R - A W IEEE R E AT N
UREERARLHBEEE - B RAB A
BEBEZYSEIEROLE -

EAYNG

ARFIERAZEEHAAGEZEHNMT

Fair value gain
on investment

properties Total
RENMFEZ

DR EWE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET

196 196

53 53

249 249
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33. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 33.EEHEA
Group rEE
As at 31 March 2008, the Group pledged bank balances of RZFZENEF=ZA=+—H ' A5EEHE

48 17 4 7$3,900,0008 T( Z E T +
F:4,3850008 L) NESETHE
NAElZRITEE - R ER HEMasterCard
WorldwideZ 5 A R ¥ % X 5 #H 18 (M &
24) °

HK$3,900,000 (2007: HK$4,385,000) as a security for banking
facilities granted to a subsidiary and as securities for credit card
business transactions with MasterCard Worldwide (note 24).

R-ZBE\FZA=+—8  FEERITH
%124,302,000%8 L (K E29) MA T H

As at 31 March 2008, the Group's banking facilities of
HK$124,302,000 (note 29) are secured by:

(a)

its land and buildings and prepaid land leases (notes 15
and 16) with carrying value of HK$68,004,000 (2007:
HK$32,580,000);

its investment properties (note 17) with carrying value of
HK$193,618,000 (2007: HK$262,100,000);

its bank balances (note 24) with carrying value of
HK$5,030,000 (2007: Nil);

assignment of rent of an investment property;

a floating charge over the asset of a subsidiary;

its securities with carrying value of HK$3,713,000 (2007:
Nil);

assignment of insurance of certain land and building and
investment properties; and

its accounts receivables amounting HK$59,937,000.

I

(a) BRME1{E A68,004,0008 T(=ZZEZE+
432,580,000 L)zt RETF
RIEMA AL (HFE15K16):

(b) BRME(EA193,618,0008 (-2 &+
F:262,100,0008 7T ) 2R EWE (M
F17):

(c) BRM{E A5,030,0008 (=TT +

&« )2 BT (f24):
(@) WREE—PEANE
@) WEATEEZIHER

(f) BRME {8 A3,713,0008 T( =T F +
FE)ZEE

(9) BERETLIH BFERREMEZE
R R

(h) A%$:59,937,000/% 7T 7 EULFNIA °
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8 9 % B &

For the year ended 31 March 2008 BE_ZT\FZA=+—HILFE
34. SHARE CAPITAL 34, R A&
Par value Number of
per share ordinary shares Amount
EREME LEREE ik
HK$ HK$'000
BT FTET
Authorised: EERA
At 31 March 2007 and 2008  RZ-ZTZTLER
—EENF=A=1+—H 0.011,000,000,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRBERA
1 April 2006 RZEERFNA—H 0.01 1,626,519,255 16,265
Exercise of 2009 Warrants AE_ZTTNE
subscription rights (note a) RIREEE BB (fita) 0.01 5,183,015 52
Exercise of 2006 Warrants TE_SE ERREER
subscription rights (note b) B (M) 0.01 117,086,651 1,171
Exercise of share options Tl R i 0.01 6,000,000 60
At 31 March 2007 and R-ZZ+E=A=+—-HEK
1 April 2007 —ZTLENMA—H 0.01 1,754,788,921 17,548
Exercise of 2009 Warrants TE_STNERRES
subscription rights (note a) REBRE (W ita) 0.01 54,440,545 544
Exercise of share options iR 0.01 9,860,000 99
At 31 March 2008 R-ZBZENE=A=1+—H 0.01 1,819,089,466 18,191

124

(a) 2009 Warrants

Pursuant to a written resolution of the board of directors
on 16 August 2004, the Company approved a bonus issue
of new warrants (“2009 Warrants”) to the shareholders of
the Company whose names appeared on the register of
members on 5 November 2004 on the basis of one 2009
Warrant for every ten shares held by such shareholders.
Pursuant to which 162,593,106 units of 2009 Warrants
were issued to the shareholders of the Company at an
initial subscription price of HK$0.09 per share as a result of
the bonus issue of new warrants. The 2009 Warrants will
expire on 30 September 2009.

During the year, registered holders of 2009 Warrants
exercised their rights to subscribe for 54,440,545 (2007:
5,183,015) ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.09 per
share.

(a) —FFENFRREE

BER-_ZTNFENA+BZES
SEMAZER  ARARBARR-Z
ZNE+—ARBRIIBREARZAE
NE R ERATF BT RRRAEE ([ =2
ZNERBEE])  EEAZERE
FRHETRBROITEZE —H_TTAH
FRIBHETE o FIHE - A FZBTH AR
EEEYIRERR0.09BTZNTRE
EWK@T&%?‘??%Z 593,106/
“ZETNERBREE  c —TTAEFR
BEBER-ZEZNFNLA=ZTHE
il

FR —EENFRREZZELH
BATEBRE 2R - ZEK0.09%
TRBEAR AT 54,440,545 (=T Z
+ 4 :5,183,015/%) L@ o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

2009 Warrants (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Company had outstanding
102,453,791 (2007: 156,894,336) 2009 Warrants
exercisable on or before 30 September 2009. Exercise in full
of such warrants would result in the issue of 102,453,791
(2007: 156,894,336) additional ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each.

2006 Warrants

Pursuant to a written resolution of the board of directors
on 3 June 2005, the Company approved a bonus issue of
new warrants (“2006 Warrants”) to the shareholders of
the Company whose names appeared on the register of
members on 15 July 2005 on the basis of one 2006 Warrant
for every ten shares held by such shareholders. Pursuant to
which 162,649,225 units of 2006 Warrants were issued to
the shareholders of the Company at an initial subscription
price of HK$0.16 per share as a result of the bonus issue
of new warrants. The 2006 Warrants will expire on 31 July
2006.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, registered holders
of 2006 Warrants exercised their rights to subscribe
117,086,651 ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.16
per share. The unexercised 45,552,111 units of 2006
Warrants lapsed on 31 July 2006.

On 7 August 2006, the Company issued 172,000,000
unlisted warrants at the issue price of HK$0.03 per warrant
to Mr. Chan Heng Fai, an executive director of the Company.
Each warrant carries the right to subscribe for one new
share of the Company at initial exercise price of HK$0.17
per new share, subject to adjustment for, among other
things, subdivision or consolidation of shares, right issues,
extraordinary stock or cash distribution, and other dilutive
events, at any time during a period of 5 years commencing
from the date of issue of the warrants. Consideration of
HK$5.16 million was received in respect of warrants issued
during the year ended 31 March 2007. During the years
ended 31 March 2007 and 2008, none of the warrants has
been exercised.

BE—

58 8 & W i

T\ F=ZA=+—HILFE

34. RA& (#)

(a)

(b) —

(c)

—EENFERREFRF)
REEH  AARHF102,453,7911
(ZZ T+ :156,894,33610 ) A ¥
—ETNFNAZTHHEZAITEZ
MARTE_SENFRREE - BTY
G ETT Feb -5 VNG EB)
% 47102,453,791/( —_EZ L4
156,894,336/ ) B E{E0.01E T2
L@k -

FENFRRER

BER_TTRFAH=-AZEZLE
HRFBR  ARARERAR-T 7£¢
tA+RBERIIBRAM AR Tﬂxﬁ

gl—

AR TT*E AREE (TS FR
"E]) ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁx%l?—rﬁﬂ‘ﬁx
R —M%?‘ DT NFRIAERE o

B - AR BT RREEEBIREMR
0.16B T2 RBERARARE
%*??16264922519}:2%?/\& B HE
B BT FRREEERN=_ZZA
E‘tﬂ:‘I’_EU:/ﬁ

#%zi—igiﬁt¢:)ﬂz+—5¢¢
B ZEE FREREEZELESR
ATERSZER  ZER0.168 T
REARRQE117,086,6510% L 38 A% o
ﬁimﬁz“ 552, 1M1 =B FR
BREZEERZEENEFLA=+—H
KA e

EA_TT/\E)\HJCEI VNI B
BHRBREFBELZENTE
EJZ!S“T#L EEREBLERT
172,000,000/ 3E E M RWIEE - &
MARRERR TR RREEET
BRGTAFHA  BRENPITEE
BERFRONTET(AE(EF @)
BHFAEIAH - HE - FRIRG K
RenkEREMEESTEEMARE)R
BARE—RHR REBEEZTZ L
F=A=1+—HLFE  BRETRAR
XD WK (ES,160,000/8 7T ° R E
E_TTLFR-_ZFENF=ZA=+
—RILFE  BERREBETRE -
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

126

(a) Company

On 9 May 2003, a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme"”) was adopted by the Company.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives and rewards to eligible persons who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. The Share Option
Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from that date,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended. Eligible persons of
the Scheme include any employee, executive or officer of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries (including executive
and non-executive directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries) and any suppliers, consultants, agents, advisers,
shareholders, customers, partners or business associates
who, in the sole discretion of the board of directors of the
Company, have contributed to the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted is such number of shares which, when aggregated
with shares subject to any other share option scheme(s),
must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each eligible person
in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to the shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time and with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are subject to
the shareholders” approval in a general meeting.

MBEHRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-ALEE

35. R AEGE
(a) X 4& A

R-ZZZ=ZFAANB  KRERM
RERECEST 8 ([ BRaEsTall) -

BREFSEENZEUARERS
RREMBERZAERALR TRE
REE -BRIEAKEHKERT B
BRE S KB EZAE-EARO
FoBREMEAMESERALER
AAREFE2ERARBEARAR/
FEEAMBARBMERZ A DA
FEERMBRARZEMES - 1TH
AERRRBE (BREARBREAEM
WMEBARZHTRFNTES) RIEM
g HRER K2 BE KR
R BEF  ABALEBBHSE -

RizBARETE - ATERE BRE
BRBMHBE - BAEMEMLERE
AE RN K2 T EEB
ARBTEEBRITEA10% © RERM
NREABRREERETETRNES
BRALTETZBRNER LR IR
ARMEMEREDETRD1% AR - #
—SREBAZRBZERERATK
RRBRRAGHER - HAEAT -

RMARAREE  TETHAE X E
PREREMBEF2HEA TR EBER
o HERSARRBYIENTES
Z BB BN EEMI2EA
B MEAAABREAEERERE
VR TESHEMBS 2 HEAL
RO EMBBADRRMEMERD %
TRM01% 2 BIRESRIZA A AR
MRBREHBEZERMATERERR
5,000,000/ 7T+ AJZE fF IR R A AR 3R
REHER - HAIET o
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 BE-ZZ)\G=ZRA=1T—HILFE

35. ERAERT B (&)
(a) XRA(H)

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a) Company (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determined by the
directors, and commences on a specified date and ends on
a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of the
offer of the share options or the expiry date of the Share
Option Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors of the Company, but may not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer of the grant, which must be a trading
day; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of offer of the grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting shares
issued are recorded by the Company as additional share
capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of
the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the
shares is recorded by the Company in the share premium
account. Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their
exercise date are deleted from the register of outstanding
options.

REBREANZZ AHERER - &
RABREREXNBEZRES KB
T RHERECTERIHESE
EHETAHEETERREER
EEHE0FRERETEEMAR
HzBFRHILE -

BEREZTEENAARAIESE
EEABERATESE (VAR
ARNRREERERHM(LERR S
B)REZ e R MERMBRETE
(IARRBBEMRERRZ2R L B HA
LEAXSZHERBRAERRERIR
TR HE ¢ R(i) AR ARRMEE -

REEBRBETER - KRB S KL
1T 2 AR % B {0 [ 18 1] 1 28 90 Bk
A mBEROEEITEERTA
B (B8R - W78 A Al R E
HeBhES I ARTEBREESD
M Ames -
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

128

(a) Company (continued)

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share
option in issue under the Share Option Scheme during the

year:

31 March 2008
ZEE\FZR=1-H
Name or category of

participant

SRALHAGER

Directors

Mr. Chan Heng Fai
Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow
Mr. Chan Tong Wan
Mr. Chan Tung Moe
Mrs. Chan Sook Jin,

Mary-ann
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo
Ms Chian Yat Ping, vy

Sub-total

Employees and others
In aggregate

Total

Weighted average
exercise prices of
share options

Share option

£

REETE
RIfat
RGERE
RaH L
RAAZL
REEEE
R 2053

Da Roza Joao Paulof &
E-Tgt

bt
REREH

B3t

ay

BREME
Yo%E

type

BRERR

2004(b)
2006(a)
2007

MBEHRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-AILEE

35. ERAER B (a)
(a) XRA(H)

TREBADAFAREERE
BT ARAIBREHE

Number of share options

BREHA

Granted  Cancelled  Exercised Outstanding
Outstanding during during during at
at 1 April 2007 the year the year the year 31 March 2008
RoSRLE it Jt
BA-H ZA=t-A
BATE ERRE  FREE FROE HAGR

(Note)

(B3t)

15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
147,000,000 - - - 147,000,000*
120,000,000 - - - 120,000,000

15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000

35,000,000 - - - 35,000,000

15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000

5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
8,000,000 - - (3,500,000) 4,500,000
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
382,000,000 - - (3,500,000) 378,500,000
26,200,000 - (6,000,000) (6,360,000) 13,840,000
11,000,000 - - - 11,000,0004
- 9,000,000 (1,500,000) - 7,500,000%*

37,200,000 9,000,000  (7,500,000) (6,360,000) 32,340,000

419,200,000 9,000,000  (7,500,000) (9,860,000) 410,840,000
0.1597 0.2900 0.1616 0.1873 0.1620
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For the year ended 31 March 2008

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a) Company (continued)

Note: The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of
share options during the year is HK$0.3877 (2007:0.1616).

10,000,000 share options were outstanding as at 1 April
2007 granted to Mr. Chan Tung Moe (“Mr. Chan") was
reclassified from category “Employees and others” as Mr.
Chan is an executive director appointed during the year.

31 March 2007
ZEEtEZA=1-H

Name or category of
participant

SEALRATEA

Directors
Mr. Chan Heng Fai

Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow
Mr. Chan Tong Wan

Mrs. Chan Sook Jin,
Mary-ann

Mr. Fong Kwok Jen

Mr. Lee Ka Leung, Daniel

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo

Ms. Chian Yat Ping

Sub-total

Employees
In aggregate

Total

Weighted average
exercise prices of
share options

Share option

£
REELE

BIgRT
BaETE
BHERT
PEMEE
ZFREE
T5KE
Da Roza Joao Paulo’t

D

bt
ER

85t

ay

A
THEE

type

BRERH

2004(b)
2006(a)

MBEHRNE

BE-FTE/\FSA=+-AILEE

35. ERAER B (a)
(a) XRA(H)

Hit

FARITEBRER B 2 BREM
EFREA03877ET (- F
T+ :0.1616)

R_EELFNA-—BRTFRAER
S HE(TBR % 4 1) 210,000,00017
WARITEBEREESSEAIRER
Heh ] TR EAREEL R
EZABARARITES -

Number of share options

BRELE

Granted  Cancelled  Exercised Outstanding
Outstanding during during during at
at 1 April 2006 the year the year the year 31 March 2007
RZBEAE RZ22LF
BA-H ZA=t-A
AT ERRE  FREE O FRAE HAGE

(Note)

()
15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
147,000,000 = = - 147,000,000*
. 120,000,000 = - 120,000,000
15,000,000 = v - 15,000,000
35,000,000 - - - 35,000,000
15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
- 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
8,000,000 - - - 8,000,000
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
- 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
248,000,000 127,000,000 - - 375,000,000
37,200,000 - - (6,000,000) 31,200,000
- 18,000,000 (2,000,000) - 16,000,0004
37,200,000 18,000,000 (2,000,000)  (6,000,000) 47,200,000
285,200,000 145,000,000  (2,000,000)  (6,000,000) 422,200,000
0.1613 0.1566 0.1616 0.1616 0.1597
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a) Company (continued)

Details of the share options are as follows:

Share option type Date of grant

35. ERAER B (a)
(a) XRA(H)

BEEZFRBOT

Exercisable period

MBEHRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-ALEE

Exercise price

BRERR Rt BH AT TEE
2004 (a) 1 November 2004 1 November 2004 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.16
—ZEME+—A—A —ZENF+-RA-RZE 0.16/87T

—E-=FhANH
2004 (b) * 15 November 2004 20 November 2004 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.1616
“ZTNE+—A+EA “ZEWE+-A-tHE 0.1616/87T

“2-=FRANH
2004 (b) # 15 November 2004 20 November 2004 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.1616
“EEME+—A+AHA “ZENFE+—HAZTHZE 0.16168 T

—E-=FRANH
2005 27 May 2005 29 May 2005 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.15
R Py o = e S B o = 0.158 7T

“Z-=FRANH
2006 (a) 22 May 2006 22 May 2006 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.1566
“EERERAZTZA g By = 0.1566/%8 T

—E-=FhANH
2006 (b) 21 December 2006 30 January 2007 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.1566
ZETRE+ZAZ+—H “ZT+E-A=1HZ 0.1566/57T

—T-=FRANR
2007 ** 18 April 2007 18 April 2007 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.29
“ET+FMATNR “ZTHENATNRE 0.29/7T

“E-ZFRANRA

* %

The exercise of these options was subject to the condition
that the audited revenue of the Group on any financial
year during the life of the Options was not less that HK$1
billion, which is calculated based on the accounting policies
and presentation adopted by the Group at the date of
grant of option and the preparation of the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2005.

The exercise of these options was subject to the condition
that the audited profit before tax of the certain subsidiaries/
associates of the Group for the financial year ended not
less than certain prescribed amounts. When it meets the
requirement, the share option will be exercised in tranches
of 20% per annum for each achieve year.

*

* %

TEZEEREZHTREAAEE
REREEXAANEAAREE 2L
ERRBETFLRI0EET - 1R
BASERNBRERLE A RNER
BE-ZZTAF=A=+ALFE
ZREGHBRREARA 2GR
KR2NHAGE -

TEZEEREZHTREAREE
ZETHBRR,HEQRRTBEF
B2 EBZRBHAEN N E DR E
28 - ARBAENZZRELE -
BRESNEEERFEASFEH
20%7TfE °

ZEBRETIRENTHRRTE

HA20%BRgEr REME RIT6R

# The exercise of these options was according to the following #
schedule:

a.  20% of the option shares be exercisable at the date of a.
acceptance and &

b.  the balance will be exercisable in equal yearly installments b.
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over 4 years with the first installment commencing 1 January
2006.

BT ZBRESREFEASEN HY
0k F-ROEPA-_ZTRF
—HA—RRRK -
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 BE-ZZ)\G=ZRA=1T—HILFE

35. ERAERT B (&)
(a) XRA(H)

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a) Company (continued)

The vesting period of other share options is the period from
the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise
period.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 279,060,000
(2007: 384,520,000) remaining exercisable share options
outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of
the remaining exercisable share options were represented
to subscribe for 279,060,000 (2007: 384,520,000)
ordinary shares in the Company at HK$44,879,896
(2007: HK$66,946,520). The weighted average remaining
contractual life of these outstanding share options is
approximately 5 years (2007: 6 years).

9,860,000 (2007: 6,000,000) share option was exercised
during the year.

The fair values of options granted were determined using
the Black-Scholes valuation model. Significant inputs into
the calculation included a weighted average share price
of HK$0.29 (2007: HK$0.1566) and exercise prices as
illustrated above. Furthermore, the calculation takes into
account of no future dividend and a volatility rate of 61.9%
(2007: 3.3745%), based on expected share price. Risk-free
interest rate was determined at 4.082% (2007: 5.04%).

The underlying expected volatility was determined by
reference to historical data. No special features immanent
to the options granted were incorporated into measurement
of fair value.

In total, for the year ended 31 March 2008, employee
compensation expense amounted to HK$397,000 (2007:
HK$1,049,000) has been included in the consolidated
income statement which gave rise to a corresponding
credit to reserves. As at 31 March 2008, the estimated fair
value of the option granted which was recognised in the
employee-share based compensation reserve, amounted to
HK$3,275,000 (2007: HK$3,121,000).

HttERE 2 RBA hiEmR LAY
BTEHRBREE B LB -

REER BEEREFELRRQA
EREBEMRTE - BRELK
#£279,060,0005( = T T £ F:
384,520,000 ) - WE AT &R T A
FITE 2 AR - BN A PA44,879,896
;‘%m(_? T+ :66,946,520/87T)
# 88279,060,000( — T T + F:
384,520,000Hx)$’& LTAER - ZE
WARITEBREZNMEFLHBRTAL
HRASF(ZFTTLF : 65F) °

ERND1T1£9,860,00017 BE R #E( =
Z £ :6,000,00010) °

T BB g 2 NP E IR E6HHE
TERAET ZEAFAZEER
BEENETLHRKRE2EL(ZF
TH&F:0.1566/80) & E XA M@
ZATEE o BN AT E A ABE
VERSRERBHRENEZ KR
61.9% (= ZF T £ F :3.3745%) °
ZRBFAETEHEL.082% (ZEE+
F:504%) e

GEPSENLYEY NS T3
o FELEREZNEFEEMA
AFEZIER

BHE_ZZ)N\FE=ZA=1+—HIt®E
& Eé%ﬁf f X & #£397,000/8

T(ZZ T4 1,049,000 )2
FAGRAMKEERAN . AmiEinigeE
2t - R—_ETENF=ZA=1+—
B EUBROINTFEE ZHER
BREIABREERE 2GS AT
8 53,275,000 T( =2 T £ F :
3,121,000/87T) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2008

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) Subsidiary

eBanker

InJanuary 1999, the board of directors of eBanker authorised
the eBanker 1999 Incentive and Nonstatutory Stock Option
Plan, with effective from 18 January 1999 through 17
January 2009, unless sooner terminated. The eBanker's
board of directors granted to certain eBanker’s directors,
options to purchase 620,000 shares of eBanker's common
stock at US$3.00 per share, exercisable immediately and for
a period of ten years.

The following table presents the activity for options
outstanding as of 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2007:

Directors Y
Employees ==
Total BT

132

MBEHRKE

BE-FT\FSAS+-AILEE

35. IR RERH B ()
(b) K& 2 A
eBanker

R—NWANFE—F eBankerZEE g
BiEHETeBanker 1999 R IEET
BRERTE  BRIERATAL - B AIMH
—WhNFE—A+NBRBRE_ZTZA
F— A+t A -HREEK - eBanker
EEEMHE TeBankerEE R FHER
B AN ER3I00ETZERRE
eBanker 620,000/ & @R AR -+ #%
ZEREATHZARTFARITE -

TREJIR-_ZBENF=A=+—H
R_ZZLtE=A=1+—HBHARTE
BBREZFE

Number of share
options at

1 April 2006,

31 March 2007

and 31 March 2008
R-ZEXFMA—A -
“EEtE=A=1+-8HK
—ZEEN\E=H=1+-H
ZEREZE

600,000
20,000

620,000



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Subsidiary (continued)

eBanker (continued)

The following table presents the activity of options
outstanding and exercisable as of 31 March 2008:

Options Outstanding

i R AT GE B AR
Number of
share options Price*
BREZAE B>
uss$
=Y
Total 620,000 3.00
et

* Price and life reflect the weighted average exercise price and
weighted average remaining contractual life respectively.

There was no movement in share options granted by
eBanker and no share option was exercised by the grantees
for both years.

36. RESERVES

Group

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior year are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 42 to 43 of the financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2007 and 2008, investment revaluation reserve
represents aggregate changes in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets, while assets revaluation reserve represents
change in carrying amount of owner-occupied property when
it becomes an investment property that will be carried at fair
value.

B % | & M E
HE_ZZTN\F=RA=+—HIFE
35. IR RERH B (@)
(b) BB 1 =] (%)
eBanker(#)

Z*Tﬂ?ﬁ&—f%ﬂ@iﬁﬁﬂﬂgﬁ 15

Exercisable Options

AFITEERE
Number of
Life* share options Price*
e EREZE B
uss$
e
till 17 January 2009 620,000 3.00
ETTNF
—A++tH

* BRETERDHIRRNEFS
T2 (8 R nHE 15 W a2 M ) -

RREEERA - eBankeriX i 2 AL
HETMEE MEARATETET
] BE P2 -

36. 1%

rEH

RAFEEREFE  ARBZHEEREEZD
EIRABEBRREREBEZGAERE
BRA -

R-BELER-_FTNF=-A=F—H"
REBRFEFEITRLESREELZAYE
BEHBE MEEEGFHFEEESRMEK
RERATEIEZREMES 2 REEE
) o
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MBEHRNE

BE_ZZ)/\F=A=+—HILEFRE

36. RESERVES (continued) 36.f#% 16 (&)

Company

Employee
share-based

A

Share compensation Warrant  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
DN §ib3
HFEEZ AR
R 43 % B HEAE ERGE ZiER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TAT FHET FAT FET
At 1 April 2006 RZEER
mA—H 704,561 1133 - (338,734) 367,960
Issue of new shares BT ERALFIR R

upon exercise of BaRE

bonus warrants K

(notes 34(a) and (b)) (B34(a)kb) 17,977 - - - 17,977
Issue of new shares RiTRBRER

upon exercise of TR

share options (Biit34(a)

(notes 34(a)) 910 - - _ 910
Issue of warrants EITRIRER = = 5,160 - 5,160
Loss for the year EEBHA - = = (3,183) (3,183)
Employee share- BERRURA

based compensation XA FEEZ

expenses recognised HERY - 1,049 - - 1,049
Transfer to reserves AIUEERIE

upon cancellation EREGEE

of options - (22) - 22 -
Transfer to reserves upon R17 60 iR AR

exercise of options BRERE 21 (21) 5 - -
At 31 March 2007 and R-Z2+S

1 April 2007 ZA=+-Ak

eSS of 2
MA—H 723,469 3,139 5,160 (341,895) 389,873
Issue of new shares RITEALFRR

upon exercise of EEMET

bonus warrants MR (Hi7E34(a)

(notes 34(a) and (b)) E(b) 4,355 5 3 3 4,355
Issue of new shares AT ERE

upon exercise of METHR

share options (Bfit35(a)

(notes 35(a)) 1,494 - - - 1,494
Profit for the year EERF = = = 5,912 5,912
Employee share-based BB ARG

compensation TRTREEZ

expenses recognised HERX = 397 = = 397
Transfer to reserves upon F B B A

cancellation of options BEEREE - (62) = 62 -
Transfer to reserves upon R1Ti0 AR e

exercise of options BREMHE 81 (81) = - -
At 31 March 2008 RZZENF

=A=t-H 729,399 3,393 5,160 (335,921) 402,031
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37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

Group

(a)

(b)

as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases payable
by the Group are as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth EFERE
year inclusive (BREEEMT)

The Group leases a number of rented premises under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of
twelve months to five years (2007: three months to two
years). None of the leases include contingent rentals.

as lessor

At the balance sheet date, the Group had future minimum
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of investment properties which fall due as follows:

Within one year —ER
In the second to fifth F-_EFAEF
year inclusive (BEEEMSE)

MBEHRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-AILEE

37. REHERH
rEH

(a)

(b)

1EAZHA

REER  AEBREETHEHEE
MZ ARG EAOmMERNBE X
Mz REBEFELT :

2008 2007
—SENE < -—TTiF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T Fb
405 4,966

69 3,518

474 8,484

AEBERBEELENERETHEY
X HANFRHT —_BAZRF(Z
TTLF —AAEMF) - HEEF
BoeasAle -

fERU A

REER  AKERERE 5 HHEE
2 NA R R E RSB
RERURZZREHREFBMAT

2008 2007
—EE)\F —EE+E
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FBxT
2,337 T BAL8!
2,299 8,114
4,636 15,432
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For the year ended 31 March 2008

37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

The Group leases its investment properties (note 17) under
operating lease arrangements which run for an initial period
of two to five years (2007: two to five years), with an option
to renew the lease terms at the expiry date or at dates as
mutually agreed between the Group and the respective
tenants. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

Company

The Company does not have any significant operating lease
commitments or any minimum lease receipts under non-
cancellable operating leases as at 31 March 2008 and 31 March
2007.

38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Group

The Group had the following capital commitments at the balance
sheet date:

Contracted but not provided for  BaI4VERBE

Investment properties REME
Renovation B
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE RS
Undertaking of SingXpress's A HESingXpress
Rights Issues 2 R T
Company

The Company does not have any significant commitments as at
31 March 2008 and 31 March 2007.

136

MBEHRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-ALEE

37. REHER K (#)
AREREEEHEOTHBEHEARE
MEMET)  ZFROZNFHEE
AMEERF(ZTTLF : MFEL
F) UHENEHERHIAEE R
EHFHEREZ AERELD - %F
HOBERSXARE

AT
RZEZNF=ZA=+-—HRZZEZLF
ZA=t—H ARARBIAHE L
EHNYEEFFREAZHEFRESE T
E WA E R REREFR -

38. EAXREIE

rEH
ARBRETE ZBRAZMT

2008 2007
—EEN\F e
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
61,009 62,372
1,547 -

- 809

- 35,020

62,556 98,201

EAPAYT|
ARAR-ZENF=ZA=+—HE_-ZF
ZLF-A=T-HALBEMERKE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& 3] & [t &

For the year ended 31 March 2008 BE-ZZ)\G=ZRA=1T—HILFE
39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30. 5 REE
At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities of the Group and REBRARAIRGEERAZRABRENT

the Company were as follows:

Group Company
AEH ART
2008 2007 2008 2007

—TTNEF —TTLF | —FTNF —TTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 | HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET TER FET

(a) Guarantees giventoa (a) RBEFAEEZ

financial institution in HIER 2 R1T

respect of banking B [7) B A5

facilities granted to a BIEH R

supplier of the Group 12,912 11,423 - -
(b) Guarantees giventoa  (b) AR FHER A

financial institution in ZIRITRE M)

respect of banking IS

facilities granted 1 H B4R

to subsidiaries - - 80,566 92,957
The extent of the facilities utilised as at 31 March 2008 BE_ZZN\F=A=1+—H HEAA
by the subsidiaries amounted to HK$28,110,000 (2007: EFAEE28,110,0008 (- T+ F ¢
HK$80,833,000). 80,833,000/8 L) °

40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME 40. RKE R 5 &

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit AEBAZBEERMINESERESR
schemes (“Defined Contribution Scheme”) for all qualifying it 7E 78 it TR K8 A (T E R
employees in Hong Kong and Singapore. The assets of the ) BERTERRGEZEEBXEA
Defined Contribution Scheme of Hong Kong are held separately HAEEEESIRATE - MEEBRERFSE
from those of the Group and are under the control of trustees. SRR R AT B % WA SRAT A BAR
Where there are employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting 1R 2N 5 B e A 2 (R 3 o B 03 iE A8 ARG
fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group EZEERTMEBNEERER -

are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. The assets
of the Deferred Contribution Scheme of Singapore is regulated
and managed by the Singapore Government.
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40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME (continued)

41.

138

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group has joined the MPF
Scheme for all employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is
registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at the rate
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group in respect
of MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from these
schemes charged to the consolidated income statement represent
contributions paid or payable to the funds by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes.

No contribution was forfeited during the year (2007: Nil).

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a) Year ended 31 March 2008

During the vyear, the Group acquired three companies,
details as follows:

(i)  On 1 April 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the
share capital of Kabushiki Kaisha Aizuya (“Aizuya”),
a company operating hotel in Japan.

8 9 % B &

BE—

ZZ\F=ZA=+—HILFE

40. RRBERGE (&)

41

E*§??¢+*H*Ei AEEAE
BHEEESMBSINA ﬁﬂwﬁﬁ
S3a)) - ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%aﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ

& 5 801 - ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂféﬁ%%@%
B AREHEZAEABITRAN

EEHARAKEEEDARKA - RIER
F%ﬂr%JZ%E@‘J BEREEEANRA

BEZLERGEER AEEHRBES
#%JZDE BEEREZFEZHAEHRR

R R ALURERREE RN 2
1 oo

ZEAEELEZRARBNFEHRNES
WG REASEERZEFER
RIENSEN TEE ZHIGHE -

FRALEERBOM(—FTFTLF : &)

EBA 6

(a) BZE
FE
FAAEEEMBE=FAF " FEW
T

—EENF=ZF=1—-HL

(i) RZFEFE+FWH—H X
£ B Y FEKabushiki Kaisha
Aizuya ([Aizuyal) Z2100%
BRAE  AEEFIRALXEE D
o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

41. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(a) Year ended 31 March 2008

During the year, the Group acquired three companies,

details as follows:

(i) (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents
Investment property

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

Net assets acquired

Purchase consideration
settled in cash

Cash and cash equivalents
in subsidiaries acquired

Cash outflow on acquisition

The acquired businesses contributed

MBEHRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-AILEE

A1 EKE6(aE)
(a) BZE-—EENF=ZF=+—-H1

of approximately HK$1,035,000 and net loss of
approximately HK$2,449,000, to the Group for the
period from the date of acquisitions to 31 March
2008. Due to a lack of HKFRS - specific data prior to
the acquisition of Aizuya, pro forma profit or loss of
the combined entity for the complete 2008 reporting

period cannot be determined reliably.

FE
FRAREBEEWE=MAF - FBMW
T
(i) (#&)
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount Fair value
WS 5
ZIRHE DNFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
RekBEEFMEER 527 527
REWHE 9,316 9,316
25 Kk E b e UGN IE 1,618 1,618
B 5 & E A e 508 (10,204) (10,204)
T B EFE 1,257
UKBEX 2
BERE 4,841
T B a2
RekREEEER (527)
WEEEZBRE RN 4,314
revenues HEBEZE_ZENF=A=1+

—B FNEXEBAREET
7 #91,035,00058 7T Z WA R 4
2,449,000 T 2 BEFEE - M
RULEEAizuya Bl I & & 7 B 75 3
EEAZHFTEEE  HAHESR
REE-_ZEN\FE2RB[2E
R R EHIRTE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 BHEZ

41. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(a) Year ended 31 March 2008 (continued)

(i)  (continued)

Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill are as
follows:

Purchase consideration settled in cash
Fair value of net assets acquired

Goodwill [

1

The goodwill is attributable to the brand name of
the hotel and the synergies expected to arise from
interaction between the Group’s existing travel
business after the Group's acquisition of Aizuya.

(i)  On 1 June 2007, the Group acquired 100% of
the share capital of Hotel Plaza Miyazaki Co. Ltd.
(“"HPM”), a company operating hotel in Japan.

Property, plant and ME - BE KR
equipment
Inventories FE

B 5 R E AR IR
B9 MEMENFR

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

Net assets acquired T EFE
Purchase consideration settled MBEINZEERE
in cash and cash outflow ARWEEEE 2
on acquisition Hemt

The acquired businesses contributed revenues of
approximately HK$49,551,000 and net loss of
approximately HK$7,085,000 to the Group for the
period from the date of acquisitions to 31 March
2008. Due to a lack of HKFRS - specific data prior
to the acquisition of HPM, pro forma profit or loss of
the combined entity for the complete 2008 reporting
period cannot be determined reliably.

140

8 9 % B &

ZZ\F=ZA=+—HILFE

41 EKE6(8E)
(a) BE=-ZZF

NF=ZF=+—H1

FEE)

(i)

MHeXHZBERE
BB EREZ Y E

(if)

(%)

?{r”ﬁlﬁ%ZﬁE%@&?&ﬁ%éi'\%ﬁu

HK$'000
:F/%TE

4,841
(1,257)

3,584

BE D HWREAIzuyaBEE 2 &
MEaTERTEA S RAEERA K
BFEBRBERSRZHRBE
i E A o

R-ZFEFLFNA—H X£
Bl Hotel Plaza Miyazaki
Co. Ltd. ([HPM]) Z100%
%Z[V EEXEFEABRAAREED

Acquiree’s

carrying
amount Fair value

WWES
ZERHEE NEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT FHT
31,830 31,830
270 270
3,189 3,189
(3,419) (3,419)
31,870
19,894
HEEBERBZE_ZT\F=A=+
—HB R EXBATEERTR
#749,551,000%8 7T 2 A & 49
7,085,000/ L 2 B EFE -
U B HPM BT 3 8 555 B 75 1R 2%
ERI2HTEEE  RAHERR
BE_ZTT)\FIRBE 2 HE

Yegt AR TNBER] SEHURTE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

41. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(a) Year ended 31 March 2008 (continued)

(i)

(iii)

MBEHRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-AILEE

41. EB B OF @)

(a) BE=-—ZEBENF=Z/A=+—H
ILFEE (&)

(%)

WEMENEEPNEEEBRE

HEAEBEWEBARRR 2 UE

Bz EEHE -

(continued) (ii)

The discount on acquisition arises from the
appreciation in assets value for the period between
the price negotiation and the acquisition date when
the Group took control over the Company.

PR c EEZERBEHE

Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill are

as follows: LU
HK$'000
FET
Purchase consideration settled in cash IR&XMZEERE 19,894
Fair value of net assets acquired P EEEFECATE (31,870)
Excess of the Group's share of the net AEEDHEEFE
fair value of the net assets over the ZRTHEFERR
cost of acquisition Lz B i AR (11,976)
On 1 July 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the (i) R=ZFEF+LFLHA—H F5F

share capital of Crystal Travel Co., Ltd. (“Crystal”),
a company operating a travel service company in

Japan.

BB Crystal Travel Co., Ltd.
([Crystall).Z100% B4 - B4
—RIR B AAE & hE 52 R A A ©

Acquiree’s
carrying
amount Fair value
HWWES
ZIRHEE DNEE
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Cash and cash equivalents RekR&EHEHEE 25,057 25,057
Property, plant and equipment % - BiE RR#E 1,974 1,974
Trade and other receivables 2 5 M E MW GRIA 26,750 26,750
Taxation T8 187 187
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk H A0 e FIE (56,732) (56,732)
Net liabilities acquired FTiliE & (EF %R (2,764)
Purchase consideration NEeS N ZzBERE
settled in cash 3,317
Cash and cash equivalents g B AR 2R E
in subsidiaries acquired MRE&FEIER (25,057)
Cash inflow on acquisition WEEEZBRER 21,740
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41. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(a) Year ended 31 March 2008 (continued)

(iii)  (continued)

The acquired businesses contributed revenues of
approximately HK$101,162,000 and net profit of
approximately HK$4,198,000 to the Group for the
period from the date of acquisitions to 31 March
2008. Due to a lack of HKFRS - specific data prior to
the acquisition of Crystal, pro forma profit or loss of
the combined entity for the complete 2008 reporting
period cannot be determined reliably.

Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill are

MBEHRRNE

BE-FTT/\FSAS+-AILEE

41. EB SO a)

(a) BZE-—EENF=ZF=+—-H1
FE(E)

(iii) (%)

HUBEEE-_SENF=ZA=1
—H R BEKAEAEBRTR
#101,162,0008 L 2 A K4
4,198,000/ 70 2 A F o B A U
BCrystal fIT BE B K HREE
Al B E8E  WAHEBNE
AT NFEFRBRz2BEE LK
ERTEEASFHIRE ©

R EEFERARHBD

as follows: 3
HK$'000
FHET
Purchase consideration settled in cash UIREXMZEERE 3,317
Fair value of net liabilities acquired FNEEEFELATE 2,764
Goodwill 7 6,081

The goodwill is attributable to the retail network of
Crystal and the significant synergies expected to arise
after the Group’s acquisition of Crystal.

(b) Year ended 31 March 2007

(1)

142

On 27 June 2006, the Group acquired 100% of
the share capital of Xpress Travel Limited (“Xpress
Travel”) (formerly known as Nihon Kotsu Travel
Service Co. Ltd.), a company operating as a travel
agency including corporate travel and both domestic
and overseas leisure travel in Japan.

EETAASBWECrystalfg 2
Crystal ZERB KRBT BEEZ
BEABRRSMEL -

(b) BZ—EE+F=F=+—HI
FE

(i) RZZFEENFNA-++H"
K & B Y FEXpress Travel
Limited ([Xpress Travell -
Al 1% ANihon Kotsu Travel
Service Co. Ltd.)Z100% S
A YR A AR T A R
BIEEBHENR B2 XK
R i H B e 8



MBEHRNE

BE-FTE\FSA=+-ALEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

A1 EKE6(@E)
(b) B2 —EE+F=F=+—-H1

41. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b) Year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

FEE(E)
(continued) (&)
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount Fair value
KBS
ZIEMEE DNEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEIEHR 363 363
Property, plant and equipment  #1%  BE M & E 885 885
Trade and other receivables B 5K E M EWFIA 27,656 27,656
Taxation I8 300 300
Borrowings EE (1,322) (1,322)
Trade and other payables Z 5 MEMEMNTKIA (24,511) (24,511)
Net assets acquired Tl g & EFE 3,371
Purchase consideration KBeS M2
settled in cash BERE 8,953
Cash and cash equivalents FrERBE AR 2 RS
in subsidiaries acquired kBFeEBIERE (363)
Cash outflow on acquisition WHEEZRERH 8,590

The acquired businesses contributed revenues of
approximately HK$155,262,000 and net loss of
approximately HK$7,154,000 to the Group for the
period from the date of acquisition to 31 March 2007.
Due to a lack of HKFRS - specific data prior to the
acquisition of Xpress Travel, pro forma profit or loss of
the combined entity for the complete 2007 reporting

period cannot be determined reliably.

HKREHE_EELF=/A=1
— B B ER RS BE R
#9155,262,000/8 £ Z WA K 4
7,154,000 7T Z BB F 5 o /A
AU BEXpress Traveldl IF £ &
B ISR EER 2 B EEE i
AHEBREEA-_ZTLEER
HiRR 2 & W5 BR T A AT SR 30k

e
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41. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b) Year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

MBEHRRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-ALEE

41 EKE6(@E)
(b) BZ—EE+F=ZF=+—-H1i

FE(E)

(i) (continued) (i) (#&)
Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill are P BEFEREEFEBD

as follows: T

HK$'000
FHET
Purchase consideration settled in cash WUIREXMZEERE 8,953
Fair value of net assets acquired FNEEEFEL A TE (3,371)
Goodwill (EES 5,582

(i) On 21 July 2006, the Group acquired 100% of
the share capital of Sapporo Holdings Co. Ltd.
(“Sapporo”), a company operating inn and hotel in

(i) R=ZFEFENF+LHZ+ —
A X % & Y ESapporo
Holdings Co. Ltd.

Japan. ([Sapporol) 2 100%k A& -
EEBERAELIRERBE -
Acquiree's
carrying
amount Fair value
WU
ZIRHEE NFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEEH 506 506
Investment property BEWE 20,390 35,735
Trade and other receivables 2 5 Kk H A fE W IE 1,463 1,463
Deferred taxation EIERITE = (6,138)
Trade and other payables B 5K E e FRIE (22,045) (22,358)
Net assets acquired Pl & =5 E 9,208
Purchase consideration UReIH2BERE
settled in cash 16,196
Cash and cash equivalents FTER B AR 2R e
in subsidiaries acquired kB&EEIER (506)
Cash outflow on acquisition WEEEZRER 15,690
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

41. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

MBEHRNE

BE-FE/\FSA=+-AILEE

41. BB OF @)

(b) Year ended 31 March 2007 (continued) (b) B2 —EE+F=F=+—HIi
FE(E)
(i) (continued) (ii) (#&)

The acquired businesses contributed revenues of
approximately HK$2,015,000 and net profit of
approximately HK$947,000 to the Group for the
period from the date of acquisitions to 31 March
2007. Due to a lack of HKFRS - specific data prior to
the acquisition of Sapporo, pro forma profit or loss of
the combined entity for the complete 2007 reporting
period cannot be determined reliably.

Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill are
as follows:

Purchase consideration settled in cash MUREINzEERE
Fair value of net assets acquired BB EEFE2ATE

Goodwill ]

I

+T—B FUBESALEE
R 492,015,000/ 7T 2 WA R
#1947,0008 L AL F o B A WEE
Sapporofi 3 & & /& B 15 5 %
Al B E8E  WAHEBNE
AT tFE2FRBRzBEE LK
mIRTBE R EHURTE o

e BEFEREEFEN
T

HK$'000
THET

16,196
(9,208)

6,988
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

41. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

146

(b) Year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

MBEHRRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-ALEE

41. EB SO a)

(b) BZ—EE+F=ZF=+—-H1i

FE (&)

(i)  On 3 March 2007, the Group acquired 52% of
the share capital of Makino Air Travel Service Ltd
(“Makino”), a company operating as a travel agency

in Japan.

Cash and cash equivalents

Property, plant and equipment

Available-for-sale financial assets

Trade and other receivables

Taxation

Financial assets at fair value
though profit and loss

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

Net assets
Minority interests of Makino

Net assets acquired

Purchase consideration
settled in cash

Cash and cash equivalents
in subsidiaries acquired

Cash inflow on acquisition

(i) R Z_EFE+F=HA=ZH X
EBWEMakino Air Travel
Service Ltd ([Makino]/)
S52%MA - W AFAE—BALX

HEFT AL ©
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount Fair value
WA
ZEREE DNFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
RehRE&EHEER 9,587 9,587
ME - BER&E 1,495 1,495
HHESHEE 1,485 1,485
B 5 & H b B R FIA 21,776 21,776
18 (65) (65)
BAFEFABRRZZ
CREE 3,781 3,781
BE (14,474) (14,474)
B 5 & H A& 3B (21,518) (21,518)
EEFE 2,067
Makino Z 2 &% R i 25 (1,007)
Tk EEFE 1,060
NREeESTHzBERE
700
Fr BB AR ZERE
kBReEEEH (9,587)
WEEEZRER (8,887)

The acquired businesses did not contribute any
revenue or result to the Group for the period from
its date of acquisition to 31 March 2007. Due to a
lack of HKFRS - specific data prior to the acquisition
of Makino, pro forma profit or loss of the combined
entity for the complete 2007 reporting period cannot

be determined reliably.

AKBRE_ZTLF=-A=1
—B REUBEBIR/LE
BEREMBRARESE - ARK
FEMakinofl I & & & M W&
RACHERE  HAHERR
BE—ZFTLFE2RNMBEE
Wt AR T RER] SEHURTE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

41. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(b) Year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

(iii)  (continued)

MBEHRNE

BE-FE/\FSA=+-AILEE

41. BB OF @)

(b) BE-—EZE+tF=ZF=1+—H1
FE(#F)

(iii) (%)

Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill are PrREZ EEFEREEFBN
as follows: g
HK$'000
FAT
Purchase consideration settled in cash UBREZMHZBERE 700
Fair value of net assets acquired FkEEESFE AT E (1,060)
Excess of the Group's interests in the AE B R4 W 5 2 7T 3% 5l
net fair value of the acquiree’s EE- - BERY
identifiable assets, liabilities and RBENATFEEES
contingent liabilities over cost = AR (360)

42. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
Year ended 31 March 2008

42 HEHWEB A T
BE-ZE)\E=ZHA=1—-HLEE

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group disposed HE _ZE)N\F=A=+—HBIt&E "

of its entire interest in a subsidiary, Xpress Travel Holdings Pty
Ltd (“XTH") (formerly known as Aussie Xpress Pty Ltd) at a
consideration of HK$74,000. The fair values of net assets of XTH
attributable to the Group as at the date of disposal of XTH were

as follows:

Net liabilities disposed of
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables,

deposits paid and prepayment
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade payables, accruals

and other payables

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Satisfied by:

Cash

AEEHEEK B AR AlXpress Travel
Holdings Pty Ltd ([XTH] = BT #Aussie
Xpress Pty Ltd) 2 2 H#Em - RE A
74,0008 T - WMHEXTHE A - AEER
XTHREG 2 EEFEATENT ¢

2008
—EENE
HK$'000
FET
FEEaBEFE
mE - BEREE 66
BH5hEMERKE -

ENEeREMNKE 350
RekBeFEEHR 201
B5RNFIE - BatRER

H fh fE 5 5B (649)

(32)
HER B AR 2 W 106
74
SN FE
Re 74
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

42. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2008

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows:

ReRE

Cash consideration
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

Net outflow of cash and
cash equivalents in respect of the
disposal of a subsidiary

43, RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
Group

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year.

(@) Management fee income of HK$1,200,000 (2007: Nil)
received from a subsidiary of SingXpress, an associate of
the Group; and

(b)  During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group disposed
of its entire interest in a subsidiary, XTH, to SingXpress for a
consideration of S$14,000 (equivalent to HK$74,000) (note
42).

148

HERERREEERAR

MBEHRRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-ALEE

42 HEWB AR (&)

BEF _EZE/\F=ZHA=+—HiIF
E
HEHBRATAZRLRBLSEBERARAT
BAOWFMT :

2008
= Al
HK$'000
FRET

74
(201)

HEMBLARZRE R
ReSEBARLFRE

(127)

A3 . #£EBHEEHE
AEE

B T BB R R R MR T R B
B RAEEAREEEEALE TS
25 -

(a) BAEE 2B E A LSingxpressZ [
BRa UE 2 EEEWAI200,000
BL(ZZEZLE E): R

by BE-_TZNE=ZA=+—A8BL#E
&+ /K& @ MmSingxpress & H »
HEBARAXTHZ 2 H#E% REA
14,0007 i3 7t (18 E 7 74,0004 7T )
(fizE42) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44 MBEREZEAERER

AND POLICES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risk such as market
risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, which result from both its
operating and investing activities. According to the Group’s
written risk management policies and guidelines, the financial
risk shall be assessed continuously by the management taken
into account of the prevailing conditions of the financial market
and other relevant variables to avoid excessive concentrations of
risk. The Group has not used any derivatives or other instruments
for hedging purpose. The most significant financial risks to which
the Group is exposed to are described below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Singapore, Japan and
USA with most of the transactions denominated and settled in
Hong Kong dollars, Singapore dollars, Yen and United States
dollars respectively. Foreign currency risk arises from financial
assets, liabilities and transactions which were denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the group
entities. The Group manages its foreign currency risks by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates and will
consider entering into foreign currency forward contracts or
other instruments to hedge significant foreign currency exposure
when necessary.

At the balance sheet date, foreign currency denominated
financial assets and liabilities, translated into HK$ at the rates,
are as follows:

AREAXREBERRERD 2 ZRBUH
Rl - flanm s ER(BRENERE - FIx
RizLkERRR) EERBRREABDHESA
- REAEEZEARREERE LK
5 EEERERERMSARLEME
B FHEFEVBRR - AEeRERBES
o REEAREREMARNE R ZITETA
HEMTA - AEEAR 2 &E KRR #H it
mE e

I % B

AEETENEE MK BAREREZ
R REBORFUAET - FKT - B
BEREXTIERGESE - NERREARES
ERVREERINNEBIEZSREE A
BERRHESL - AKBBERT G REXE
HEHIERR  HEFE  UHKEEL
IR ER S K93k H fh T A DAY R E KIMNE R

LA
oo
oS

o

REER IMNETIEZ SREBEN B ER
THEZRRERBT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2008

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44.
AND POLICES (continued)

150

BE—

i%iﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%

ENF=ZA=t—HLFE

MERMEEBEEREE (&)

Foreign currency risk (continued) S0 ()
Group Company
¥iN- ] AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —TT+F  ZEENE —_TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT FTHET FAT
Net financial assets/ SREE/(ABE)
(liabilities) HE
Hong Kong dollars (HK$) i 1,678 =
Singapore dollars (SGD) N T 139,911 44,123 16,705 1,033
Japanese yen (JPY) HE(HE) 3,594 = =
United States dollars (USD) F(ExT) 19,904 47 346
159,748 69,299 16,752 1,379

The Group is mainly exposed to SGD and USD. The following table
details the Group’s sensitivity analysis, the analysis assumes a 5%
increase and decrease in SGD and USD against the HK$, with all
other variable held constant. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates until the
next balance sheet date. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding items denominated in foreign currencies other than
the functional currencies of the group entities and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency
rates.

Profit after taxation vt

As HKD is linked to USD, the Group does not have material
exchange risk on such currencies.

AEEFEREFMBETLEETZEAR °
TREJNAEBZHRELN - ZFED
BEFME T RET LB T RIEERR
B5% MABEMEZRFTTE 5%
BREZEE A B RIBIHREINMERBKETE
AZBRELER TREEBEHEET
—EARAEBRRILHERTRESEEH 2T
e BREIMEBERASESERY
BEEBINAINET B2 AFREE - TR
FRIZS % EXEHAERENHREE o

SGD Impact USD Impact Total Impact

b oA EIa -/ Famst
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZTENF _TTLE ZEIN\F CBRE STENF CIERLF
HKS'000 HK$'000 = HK$'000 HK$'000 = HK$'000  HK$'000
Ten| ThEr | FTEn TER D TER TEL

6,996 2,206 842 995 1,838 3,201

FgHEAXTHS AEENZFERY
EBRIMERR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i% R M

For the year ended 31 March 2008 BE_ZT)\F=ZRA=T—HILFE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44 M¥EREERBRBE (4)

AND POLICES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group's
interest rate risk mainly arises from bank borrowings. Bank
borrowings arranged at variable rates and at fixed rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest
rate risk respectively. As at 31 March, 2008, approximately 79%
(2007: 84%) of the bank borrowings bore interest at floating
rates. The interest rate and repayment terms of the bank
borrowings outstanding at year end are disclosed in note 29.

The Group’s bank balances also expose it to cash flow interest
rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest
rate on the bank balances. The directors consider the Group's
exposure of the bank deposits and bank borrowings to fair
value interest rate risk is not significant as interest bearing bank
deposits and borrowings at fixed rate are within short maturity
periods in general.

At 31 March 2008, if interest rates had increased/(decreased)
by 1% and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit after tax for the year and retained profits would increase/
(decrease) by approximately HK$980,000 (2007: HK$1,492,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to floating
interest rates of the floating rate bank borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk arising from listed
investments classified as financial assets held at fair value through
profit or loss.

Management's best estimate of the effect on the Group's profit
after tax due to a reasonably possible change in the relevant
stock market index, with all other variables held constant, at the
balance sheet date is as follows (in practice, the actual trading
results may differ from the sensitivity analysis below and the
difference could be material);

7 £ ) B

AEBZBAREEREGREELRLRF
MR EREEHTE - KREEFXE R
TERARTEE - WEBHFELEEF
+km2ﬁﬂﬁkﬁ REE DRI AZE
SREMNERBEAFEFERERR - K=
EENFZA=Z1+—H " #H79% (ZFZt
F84%)ZRITEBENFEFIERGTE - 1
FHREOREBEZRITEEZMEREZEK
FTRM 290 HE -

BN RIT & Tﬁhﬁ%ﬂ+&@ KE@
ROBEETREAZRRSRENZAR
E=RA AaRMERTERREEMNX
1 ERELABAORE  BAKREZR
TERRBITEEMAR R FENERR
$$K

R-ZZFZNEF=ZA=+—8" MAxt
ftACTR) 1% EMZsRELE 0 AIF
$EIZ&@WIEH%E%E§QM+
AREEAFERRE R RRE R
ﬂH%%bm/wﬁ9)9saooo%nxg,77—t
F:1,492,00087L) c WEZHAEEE
HE2HNRBIEEZZHFIRME -

18 1% B2
ARBARZAEMANFHERFERAR
SN EREREELEMESRSIEZE
BER -

NEERERERERESTHERNA

BR(EAMERESTENERLT)Y
AL BB B R M B & A0 (B ER
L BENRZERAESENTHOHRE
HEAMBMZERRAEEREANER):
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

152

AND POLICES (continued)

Price risk (continued)

Increase/(Decrease) in profit after tax

Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index BE-EBEER

+30% + 30%

- 30% - 30%

Singapore - Straits Times Index NI — 8 R A S B

+ 20% + 20%

- 20% - 20%

U.S.A. - Dow Jones Industrial XE-HEETTE
Average Index THEH

+20% + 20%

- 20% -20%

Fair value

All financial instruments are carried at amount not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 March 2008 and 2007.

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, loan
receivables, amount due from associates and bank balances
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets. The carrying amounts of these financial
assets presented in the consolidated balance sheet are net of
impairment losses, if any. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, loan receivables and
amount due from associates, individual credit evaluations are
performed on all debtors requiring credit and loan receivables over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the debtors’ past
history of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the debtors as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the debtors
operates. Trade receivables are due within 60 days from the date
of billing. Group does not obtain collateral from customers in
respect of trade receivables, while for loan receivables, collateral
are usually obtained.

MBEHRRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-ALEE

4 BEBRBREEEERREK (&)

BR B & 7132, OR )

EHREREE)
2008 2007
—EENF “EELF
HK$' 000 HK$'000
FE T FET
5,725 42,434
(5,725) (42,434)
1,694 2,609
(1,694) (2,609)
1,318 1,515
(1,318) (1,515)
AFHE
R_ZEENER_ZTT+F=A=+—
H FEsmIAZREBEEBE AT
BEESERER o
EERE
ZOREMEWGIE  BRER BEQ

AIRARRTEFE L REERRAEE
HERMBEEMAR ZEREERR - &
REERRREICASERMEBEEZRE
EEMRBRESE(MNE) EEECAE
ERE THMAXRZZEEERBET

R -

REZREMERE BREFREE
RRAIRAME  BAAEEREERREE
RBB-—EHEZETETENEEF
fheZEMECERDETAEERHE
ZEFCRERSNEREN  LERE
NZEBBARGBIREAHZKER
He-BRURBEAREREFE0ORAE
B AREREIRUFEL THEFK
BERY - ERKEFABERE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-ratings agencies.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables and loans
receivables are set out in notes 23 and 26, respectively.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
its financial assets represents the carrying amounts of other
receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries, amounts due from
associates and bank balances. The carrying amounts of these
financial assets presented in the Company’s balance sheet are
net of impairment losses, if any. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the directors monitor and
maintain a level of bank balances deemed adequate to finance
the Group’s operations investment opportunities and expected
expansion. The Group finances its working capital requirements
mainly by the funds generated from operations and from fund
raising activities such as placement of new shares and issuance
of warrants.

As at 31 March 2008, the Group’s financial liabilities have
contractual maturities which are summarised below:

As at 31 March 2008

Trade and other payables 85 REMEKRIE

Borrowings =

Finance lease payables JE I B & & KB
Convertible debentures T}ﬁ‘ﬂﬂ %
Amounts due to associates & R EtE A Al X IE

E!H%#E%Bﬁ%

BE_ZT \F=A=1—HLFE

4 BERBREEEERREK (&)

EEmE (&)

ARRXZEUFHERTRRBETIELS
ERARZRT BReRREFHEER
ZEERBER -

AEBRESREMBERTBRERE R
MELAZEZEERBRZE—FTTFEUERED
B KT5E23 826 o

AEEFRERMEEMAR 2 EREERAR
Eﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁ}guﬁﬂﬁ MEARRR ??*a*
DRAIRFERTEFZREE - RAR
EERAR %iﬁlJZSZiFénﬂléfEZﬁE@T
EAGRAEBR(NE) EEELCHEZ
*HJ‘&W ERBBER #ZEEERARIA

ABZFFEERAES -

REERDECARNE  EFERLHE
BAREHBRNASELERERENRE
HERZBOTEE KT AEEIEEB
REMELEZES RBE R NEEH
BRBETRREEAGE CESBRNELE
BARFK -

R_ZEENF=A=+-—H8 A£ELH
BEZANINBHARMALT
Current Non-current
B 58 3E B HA
After one
Within but within After two
one year two years years
- —FEWMER MER
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FHET THET TAEL
164,705 - -
35,522 16,188 72,592
562 1,326 -
45,358 - -
1,570 - -
247,717 N7 5504 72,592
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
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AND POLICES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2007

Trade and other payables B 2 & H th fE Wk IE
Borrowings =P
Finance lease payables R mEREHRE

Convertible debentures ] #BkE 5
Amounts due to associates # KREf ‘& A Al R IE

The above contractual maturities reflect the undiscounted cash
flows, which may differ to the carrying values of the liabilities at
the balance sheet date.

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
recognised at the balance sheet date may also be categorised as
follows. See notes 3.13 and 3.20 for explanations about how
the category of financial instruments affects their subsequent
measurement.

MBEHRRNE

BE-FTT/\FSA=+-ALEE

4 BEBRBREEEERREK (&)

HEBETEE (&)

R-EZtHF=ZA=1—H

Current Non-current
B A E =R
After one

Within but within After two
one year two years years
- R —FEWER MER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET TET
100,288 - -
43,333 23,153 111,470
605 972 =
- 50,234 -
236 - -
144,462 79,359 111,470

THRENINBERFUERRAERE  HE
BRRNBEERZEEREE -

REFIretBEERGRAHE
NEER BRAZAKBESREERAE
ZEEEADENT - FEERIANDE
HERZFEZRE  AME3.13K3.20
ZERRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008

44, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44 M EEREEE SRR BXR (&)

AND POLICES (continued)
BEFS R tHEEREEHE(E)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

(continued)
(i) Financial assets (i) THEE
Group Company
~EH PN
2007 2007
—ETF —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Available-for-sale P ESREE
financial assets 45,815 -
Loans and receivables: &K FIE - ﬁ
—Loan receivables — EWE R 450 = e
-Pledged bank deposit —EiEMETER 4,385 = E?W
(%
50,650 - I.l
[ee)
Current assets REEE §
Financial assets at BRATFEFA £
fair value through BamRZ o
profit or loss SRAE 178,812 140,220 =
Loans and receivables: EXKEMFIE : 2
—Trade and other - B RHEM <
receivables J& W FRIE 131,525 803
- Loan receivables —EWER 3,008 =
- Amount due from =PI S
subsidiaries - 256,805
- Amount due from —BERAIRK Y
associates 6,577 o2
- Pledged bank deposits — 2 1K R 17125 = M=
- Cash and cash -HekRe - § SN
equivalents ZEER 191,573 55,764 \
511,495 455,113 |
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
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AND POLICES (continued)

BE-TT\F=A=+—AILER

44 MERBEEBEREE (&)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category BEFSIFZztBEERG EHE(H)
(continued)
(i) Financial liabilities (i) @& &
Group Company
rEE KA FE
2007 2007
ZETLF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current liabilities nESE
Financial liabilities R HEK AT E 2
measured at CRAE
amortised cost
- Trade and other - B RHEM
payables ENECE] 100,288 7,587
— Finance lease payables — B Rl &7 & 7B 605 -
- Convertible — AR EH
debentures = -
- Borrowings —fB&E 43,333 =
- Amount due to —RERMBRERIE
subsidiaries - 56,075
144,226 63,662
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Financial liabilities REBERANFTEZ
measured at SRAE
amortised cost
- Borrowings —BE 134,623 =
— Finance lease payables — JEff gt & E B 972 -
- Convertible — A RRES
debentures 50,234 -
- Amount due to — B R E R B FRIE
associates 236 -
186,065 =




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& ] & M &%

For the year ended 31 March 2008 BE_ZT)\F=ZRA=T—HILFE

45. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 45.B4AEBBRRRER

PROCEDURES

The Group's capital management objectives are:

- to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern

- to provide an adequate return to shareholder

The directors of the Company also balance its overall capital
structure periodically. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid
to shareholder, new shares issue as well as of warrants. The
directors of the Company will also consider the raise of long-
term borrowings as second resource of capital when investment
opportunities arise and the return of such investments will justify
the cost of debts from the borrowings, finance lease payables
and convertible debentures.

Debt BfE
Less: cash and cash W RekReFEERA
equivalents and pledged AR B EAE K
deposits
Net debt BE%H
Capital represented by BRARERER - TBE
total equity excluding DER R

minority interests

Gearing ratio BARBEHLER

The directors of the Company also endeavour to ensure the steady
and reliable cash flow from the normal business operation.

ARBZEREERER:

- HBRAEESELLZEN

- REFEDHTER
ARAZEENERFHELRELAR

REMNERRZREEE  HRETRR
BHEE- - MEREREEL  ARAIZE
ESTHEREERMENEREAZE
RERZERECOREARBE - B
BMEBORATARES CBEBBHKK -

2008 2007
—EENE —ETAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
171,548 229,767
(232,245) (195,958)
(60,697) 33,809
557,338 528,583
-11% 6%

ARBZEENBHIRRAEFXRHLEL
REASELIRERM
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY B E

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+t—HLEE
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(871)) (&31) (E7)
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—2BNE | —TT+F ZTITREF ZTTHF —TITOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT FAT THT FHAT FHT

Results ¥
Revenue/Turnover U E YA 1,430,713 689,184 529,327 295,501 75,186
Profit/(loss) for the year — FE&FI/(&E) 9,315 16,081 102,544 (17,180)  (110,098)
Attributable to: FEff
Equity holders of PN/NG e
the Company HFAEA 12,229 40,112 53,138 (13,466) (108,838)
Minority interests DB R (2,914) (24,031) 49,406 (3,714) (1,260)
Profit/(loss) for the year  FE&FI,/(&E) 9,315 16,081 102,544 (17,180) (110,098)
As at 31 March
R=A=+-—H
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENFE —TTHF ZTTRF —ZTTRF —TTOEF
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THEx TAT FiHBT FAT FHT
Assets and liabilities BENAR
Total assets BEE 939,821 923,583 650,856 622,684 474,595
Total liabilities BER (380,151) (355,976) (161,007) (245,715) (108,837)
Minority interests DR R ES (2,332) (39,024) (60,732)  (10,000)  (11,799)
Shareholders’ funds BERES 557,338 528,583 429,117 366,969 353,959
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES +

AS AT 31 MARCH 2008

Location

1t 2

Investment properties

No 239 Arcadia Road, #03-04
and #05-01 The Arcadia,
Singapore 289845

No 237 Arcadia Road, #05-01 The
Arcadia, Singapore 289844

Strata Lot 7, 1281 Alerni Street,
Vancouver, British Columbia,
Strata Plan LMS3094, Canada

981 Nelson Street, Vancouver,
British Columbia, Canada

No.35 North Canal Road, Singapore

Units 3B, 4, 5A, 7, 8, 9, 5/F Island
Place Tower, 510 King's Road,
North Point, Hong Kong

BRI AREESI0RBENESE
3B+4-5A+7-8 9%

Apt 671-180-012-013-014-015-
016-017-018 in Riverside
County, California, U.S.A.

Car Parking Spaces Nos. 22, 23,
24 on Lower G/F., Inverness Villa,
No. 22 Inverness Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
BEBNEEXETE225%
FEXRIEHT22 ~ 23« 2450 L

Square
metre

AER

6,566 sq ft
6,566 F 7R

3,757 sg ft
3,757 ¥R

1,572 sq ft
1,572F 7R

9,537 sq ft
9,537 AR

4,843 sq ft
4,843FHR

6,403 sq ft
6,403F 7R

67.5 acres/
2,940,300 sq ft
67.58,/
2,940,300 H R

30 sq m/
322 sq ft
307K/
322F AR

Effective%
held
EREEE(%)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Apartment
B

Apartment
B

Apartment
B

Single-storey
ground floor
school/office unit
BEMTER,/BAE

Office premises
RRENE

Office premises
WRENE

Vacant land
EETH

Car parking
space

B

Lease term

BH

Long term lease

REEH
Long term lease
REBH
Freehold

KAKRE

Freehold
KAERE

Long term lease

R

Medium term lease

kY

Freehold
KAFERE

Medium term lease

REEA
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AS AT 31 MARCH 2008

Location

1t %

Hokkaido, Sapporo-shi,
Chuo-ku, Minami 1-jyo,
Nishi 15-chome, 1-238.

Aizuya Hotel, 733 Shiobara,
Nasu-Shiobara City,
Tochigi 329-2921 Japan

200 Jalan Sultan #08-11

Land and Buildings
THRETF

Unit 1-3A, 58, 6, 10, 5/F Island
Place Tower, 510 King's Road,
North Point, Hong Kong

BRI AREZES10%
BEAESE1-3A 586 10%

Miyazaki Hotel, 1-1, Kawahara-cho,

Miyazaki City, Miyazaki 880-0866,

Japan

160

Square
metre

A&
3,209 sqg m

3,209F 1 %

3,152 sq.m
3,152 77 %

3,652 sq.m

3,652F A K

13,687 sq ft
13,687 AR

17,721 sq m
17,7217 K

Effective%
held
EREEE(%)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Type
gl

Hotel

R

Hotel
S

Office premises

YN ES

Office premises

NG

Hotel
BE

Lease term

b
Freehold

KK

Freehold
KAERE

Long term lease
REBED

Medium term lease

ki

Freehold
KAFERE



Xpress Group Limited $FEEEHRA A

Stock Code  R17X5%: 185

5/F, Island Place Tower, 510 King's Rd., North Point, HK
BEBILAKEES105RBERESE

WWW.Xpressgroup.com
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